
1.The Board may adjourn from the public meeting at any time during the agenda to receive information and conduct labor-oriented discussions in 
accordance with NRS 288.220 or receive information from legal counsel regarding potential or existing litigation and to deliberate toward a decision 
on such matters related to litigation or potential litigation. 

D 
 

TRUCKEE MEADOWS WATER AUTHORITY 
Board of Directors 

 AGENDA  

NEW DAY & TIME: Thursday, May 21, 2020 at 2:00 p.m. 
Meeting Via Teleconference Only 

 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY ATTEND TELPHONICALLY BY CALLING THE NUMBER LISTED BELOW.  

NO PHYSICAL LOCATION IS BEING PROVIDED FOR THIS MEETING 
(be sure to keep your phones on mute, and do not place the call on hold) 

Phone: (888) 788-0099 
Meeting ID: 961 9838 3940 

 
Board Members 

Chair Vaughn Hartung Vice Chair Kristopher Dahir 
Member Neoma Jardon Member Jeanne Herman 
Member Jenny Brekhus Member Naomi Duerr 
Member Paul Anderson  

NOTES: 
1. This meeting is being conducted pursuant to the Governor’s Declaration of Emergency Directive 006 (“Directive 006”) 
http://gov.nv.gov/News/Emergency_Orders/2020/2020-03-22_-_COVID-19_Declaration_of_Emergency_Directive_006/. 

2. The announcement of this meeting has been electronically posted in compliance with NRS 241.020(3) and Directive 
006 at http://www.tmwa.com, and NRS 232.2175 at https://notice.nv.gov/. 

3. Pursuant to Directive 006, the requirement contained in NRS 241.020(3)(c) that physical locations be available for the 
public to receive supporting material for public meetings has been suspended. Staff reports and supporting material for the 
meeting are available on the TMWA website at http://www.tmwa.com/meeting/ or you can contact Sonia Folsom at (775) 834-
8002. Supporting material is made available to the general public in accordance with NRS 241.020(6). 

4. The Board may elect to combine agenda items, consider agenda items out of order, remove agenda items, or delay 
discussion on agenda items. Arrive at the meeting at the posted time to hear item(s) of interest. 

5. Asterisks (*) denote non-action items. 

6. Pursuant to Directive 006, public comment, whether on action items or general public comment, may be provided 
without being physically present at the meeting by submitting written comments online on TMWA’s  Public Comment Form 
(tmwa.com/PublicComment) or by email sent to boardclerk@tmwa.com prior to the Board opening the public comment period 
during the meeting. In addition, public comments may be provided by leaving a voicemail at (775)834-0255 prior to 4:00 p.m. on 
May 20th. Voicemail messages received will either be broadcast on the telephone call during the meeting or transcribed for entry 
into the record. Public comment is limited to three minutes and is allowed during the public comment periods. The Board may 
elect to receive public comment only during the two public comment periods rather than each action item. Due to constraints of 
TMWA’s videoconference system, public comment must be provided by voicemail, email on online comment as indicated above. 

7. In the event the Chairman and Vice-Chairman are absent, the remaining Board members may elect a temporary 
presiding officer to preside over the meeting until the Chairman or Vice-Chairman are present (Standing Item of Possible 
Action). 

8. Notice of possible quorum of Western Regional Water Commission:  Because several members of the Truckee 
Meadows Water Authority Board of Directors are also Trustees of the Western Regional Water Commission, it is possible that a 
quorum of the Western Regional Water Commission may be present, however, such members will not deliberate or take action at 
this meeting in their capacity as Trustees of the Western Regional Water Commission. 
 

 

http://gov.nv.gov/News/Emergency_Orders/2020/2020-03-22_-_COVID-19_Declaration_of_Emergency_Directive_006/
http://www.tmwa.com/
https://notice.nv.gov/
http://www.tmwa.com/meeting/
https://tmwa.com/comments-to-the-board-for-april-2020-virtual-meeting/
mailto:boardclerk@tmwa.com


Truckee Meadows Water Authority Board of Directors Agenda for May 21, 2020 
Page 2 

1.The Board may adjourn from the public meeting at any time during the agenda to receive information and conduct labor-oriented discussions in 
accordance with NRS 288.220 or receive information from legal counsel regarding potential or existing litigation and to deliberate toward a decision 
on such matters related to litigation or potential litigation. 

1. Roll call* 
2. Pledge of allegiance* 

3. Public comment  limited to no more than three minutes per speaker* 
4. Approval of the agenda (For Possible Action) 
5. Approval of the minutes of the April 10, 2020 meeting of the TMWA Board of Directors 

(For Possible Action) 
6. PUBLIC HEARING ON RATE AMENDMENT 

A. Introduction and first reading of TMWA’s proposed Rate Schedule Interruptible Large 
Volume Non-Potable Service (ILVNPS) — John Enloe and John Zimmerman (For 
Possible Action) 

B. Public comment — limited to no more than three minutes per speaker* 

CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING 

7. Presentation of Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2020 Financial Results — Matt Bowman* 
8. PUBLIC HEARING ON ADOPTION OF BUDGET 

A. Discussion, and action on request for adoption of Resolution No. 285: A resolution to 
adopt the final budget for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2021 and the 2021-2025 Five-
Year Capital Improvement Plan — Michele Sullivan and Matt Bowman (For Possible 
Action) 

B. Public comment — limited to no more than three minutes per speaker* 
CLOSE PUBLIC HEARING 

9. Discussion and action, and possible direction to staff regarding the appointment of Kristine 
Brown to the Standing Advisory Committee (SAC) to fill the Reno-Sparks Chamber of 
Commerce customer representative primary position for term ending December 31, 2021 — 
Sonia Folsom (For Possible Action) 

10. General Manager’s Report*  

11. Public comment  limited to no more than three minutes per speaker* 
12. Board comments and requests for future agenda items* 
13. Adjournment (For Possible Action) 



April 10, 2020 TMWA Board Minutes Page 1 of 8 
DRAFT – NOT APPROVED BY BOARD 

TRUCKEE MEADOWS WATER AUTHORITY  
MINUTES OF THE APRIL 10, 2020  

DRAFT MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Board of Directors met on Friday, April 10, 2020, via Zoom Virtual Meeting, Reno, Nevada. Chair 
Hartung called the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. 

1. ROLL CALL

Members Present: Paul Anderson, Jenny Brekhus, Kristopher Dahir, Naomi Duerr, Neoma Jardon, 
Vaughn Hartung, and Jeanne Herman. 

A quorum was present by telephonic appearance. 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chair Hartung elected not to hold the Pledge of Allegiance due to social distancing and technical difficulty 
in conducting the pledge on the Zoom platform. 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT

There was no public comment. 

4. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Upon motion by Member Dahir second by Member Herman, which motion 
duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the Board 
approved agenda. 

5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 19, 2020 MEETING

Upon motion by Member Anderson, second by Member Jardon, which 
motion duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the 
Board approved the February 19, 2020 minutes. 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 5



 

 
April 10, 2020 TMWA Board Minutes Page 2 of 8 

DRAFT – NOT APPROVED BY BOARD  

6. PRESENTATION ON TMWA’S RESPONSE TO THE COVID-19 CORONAVIRUS 
PANDEMIC 

Andy Gebhardt presented the report and gave special recognition to Ian Dasmann, TMWA Emergency 
Planning Administrator & Jessica Atkinson, TMWA Human Resources Manager, in drafting the pandemic 
response plan. TMWA has been at Level 3, only essential staff have remained onsite, since March 18th 
after Governor Sisolak declared a state of emergency. Mr. Gebhardt also commended TMWA’s 
communication team for their response in effectively communicating with the community and employees 
to ensure TMWA’s ability to continue to provide safe drinking water. Ms. Atkinson added all TMWA 
employees are mission critical, adhering to safety guidelines and are being safe with no confirmed cases. 
TMWA staff also advised they are temporarily suspending shut-offs due to non-payment in response to 
the emergency declaration and are also assisting in standing up the trailers on Edison Way in preparation 
for overflow of COVID-19 patients who need a place to quarantine 

The Board thanked staff for their efforts, recognizing all TMWA employees are essential to guarantee the 
efficiency of TMWA operations and delivery of quality safe water to the community. As well as. 

 

7. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON REQUEST FOR RATIFICATION OF 
GENERAL MANAGER’S DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY WITH RESPECT TO 
PROCUREMENT AND OTHER MATTERS AS A RESULT OF COVID-19 
PANDEMIC 

Mark Foree, TMWA General Manager, requested the Board ratify the general manager’s declaration of 
emergency for any required equipment, material, service or contract procurements related to COVID-19.  

Michael Pagni, TMWA General Counsel, added the declaration applies solely to contracts that are directly 
related to the emergency; all other contracts follow the regular process under Chapters 332 and 338. 

Upon motion by Member Jardon, second by Vice Chair Dahir, which motion 
duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the Board 
approved the ratification of General Manager’s Declaration of Emergency 
with respect to procurement and other matters as a result of COVID-19 
pandemic. 

 

8. PUBLIC HEARING ON RULE AMENDMENT 

A. RULE AMENDMENT, SECOND HEARING AND ADOPTION: DISCUSSION AND 
ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. 282: A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT 
AMENDMENTS TO TMWA WHOLESALE WATER RATES, LARGE VOLUME 
RESALE SERVICE (LVS) RATE TARIFF (CURRENTLY APPLICABLE TO THE 
SUN VALLEY GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (SVGID) WHOLESALE 
WATER AGREEMENT) 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 5



 

 
April 10, 2020 TMWA Board Minutes Page 3 of 8 

DRAFT – NOT APPROVED BY BOARD  

John Zimmerman, TMWA Water Resources Manager, stated the proposed changes are in line with the 
amendment to the SVGID wholesale agreement which increases the volume level of Tier 1 and expands 
the service territory area. 

Chair Hartung confirmed the changes do not affect the customer rates themselves. Mr. Zimmerman replied 
no, just the volume level and service territory. 

Member Brekhus inquired about the development project and what would happen if the development 
disappears or expands. Mr. Zimmerman replied the proposed development is called Five Ridges 
development, which is a 400 unit subdivision in City of Sparks within the SVGID service territory and if 
there are any changes to the proposed development, if it was outside the wholesale service territory, it 
would come back to this Board. 

Vice Chair Dahir added that this development is in his ward and they are looking to move forward quickly. 

Upon motion by Member Jardon, second by Member Herman, which motion 
duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the Board 
adopted Resolution No. 282: A resolution to adopt amendments to TMWA 
Wholesale Water Rates, Large Volume Resale Service (LVS) rate tariff 
(currently applicable to the Sun Valley General Improvement District 
wholesale water agreement). 

B. RULE AMENDMENT, SECOND HEARING AND ADOPTION: DISCUSSION AND 
ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. 283: A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT 
AMENDMENTS TO TMWA RULE 2 GENERAL CONDITIONS FOR DELIVERY 
OF WATER, RULE 3 APPLICATION FOR, AND DISCONTINUANCE, 
TERMINATION, AND RESTORATION OF THE DELIVERY OF WATER, AND 
RULE 4 PAYMENT FOR THE DELIVERY OF WATER 

Michele Sullivan, TMWA Chief Financial Officer, stated the proposed amendments are relatively minor 
and are mainly to align a few processes with the new customer information system.  

Vice Chair Dahir inquired about why the grace period to pay a bill is automatically cancelled if over $10. 
Ms. Sullivan replied that it only applies to customers on the budget payment plan, which also requires 
customers be on autopay. 

Upon motion by Vice Chair Dahir, second by Member Brekhus, which 
motion duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the 
Board adopted Resolution No. 283: A resolution to adopt amendments to 
TMWA Rule 2 general conditions for delivery of water, Rule 3 application 
for, and discontinuance, termination, and restoration of the delivery of 
water, and Rule 4 payment for the delivery of water 

C. PUBLIC COMMENT 

The Chair asked for public comment prior to action being taken.  There was no public comment on either 
item 8A or 8B. 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 5



 

 
April 10, 2020 TMWA Board Minutes Page 4 of 8 

DRAFT – NOT APPROVED BY BOARD  

9. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION, AND DIRECTION TO STAFF 
REGARDING THE APPROVAL OF AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH 
WASHOE COUNTY FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF THE P25 RADIO SYSTEM  

Pat Nielson, TMWA Director of Distribution, Maintenance & Generation, stated TMWA is currently a 
member of the Regional Public Safety Radio System and the proposed interlocal agreement is for the 
updated radio system Washoe County is implementing.   TMWA has updated our radios and we are 
electing to pay the up front cost of TMWA’s prorated share of the new system rather in one payment 
rather than financing it over time.  

Member Brekhus inquired if TMWA considered joining the State of Nevada system. Mr. Nielson replied 
we did consider it, but the state did not provide any support and Washoe County does. 

Vice Chair Dahir added the City of Sparks also had the opportunity to go with the State of Nevada or 
Washoe County, and thought it better to go with Washoe County. 

Upon motion by Member Anderson, second by Member Jardon, which 
motion duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the 
Board approved the Interlocal Agreement with Washoe County for 
implementation of the P25 Radio System. 

 

10. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. 284: A 
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE FUNDING FOR ONE OR MORE OF THE PROJECTS 
RECOMMENDED BY THE TRUCKEE RIVER FUND ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
AND AN AUTHORIZATION FOR THE COMMUNITY FOUNDATION TO FUND 
SUCH PROJECTS FROM FUND PROCEEDS (RESOLUTION MAY REFLECT 
ACTION TAKEN IN ONE OR MORE VOTES ON RECOMMENDED PROJECTS)  

John Enloe, TMWA Director of Natural Resources, presented the staff report.  

Upon motion by Member Jardon, second by Member Herman, which motion 
duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the Board 
adopted Resolution No. 284: A Resolution to approve funding for one or 
more of the projects recommended by the Truckee River Fund Advisory 
Committee and an authorization for the Community Foundation to fund 
such projects from Fund proceeds. 

 

11. PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
FIRST HALF ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 

Matt Bowman, TMWA Financial Controller, presented the staff report. Currently, the fiscal impact related 
to COVID-19 has resulted in minimal expenses, residential water sales are up but commercial water sales 
have significantly decreased (estimate approximately $900,000) since the closure of non-essential 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 5



 

 
April 10, 2020 TMWA Board Minutes Page 5 of 8 

DRAFT – NOT APPROVED BY BOARD  

businesses. Staff is reviewing TMWA’s financials on a daily basis to monitor the financial impacts from 
the pandemic and will bring any significant findings back to the Board. The financial performance for the 
first half of fiscal year 2020 have shown water sales are down 3% through March, operating expenses are 
also lower due to lower chemical and power costs as well as moving two projects from operating expenses 
to capital costs: Glendale Diversion Dam and the new Customer Information System. Employee benefits 
are lower due to pending amortization of Public Employees Retirement Services (PERS) and capital 
contributions are about 10% higher than budget due to an increase in payments in the first quarter, likely 
due to the change in fees that occurred on October 1. In the second quarter developer contributions have 
leveled off. 

 

12. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON THE TMWA REVISED-TENTATIVE 
BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2021 AND DRAFT 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) FOR FISCAL YEARS 2021 THROUGH 
2025 

Mr. Bowman informed the Board that staff had drafted the tentative budget, but revised it due to the 
coronavirus pandemic and modeled the revenue changes after the 2008-09 recession. Staff projects an 
estimated reduction of operating revenue in commercial water sales of about 15% in the first half, and 
another 10% in the second half, of fiscal year 2021 (totaling about $3.25 million), with an additional $0.5 
million for non-payment, a total reduction of approximately $3.8 million; water sales are about $2.5 
million behind through March due to weather; staffing levels will remain the same saving $0.5 million; 
also reduced operating expenses by removing a $1.7 million non-cash PERS related expense, $1 million 
out of services and supplies expenses, which includes $700,000 from usage or demand related chemicals 
and power expenses, and approximately $300,000 from other reductions across departments. Also, a 
projected decrease in developer contributions of about $5.1 million is also related to economic slowdown 
related to COVID19.The increase in salaries and wages of about 6% compared to FY20 budget includes 
2.0% of which is a reclass in existing salaries that used to be charged to capital. Staff anticipates 
investment income to be lower by $0.6 million; interest expenses are expected to decrease by $0.5 million 
due to principal reductions in debt; TMWA will be making its first principal payment on its Series 2017 
debt of $10.5 million in FY 2021; and an individual increase in capital contributions is due to two projects 
for a total of $3.9 million in contributions from developers. Cash flow statement shows: $53.7 million 
reserved for construction of capital assets; $5 million reserved to pay down commercial paper; the debt 
service coverage (DSC) ratio is at 1.62 (the DSC required by bank covenants is 1.25 and TMWA has a 
financial goal of maintaining 1.5), which is lower than it has been in the past, but there is some flexibility; 
and TMWA’s credit ratings remain in good standing. 

Ms. Sullivan presented the draft FY2021-25 CIP, which shows that customer funded projects have not 
increased and remain stable, projected spend in fiscal year 2021 is $53.7 million, a reduction of $3.4 
million in delaying projects from the original tentative budget, due to delays related to the pandemic and 
there is a small increase in the overall funding plan. Alternative funding for major projects are the Orr 
Ditch Hydro project to be funded by the Farad insurance settlement, and the water meter retrofit fund (as 
well as developer fees) will be used to partially fund the Automated Meter Infrastructure (AMI) project, 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 5



 

 
April 10, 2020 TMWA Board Minutes Page 6 of 8 

DRAFT – NOT APPROVED BY BOARD  

and the Advanced Purified Water (APW) demonstration facility will be partially funded by the 
sustainability fund. There is also an increase in water main improvements that coincides with RTC street 
upgrades, which TMWA has always done to minimize costs. Additional projects to note are the 
completion of the Mt. Rose Water Treatment Plant in 2020 ($4 million), Verdi expansion projects ($4.4 
million), Orr Ditch Hydro Facility ($1.1 million), AMI project ($2.1 million), the complete replacement 
of the Customer Information System (CIS) project which will replace all billing collections, dispatch 
service orders and customer portal ($1.0 million) and security upgrades ($760,000). 

Chair Hartung inquired about the possibility of moving $200,000 aside to address the river issues directly 
related to water quality, to assisting efforts to relocate some of the homeless population away from the 
river. Ms. Sullivan replied, yes, they could move some of the money from budgeted funds for the Truckee 
River Fund (TRF) and fund the TRF at a lower level, if that is what the Board would like to consider. 

Member Brekhus inquired about the anticipated drop in development contributions, questioned the 
efficacy of the CIP projects aligning with RTC projects, and where would the additional funds come from 
to pay down the commercial paper if the rate increase was deferred. Mr. Bowman replied their estimations 
on development contributions are conservative based on the 2008 recession. Ms. Sullivan added TMWA 
is doing better than budget collecting developer contributions to date, but reminded the Board the 
developer contributions do not go into the calculations for customer rates.  Ms. Sullivan also recognized 
part of the Rate Stabilization Fund (RSF) be used if the Board sees fit in times of economic and climate 
uncertainty. Danny Rotter, TMWA Engineering Manager, added TMWA has a water main replacement 
program that goes beyond following street repair projects throughout TMWA’s service area, such as 
evaluating older water main lines that do not meet a financial replacement threshold and can remain in 
place for an additional 20 or more years; he can provide a more detailed staff report at a future board 
meeting. 

The Board agreed with staff’s approach and thanked staff for their conservative approach and 
recommendations, and approved setting aside $200,000 to address water quality issues (including 
homeless encampments) along the Truckee River. 

Upon motion by Member Duerr, second by Member Jardon, which motion 
duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the Board 
approved the Revised-Tentative Budget for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 
2021, with the amendment to move $200,000 from the Truckee River Fund 
budget to address specific river water quality improvements, and Draft 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for Fiscal Years 2021 through 2025. 

 

13. DISCUSS AND ACTION, DIRECTION TO STAFF, AND POSSIBLE 
RECONSIDERATION AND MODIFICATION OF IMPLEMENTATION OF THIRD 
PHASE 2.5% RATE ADJUSTMENT CURRENTLY SCHEDULED TO BE 
IMPLEMENTED ON FIRST BILLING CYCLE IN MAY 2020 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 5



 

 
April 10, 2020 TMWA Board Minutes Page 7 of 8 

DRAFT – NOT APPROVED BY BOARD  

Ms. Sullivan stated given the situation in our community due to the COVID-19 pandemic, and provided 
TMWA is able to maintain its credit ratings, staff has identified different scenarios for possibly delaying 
the May 2020 rate increase for Board consideration. However, the longer the rate increase is delayed the 
bigger the funding gap will be. Ms. Sullivan recognized the Board can decide to utilize up to $3 million 
of the Rate Stabilization Fund, as well as the $5 million intended to pay down the commercial paper, 
which can be delayed in paying down until a later date, if it believes that is prudent. 

The Board discussed the best approach in possibly delaying the rate increase without jeopardizing 
TMWA’s financial situation and DSC ratio any further, and mitigating any negative impact on its 
customers. The Board decided to capitalize on the RSF and use up to $3 million, if necessary, delay the 
May 2020 rate increase to September and have staff return for Board consideration by its August meeting 
at the latest to evaluate fiscal impacts of deferral and implementation timing. 

Upon motion by Member Jardon, second by Vice Chair Dahir, which motion 
duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the Board 
moved to defer the third phase 2.5% rate increase (currently scheduled to be 
implemented in May 2020) to be implemented on first billing cycle of 
September 2020 and directed staff to include use of rate stabilization fund in 
the final budget as needed to address fiscal impacts of deferral for future 
consideration during final budget approval and to bring the deferral back to 
Board prior to implementation in September to evaluate TMWA’s fiscal 
position and implementation timing. 

  

14. DISCUSSION AND ACTION, AND POSSIBLE DIRECTION TO STAFF 
REGARDING RESCHEDULING THE MAY BOARD BUDGET MEETING TO MAY 
21, 2020 OR SUCH OTHER DATE APPROVED BY THE BOARD 

Sonia Folsom, TMWA Board Clerk, stated there was a scheduling conflict with the City of Reno Council 
on Wednesday, May 20, 2020 and propose moving it to Thursday, May 21st. 

Upon motion by Member Duerr, second by Member Herman, which motion 
duly carried by unanimous consent of the members present, the Board 
approved rescheduling the May Board Budget meeting to May 21, 2020. 

 

15. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

Mr. Foree reported the snowpack level was at 40% five weeks ago, but it has since improved. On Apr 1st 
it was 66% and 70% of normal in the Truckee and Tahoe Basins, respectively, and now there are about 
80% in both basins. 

 

 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 5



 

 
April 10, 2020 TMWA Board Minutes Page 8 of 8 

DRAFT – NOT APPROVED BY BOARD  

16. PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was no public comment. 

 

17. BOARD COMMENTS AND REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

Vice Dahir stated he can’t wait to see everyone.  

Chair Hartung thanked staff and Board members for all their hard work. 

 

18. ADJOURNMENT 

With no further discussion, Chair Hartung adjourned the meeting at 2:57 p.m. 

 

Approved by the TMWA Board of Directors in session on _______________. 

Sonia Folsom, Board Clerk. 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 5



05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 6.A

Page 1 of 2 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Board of Directors 
THRU: Mark Foree, General Manager 
FROM: John Enloe, Director of Natural Resources & Planning 

John Zimmerman, Water Resources Manager 
DATE: May 11, 2020 
SUBJECT: Introduction and first reading of TMWA’s proposed Rate Schedule Interruptible 

Large Volume Non-Potable Service (ILVNPS) 

Background 

Periodically, customers and river stakeholder groups approach TMWA for uses of water for various 
purposes, such as environmental river restoration and temporary irrigation projects.  Most recently, the 
City of Sparks approached TMWA seeking assistance in providing return flows to the Truckee River 
related to a proposed temporary connection to the City’s reclaimed water system at Pyramid Hwy and 
Lazy 5 Pkwy for the 5 Ridges development. The reclaimed water use estimate is approximately 180 
acre-feet (AF) for 2020 and potentially 60 AF in 2021, to be used for dust control, mass grading and fill 
compaction. 

To allow for such uses, staff is proposing the implementation of a new water rate schedule, referred to as 
the Interruptible Large Volume Non-Potable Service (ILVNPS). 

Discussion 

As proposed, delivery of water under Rate Schedule ILVNPS would be available, at the sole discretion 
of TMWA, for non-potable uses of water such as instream water quality, instream return flows, 
environmental, or other authorized purposes. Service would only be available for direct deliveries on the 
Truckee River in excess of 15 acre-feet annually.  Service would be subject to interruption or 
curtailment in TMWA’s discretion depending on Truckee River flows, satisfaction of Floriston Rates, 
drought conditions and availability of water under the Truckee River Operating Agreement, TROA 
Administrator/Federal Water Master regulatory actions, and other river priorities. 

TMWA would provide service on a best-efforts basis where water deliveries could be provided without 
jeopardizing the integrity of the system and municipal drought supplies.  Service would be taken from 
one or more points of delivery directly on the Truckee River and would not include any service from or 
through TMWA's treatment facilities or distribution system.  TMWA may require dedication of water 
resources from customers in accordance with Authority Rules or utilize water resources owned or 
managed by or available to TMWA that are not committed to support a will serve to provide service 
under this Rate Schedule. 



05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 6.A

Page 2 of 2 

A contract for service between TMWA and the Customer would be required for delivery of water under 
this Rate Schedule. The contract would require the Customer to accept water within a mutually 
agreeable specified geographic area and/or use water for a mutually agreeable specified purpose. The 
Customer would be required to provide and install the necessary facilities and all other equipment 
necessary for delivery of water. 

The fee for water service under this rate schedule would be based upon actual cost of service and 
operating expenses incurred by TMWA, and would be similar or equal in cost to the City of Reno, City 
of Sparks and TRI General Improvement District Return Flow Management Agreement Resource Fee of 
$47 per acre foot for surface water sources of supply. 

Recommendation 

If the Board supports staff’s recommendation to implement the new water ILVNPS rate schedule as 
attached hereto, authorize staff to schedule a public hearing on the second reading of Interruptible Large 
Volume Non-Potable Service Rate Schedule at the next regularly scheduled TMWA Board meeting. 



Truckee Meadows Water Authority 

RATE SCHEDULES 

ILVNPS – INTERRUPTIBLE LARGE VOLUME NONPOTABLE SERVICE RATES AND 
CHARGES 

APPLICABILITY 

Rates contained in this Rate Schedule are applicable solely to the Interruptible Large 
Volume Non-Potable Service (ILVNPS).  Water supplies may be supported by water resources 
owned or managed by or otherwise available to Authority that are not committed to support a 
Will-Serve Commitment.  Authority may use one or more sources of supply in its sole and 
absolute discretion. 

CHARACTER OF SERVICE 

Delivery of water under this Rate Schedule ILVNPS is available, at the sole discretion of 
Authority, to customers for non-potable uses of water for instream water quality, instream return 
flows, environmental, or other authorized (in the discretion of Authority) non-potable purposes 
only, and shall be delivered from non-treated water sources of supply owned and/or managed 
by Authority.  Service is only available under Rate Schedule ILVNPS for deliveries in excess of 
15 acre-feet annually.  Service may be subject to interruptions or curtailments for indefinite 
periods due to various operating conditions described in Special Condition #4 below.  Subject to 
the foregoing, Authority will provide service on a best-efforts basis where required water 
deliveries can be provided without jeopardizing the integrity of the system and municipal drought 
supplies.  Service shall be taken from one or more points of delivery directly on the Truckee 
River and shall not include any service from or through Authority's treatment facilities or 
distribution system.  Authority may, in its sole discretion, require dedication of water resources 
from customers in accordance with Authority Rules or utilize water resources owned or 
managed by or available to Authority that are not committed to support a will serve to provide 
service under this tariff. 

AVAILABILITY 

Water service under this Rate Schedule is available, at the sole discretion of Authority, 
to customers at delivery points within Authority’s geographic boundaries, subject to additional 
conditions of delivery which may be set forth in a contract described in Special Condition #1 
below: 

RATES1 

Commodity Charge Per Acre-Foot Per Year $47.00 

Customer Charge per Billing Period 

Per Delivery Point $35.11 

1 Rates for deliveries under the Return Flow Management Agreement between Authority, City of Reno, City of 
Sparks and TRI General Improvement District entered July 18, 2018 shall be governed by the terms of that 
agreement.  

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 6.A

Page 1 of 3



Truckee Meadows Water Authority 

RATE SCHEDULES 

ILVNPS – INTERRUPTIBLE LARGE VOLUME NONPOTABLE SERVICE RATES AND 
CHARGES 

Added: 

Rate Schedules - 

Late Charge 

5% of any amount in arrears from previous billings. 

Other Charges 

As specified in Rate Schedule OC (excluding the regional water management fee, Water 
Resources Sustainability Fee and right-of-way toll) and applied to total bill. 

MINIMUM CHARGE 

The Minimum Charge for delivery of water service shall be the sum of the Customer 
Charge, commodity charge, and late charge per Billing Period. 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

1. A contract for service between the Authority and the Customer will be required
for delivery of water under this Rate Schedule.  The service contract shall
require the Customer to accept water within a mutually agreeable specified
geographic area and/or use water for a mutually agreeable specified purpose.
The service contract shall include but is not limited to the rate of diversion,
conditions for the termination and extension of delivery of water, requirements
as to water resources sufficient to supply water (including uses of Authority
Community Resources if applicable), the specific delivery requirements of the
Customer, Customer obligations for diversion facilities (if any), conditions of
delivery, provisions outlining possible service interruptions or curtailments, and,
where appropriate, assurances of financial security sufficient to ensure payment
of all charges for delivery of water.  For Customer’s outside Authority’s retail
service area, the contract may also include terms and conditions of limited
annexation for purposes of ILVNPS service only.

2. Customer shall take delivery of water directly from the Truckee River at one or
more points of delivery as agreed upon by Authority in its discretion.  Customer
shall not be eligible to use nor shall it use any of Authority’s existing treatment
or distribution Facilities in connection with water under this service
classification.

3. The Customer shall provide and install the necessary facilities to divert and
distribute water from the point of delivery in the Truckee River, if applicable, and
all other equipment necessary for delivery of water hereunder including flow
control devices, piping, and other related equipment.

4. Service shall be subject to interruption or curtailment in Authority’s discretion
depending on Truckee River flows, satisfaction of Floriston Rates, drought

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 6.A

Page 2 of 3



 
Truckee Meadows Water Authority 

 
RATE SCHEDULES 

 
ILVNPS – INTERRUPTIBLE LARGE VOLUME NONPOTABLE SERVICE RATES AND 

CHARGES 
 

Added:  
 
 

Rate Schedules -  
 

conditions and availability of water under the Truckee River Operating 
Agreement, TROA Administrator/Federal Water Master regulatory actions, and 
river priorities except as otherwise provided in the contract for service with 
Authority. 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 6.A

Page 3 of 3



05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 7 

Page 1 of 9 

 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
THRU: Mark Foree, General Manager 
FROM: Michele Sullivan, Chief Financial Officer 
  Matt Bowman, Financial Controller 

DATE:  May 11, 2020  
SUBJECT: Presentation of Third Quarter Fiscal Year 2020 Financial Results 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary 
 
Please refer to Attachments A-1 and A-2 for full Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 
Position for both actual to budget and year-over-year comparisons as discussed in the report below. 
 
Budget to Actual 

  Actual  Budget   
 YTD 2020 YTD 2020 Variance $ Variance % 
     
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 25,133,802  17,777,273  7,356,529  41 % 

 
Change in net position (or overall P&L) for the first three quarters of the year was $7.4m higher than budget. 
This is due to lower operating and nonoperating expenses, higher capital contributions, offset by lower 
operating revenue. These variances will be discussed in further detail in the sections to follow. 
 
Year over Year 

  Actual Actual   
 YTD 2020 YTD 2019 Variance $ Variance % 
     
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 25,133,802  25,156,246  (22,444 ) — % 

 
Year over year, change in net position was $0.02m lower through March than in the prior year. This is due 
to lower operating revenue and higher operating expenses, offset by lower nonoperating expenses and 
higher capital contributions. These variances will be discussed in further detail in the sections to follow. 



05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 7 

Page 2 of 9 

Revenue 
 
Budget to Actual 

  Actual  Budget   
 YTD 2020 YTD 2020 Variance $ Variance % 

OPERATING REVENUES     
Charges for Water Sales 75,684,803  78,392,101  (2,707,298 ) (3 )% 

Hydroelectric Sales 2,479,911  2,676,823  (196,912 ) (7 )% 

Other Operating Sales 1,922,078  2,495,050  (572,972 ) (23 )% 

Total Operating Revenues 80,086,792  83,563,974  (3,477,182 ) (4 )% 

 
Operating revenue was $3.5m lower than budget due mostly to $2.7m (3%) less in water sales. TMWA's 
water sales budget is derived from several inputs including historical water usage. Water use for the first 
half of the year was down 8.5% on a per service basis year over year and 5.7% down from the previous five 
year average. Most of this variance occurred in the first quarter and was driven by moderate temperatures. 
Temperatures were mild with only one day reaching 100 degrees during July, August and September. This 
likely influenced customer behavior, keeping irrigation water use lower in the first quarter and continuing 
into the second quarter. Water sales during the third quarter were in line with budget. Hydroelectric sales 
are lower due to lower river flows and other operating sales are less than budget primarily due to lower 
inspection fees than budgeted. 

 
Year over Year 

  Actual  Actual   
 YTD 2020 YTD 2019 Variance $ Variance % 

OPERATING REVENUES     
Charges for Water Sales 75,684,803  78,025,246  (2,340,443 ) (3 )% 

Hydroelectric Sales 2,479,911  1,862,429  617,482  33 % 

Other Operating Sales 1,922,078  2,060,672  (138,594 ) (7 )% 

Total Operating Revenues 80,086,792  81,948,347  (1,861,555 ) (2 )% 

 
Total operating revenues were $1.9m less than the prior year. This is due mostly to water sales which were 
$2.3m lower year over year. As discussed above, milder temperatures in the first quarter led to lower water 
use, which continued into the second quarter, and leveling off in Q3. During the first quarter FY 2019, there 
was 20 days at 100 degrees or more, whereas only one day in the first quarter FY 2020. The trend continued 
into Q2, with approximately 10% less water use year over year. In Q3, water use was consistent year over 
year. Hydroelectric sales are up year over year due to the Fleish plant being taken offline in FY 2019 for 
maintenance. 



05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 7 

Page 3 of 9 

Operating Expenses 
 
Budget to Actual 

  Actual  Budget   
 YTD 2020 YTD 2020 Variance $ Variance % 

OPERATING EXPENSES     
Salaries and Wages 16,424,885  17,285,067  (860,182 ) (5 )% 

Employee Benefits 8,705,016  9,380,826  (675,810 ) (7 )% 

Services and Supplies 20,478,626  24,090,063  (3,611,437 ) (15 )% 

Total Operating Expenses Before Depreciation 45,608,527  50,755,956  (5,147,429 ) (10 )% 

Depreciation 24,772,871  25,011,532  (238,661 ) (1 )% 

Total Operating Expenses 70,381,398  75,767,488  (5,386,090 ) (7 )% 

 
Total operating expenses were $5.4m lower than budget through three quarters. This is primarily due to 
lower services and supplies costs ($3.6m lower than budget). Of this variance, $1.6m is due to the Glendale 
diversion re-construction completed in the first half of FY 2020. This project was partially budgeted as 
expense, however the full cost will be capitalized. This results in an underspend in operating expenses and 
an overspend in capital, specific to the project. Another $0.8m of the variance is related to the ongoing 
Customer Information System upgrade. The CIS project will have an expensed portion, but those costs have 
not yet been incurred. When the new CIS system is fully implemented there are expected savings of more 
than $1.0m annually. Electric power and chemical costs are also lower than budget accounting for another 
$1.2m of variance from budget. These costs are variable and typically trend in line with water usage, which 
as discussed above, is lower than budget year-to-date. 
 
Employee salaries, wages and benefits are lower than budget due to vacancies and more labor costs allocated 
to capital projects than budgeted. 
 
Year over Year 

  Actual Actual   
 YTD 2020 YTD 2019 Variance $ Variance % 

OPERATING EXPENSES     
Salaries and Wages 16,424,885  15,622,141  802,744  5 % 

Employee Benefits 8,705,016  6,941,803  1,763,213  25 % 

Services and Supplies 20,478,626  20,710,162  (231,536 ) (1 )% 

Total Operating Expenses Before Depreciation 45,608,527  43,274,106  2,334,421  5 % 

Depreciation 24,772,871  24,450,327  322,544  1 % 

Total Operating Expenses 70,381,398  67,724,433  2,656,965  4 % 

 
Total operating expenses were $2.7m higher through three quarters compared to the prior year. As budgeted, 
salaries and wages and employee benefits are each up from the prior year. This is due to headcount, step 
and cost of living increases. Employee benefits are up more due to a noncash adjustment related to PERS 
expenses. We recorded an adjustment for expected amortization of deferred outflows, as budgeted. 



05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 7 

Page 4 of 9 

However, the annual PERS expense will change at the end of the year following the Nevada PERS employer 
allocations report.  Services and supplies are down $0.2m year over year due to lower chemical costs and 
costs incurred in FY 2019 for the cleaning the Donner Lake outlet channel totaling $0.7m, offset by higher 
property taxes and insurance totaling $0.4m. 



05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 7 

Page 5 of 9 

 
Non-Operating Expenses 
 
Budget to Actual 

  Actual  Budget   
 YTD 2020 YTD 2020 Variance $ Variance % 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)     
Investment Earnings 3,228,716  2,557,361  671,355  26 % 

Net Increase (Decrease) in FV of Investments 2,898,604  —  2,898,604  — % 

Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Assets (130,830 ) —  (130,830 ) — % 

Amortization of Bond/note Issuance Costs (163,979 ) (143,100 ) (20,879 ) 15 % 

Interest Expense (9,570,216 ) (9,792,756 ) 222,540  (2 )% 

Other Nonoperating Revenue —  —  —  — % 

Other Nonoperating Expense —  —  —  — % 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (3,737,705 ) (7,378,495 ) 3,640,790  (49 )% 

 
Nonoperating expenses were $3.6m lower compared to budget through three quarters. This is primarily due 
to higher investment income of $3.6m. Investment earnings which reflects interest and amortization of 
investment premiums and discounts is due to higher cash balances invested during the period and slightly 
higher invested rates. Net increase in FV of investments is due to investments in securities at higher rates 
than current market rates. Market rates have dropped drastically in Q3 with the 10-year Treasury yield 
starting at 1.88 in January then ending in March at 0.70. 
 
Year over Year 

  Actual  Actual   
 YTD 2020 YTD 2019 Variance $ Variance % 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)     
Investment Earnings 3,228,716  3,254,997  (26,281 ) (1 )% 

Net Increase (Decrease) in FV of Investments 2,898,604  1,543,887  1,354,717  88 % 

Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Assets (130,830 ) (81,847 ) (48,983 ) 60 % 

Amortization of Bond/note Issuance Costs (163,979 ) (172,341 ) 8,362  (5 )% 

Interest Expense (9,570,216 ) (9,926,913 ) 356,697  (4 )% 

Other Nonoperating Revenue —  19  (19 ) (100 )% 

Other Nonoperating Expense —  (222,801 ) 222,801  (100 )% 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (3,737,705 ) (5,604,999 ) 1,867,294  (33 )% 

 
Nonoperating expenses were lower than prior year by $1.9m. This is mostly due to higher unrealized 
investment income of $1.4m. As discussed above, investment rates have dropped leading to unrealized gains 
in investments held at higher rates. Interest expense is also lower as expected due to lower variable interest 
on outstanding commercial paper and also lower principal balances on fixed rate debt due to scheduled 
principal payments. 



05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 7 

Page 6 of 9 

Capital Contributions 
 
Budget to Actual 

  Actual  Budget   
 YTD 2020 YTD 2020 Variance $ Variance % 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS     
Grants (20 ) 1,453,125  (1,453,145 ) (100 )% 

Water Meter Retrofit Program —  —  —  — % 

Water Resource Sustainability Program 1,159,771  694,819  464,952  67 % 

Developer Infrastructure Contributions 84,627  —  84,627  — % 

Developer Will-serve Contributions (Net of Refunds) 3,673,848  3,800,652  (126,804 ) (3 )% 

Developer Capital Contributions - Other 6,186,680  5,022,750  1,163,930  23 % 

Developer Facility Charges (Net of Refunds) 7,717,577  6,387,936  1,329,641  21 % 

Contributions from Others 343,630  —  343,630  — % 

Net Capital Contributions 19,166,113  17,359,282  1,806,831  10 % 

 
Capital contributions were $1.8m higher than budget through three quarters. This was driven by higher 
developer contributions, water resource payments and contributions from others of $3.3m offset by lower 
grant revenue of $1.5m. The increase in developer contributions occurred in Q1 with more projects being 
funded prior to the fee increase on October 1st. The increase in fees has not impacted revenue significantly 
since the implementation. The variance in grant revenue is related to timing. This revenue is expected later 
in the year or in FY 2021. 
 
Year over Year 

  Actual Actual   
 YTD 2020 YTD 2019 Variance $ Variance % 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS     
Grants (20 ) 331,116  (331,136 ) (100 )% 

Water Meter Retrofit Program —  994,706  (994,706 ) (100 )% 

Water Resource Sustainability Program 1,159,771  319,026  840,745  264 % 

Developer Infrastructure Contributions 84,627  161,233  (76,606 ) (48 )% 

Developer Will-serve Contributions (Net of Refunds) 3,673,848  3,930,146  (256,298 ) (7 )% 

Developer Capital Contributions - Other 6,186,680  4,375,211  1,811,469  41 % 

Developer Facility Charges (Net of Refunds) 7,717,577  6,425,893  1,291,684  20 % 

Contributions from Others 343,630  —  343,630  — % 

Net Capital Contributions 19,166,113  16,537,331  2,628,782  16 % 

 
Capital contributions are higher than prior year by $2.6m. This is primarily due to the increase in developer 
contributions as discussed above. 
 



05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 7 

Page 7 of 9 

Capital Spending 
 
Spending on capital outlays and construction projects during the first nine months of the fiscal year was 
approximately $30.8m. Total planned spending for the year is expected to be between $40m and $45m as 
compared to the FY 2020 budget of $58.5m. Top project spend through three quarters of the year is below 
- 
 

•  Mount Rose Water Treatment Plant   $8.6m 
•  Glendale Diversion Repair    $2.6m 
•  Customer Information System Replacement  $2.0m 

 
Cash Position 
 
At March 31, 2020 total cash on hand was $204.0m or $6.2m higher than at the beginning of the fiscal year. 
Of the total cash on hand, $146.9m was unrestricted to be used to meet upcoming and future operating & 
maintenance expenses, principal & interest payments and construction project payments. The remaining 
$57.1m was restricted to pay for scheduled bond principal and interest payments as well as maintaining 
required reserves as stipulated in our bond covenants. 
 
 

 



05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 7 

Page 8 of 9 

Attachment A-1 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority      
Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
For the nine months ended March 31, 2020 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

  Actual  Budget   
 YTD 2020 YTD 2020 Variance $ Variance % 

OPERATING REVENUES     
Charges for Water Sales $ 75,684,803  $ 78,392,101  $ (2,707,298 ) (3 )% 

Hydroelectric Sales 2,479,911  2,676,823  (196,912 ) (7 )% 

Other Operating Sales 1,922,078  2,495,050  (572,972 ) (23 )% 

Total Operating Revenues 80,086,792  83,563,974  (3,477,182 ) (4 )% 

OPERATING EXPENSES     
Salaries and Wages 16,424,885  17,285,067  (860,182 ) (5 )% 

Employee Benefits 8,705,016  9,380,826  (675,810 ) (7 )% 

Services and Supplies 20,478,626  24,090,063  (3,611,437 ) (15 )% 

Total Operating Expenses Before Depreciation 45,608,527  50,755,956  (5,147,429 ) (10 )% 

Depreciation 24,772,871  25,011,532  (238,661 ) (1 )% 

Total Operating Expenses 70,381,398  75,767,488  (5,386,090 ) (7 )% 

OPERATING INCOME 9,705,394  7,796,486  1,908,908  24 % 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)     
Investment Earnings 3,228,716  2,557,361  671,355  26 % 

Net Increase (Decrease) in FV of Investments 2,898,604  —  2,898,604  — % 

Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Assets (130,830 ) —  (130,830 ) — % 

Amortization of Bond/note Issuance Costs (163,979 ) (143,100 ) (20,879 ) 15 % 

Interest Expense (9,570,216 ) (9,792,756 ) 222,540  (2 )% 

Other Nonoperating Revenue —  —  —  — % 

Other Nonoperating Expense —  —  —  — % 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (3,737,705 ) (7,378,495 ) 3,640,790  (49 )% 

Gain (Loss) Before Capital Contributions 5,967,689  417,991  5,549,698  1,328 % 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS     
Grants (20 ) 1,453,125  (1,453,145 ) (100 )% 

Water Meter Retrofit Program —  —  —  — % 

Water Resource Sustainability Program 1,159,771  694,819  464,952  67 % 

Developer Infrastructure Contributions 84,627  —  84,627  — % 

Developer Will-serve Contributions (Net of Refunds) 3,673,848  3,800,652  (126,804 ) (3 )% 

Developer Capital Contributions - Other 6,186,680  5,022,750  1,163,930  23 % 

Developer Facility Charges (Net of Refunds) 7,717,577  6,387,936  1,329,641  21 % 

Contributions from Others 343,630  —  343,630  — % 

Net Capital Contributions 19,166,113  17,359,282  1,806,831  10 % 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION $ 25,133,802  $ 17,777,273  $ 7,356,529  41 % 

 
 



05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 7 

Page 9 of 9 

Attachment A-2 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority      
Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
For the nine months ended March 31, 2020 
______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

  Actual Actual   
 YTD 2020 YTD 2019 Variance $ Variance % 

OPERATING REVENUES     
Charges for Water Sales $ 75,684,803  $ 78,025,246  $ (2,340,443 ) (3 )% 

Hydroelectric Sales 2,479,911  1,862,429  617,482  33 % 

Other Operating Sales 1,922,078  2,060,672  (138,594 ) (7 )% 

Total Operating Revenues 80,086,792  81,948,347  (1,861,555 ) (2 )% 

OPERATING EXPENSES     
Salaries and Wages 16,424,885  15,622,141  802,744  5 % 

Employee Benefits 8,705,016  6,941,803  1,763,213  25 % 

Services and Supplies 20,478,626  20,710,162  (231,536 ) (1 )% 

Total Operating Expenses Before Depreciation 45,608,527  43,274,106  2,334,421  5 % 

Depreciation 24,772,871  24,450,327  322,544  1 % 

Total Operating Expenses 70,381,398  67,724,433  2,656,965  4 % 

OPERATING INCOME 9,705,394  14,223,914  (4,518,520 ) (32 )% 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)     
Investment Earnings 3,228,716  3,254,997  (26,281 ) (1 )% 

Net Increase (Decrease) in FV of Investments 2,898,604  1,543,887  1,354,717  88 % 

Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Assets (130,830 ) (81,847 ) (48,983 ) 60 % 

Amortization of Bond/note Issuance Costs (163,979 ) (172,341 ) 8,362  (5 )% 

Interest Expense (9,570,216 ) (9,926,913 ) 356,697  (4 )% 

Other Nonoperating Revenue —  19  (19 ) (100 )% 

Other Nonoperating Expense —  (222,801 ) 222,801  (100 )% 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (3,737,705 ) (5,604,999 ) 1,867,294  (33 )% 

Gain (Loss) Before Capital Contributions 5,967,689  8,618,915  (2,651,226 ) (31 )% 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS     
Grants (20 ) 331,116  (331,136 ) (100 )% 

Water Meter Retrofit Program —  994,706  (994,706 ) (100 )% 

Water Resource Sustainability Program 1,159,771  319,026  840,745  264 % 

Developer Infrastructure Contributions 84,627  161,233  (76,606 ) (48 )% 

Developer Will-serve Contributions (Net of Refunds) 3,673,848  3,930,146  (256,298 ) (7 )% 

Developer Capital Contributions - Other 6,186,680  4,375,211  1,811,469  41 % 

Developer Facility Charges (Net of Refunds) 7,717,577  6,425,893  1,291,684  20 % 

Contributions from Others 343,630  —  343,630  — % 

Net Capital Contributions 19,166,113  16,537,331  2,628,782  16 % 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION $ 25,133,802  $ 25,156,246  $ (22,444 ) — % 
 



05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A 

  Page 1 of 2 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

TO: Board of Directors 
THRU: Mark Foree, General Manager  
FROM: Michele Sullivan, Chief Financial Officer  
 Matt Bowman, Financial Controller 
DATE: May 11, 2020 
SUBJECT: Discussion and action on request for adoption of Resolution No. 285: A 

resolution to adopt the final budget for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2021 
and the 2021-2025 Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan 

 
 
Recommendation  
That the TMWA Board approve the proposed Final Budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2021 and direct staff to file the adopted Final Budget and related 2021-2025 Capital 
Improvement Plan with the State of Nevada Department of Taxation as required by statute.  
 
Summary  
TMWA has prepared the proposed Final Budget for consideration and approval by the TMWA 
Board.  Changes to the tentative budget presented originally at the April 10, 2020 board meeting 
result in a decrease to change in net position of $1.0m.  This is due to the deferral of the May 
2020 rate increase of 2.5% and reduced hydroelectric revenue. There were changes to the timing 
of spend in CIP over the next five years, but the total spend remains at $229.1m. Changes to FY 
2021 are discussed in more detail below.    
 
Discussion  
Attachments A and B show comparisons between the proposed Final Budget, the Revised 
Tentative Budget and the Tentative budget. The Tentative budget reflects the budget prepared prior 
to the COVID-19 Pandemic. In March 2020, following the Governor’s declaration of a state of 
emergency, TMWA staff modified the Tentative budget based on estimated financial impacts of 
the Pandemic. The Revised Tentative budget was approved by this Board on April 10th, 2020. Staff 
has further modified the budget to include reductions in water sales revenue and hydroelectric 
revenue. Following the Board’s election to defer a 2.5% rate increase scheduled for May 2020, to 
no earlier than September 2020, staff decreased water sales by $0.6m related to the delay effect 
for July and August, 2020, and assumed implementation of the increase in September, 2020.  
Hydroelectric revenue is reduced due to failure of a flume at the Washoe plant which will not be 
repaired until late fall, 2020. 
 
 



05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A 

  Page 2 of 2 

A draft CIP document was presented at the April 10, 2020 board meeting. The final CIP 
document is accompanying this report in Attachment D.  Since the revised tentative budget was 
presented to the Board in April 2020 the only change was to increase the Spanish Springs Main 
Replacement project by $1.0 million in FY21 due to $120 thousand of additional costs to 
improve the emergency connection to Sky Ranch, $290 thousand in additional costs for 
pavement restoration and the remaining $590 thousand due to continuing escalation of 
construction costs. This increase is offset by reducing the general streets and highways budget in 
FY22 and FY23 by $500 thousand each, leaving customer rate funded projects unchanged over 
the five-year plan.  
 
For cash flow, Attachment C, due to reductions in revenue and an increase in capital spending in 
FY 2021, ending cash is expected to be lower at the end of Fiscal Year 2021 by $2.0 million 
compared to the Revised Tentative Budget. 
 



Page 1 of 2 

TRUCKEE MEADOWS WATER AUTHORITY 
(TMWA) 

RESOLUTION NO. 285 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE FINAL BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING 
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 

THE 2021-2025 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN FOR THE 
TRUCKEE MEADOWS WATER AUTHORITY AFTER PUBLIC HEARING 

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 354.596, TMWA is required to hold a public 
hearing on its tentative budget to allow interested persons to be heard; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 354.596, TMWA scheduled and held a public 
hearing on the tentative budget and Capital Improvement Plan as prescribed on May 
21, 2020, the fourth Thursday in May; and 

WHEREAS, the tentative budget and Capital Improvement Plan have been 
presented to the interested public and the Board; and  

WHEREAS, the Board has considered and approved the revisions to the 
tentative budget and Capital Improvement Plan and has heard and considered 
comments from the public. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Truckee 
Meadows Water Authority to adopt the tentative budget as the final budget for the fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2021 and adopt the 2021-2025 Capital Improvement Plan and to 
direct staff to submit the final budget and Capital Improvement Plan to the State of 
Nevada Department of Taxation. 

Upon motion of ______________, seconded by ______________________, the 
foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted on May 21, 2020 by the following vote of 
the Board: 

Ayes:_________________________________________________________________ 

Nays:_________________________________________________________________ 

Abstain: ___________________________ Absent: _____________________________ 

Approved:  _______________________ 

______________________________________ 
Vaughn Hartung, Chairman 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Page 2 of 2 
 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority 
Resolution 285 (continued) 
 
 
STATE OF NEVADA, ) 
    :   ss. 
COUNTY OF WASHOE. ) 
 
 On this 21st day of May, 2020, Vaughn Hartung, Chairman of the Board of 
Truckee Meadows Water Authority, personally appeared before me, a Notary Public in 
and for said County and State, and acknowledged that he executed the above 
instrument freely and voluntarily and for the purposes therein mentioned. 
 
 
 
      _________________________________ 
               Notary Public 

 
 
 
 
 
  

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



(Proposed) 
Final Budget 

2021
Rev. Budget 

2021
Tent. Budget 

2021
Fin - Rev 

Variance $
Fin - Tent 

Variance $

102,260,229$  102,902,366$  106,659,742$  (642,137)$     A (3,757,376)$     C
3,193,880    3,512,784    3,512,784    (318,904)    B -  
2,800,120    2,800,120    2,595,902    - 204,218 D

108,254,229  109,215,270  112,768,428  (961,041)    (3,553,158)

24,563,727   24,563,727   25,082,354   - (518,627)  E
10,661,572   10,661,572   12,290,946   - (1,629,374) F
31,419,113   31,419,113   32,409,467   - (990,354)  G

66,644,412   66,644,412   69,782,767   - (3,138,355)

33,518,852   33,518,852   33,518,852   - -

100,163,264  100,163,264  103,301,619  - (3,138,355)

8,090,965    9,052,007    9,466,809    (961,041)    (414,802)    

2,854,243    2,854,243    2,854,243    -  -  
(87,400)    (87,400)    (87,400)    -  -  

(12,514,133)   (12,514,133)   (12,514,133)   -  -  

(9,747,290)  (9,747,290)  (9,747,290)  -  -  

(1,656,325)  (695,284)    (280,481)    (961,041)    (414,802)    

1,900,000    1,900,000    1,900,000    -  -  
869,696   869,696   869,696   -  -  

11,226,546   11,226,546   13,335,614   - (2,109,068) H
4,185,412    4,185,412    4,185,412    - -

10,242,156   10,242,156   11,710,371   - (1,468,215) I
5,998,608    5,998,608    7,498,260    - (1,499,652) I

275,000   275,000   275,000   - -

34,697,418   34,697,418   39,774,353   - (5,076,935)

33,041,093   34,002,134   39,493,871   (961,041)    (5,491,737)  

760,033,398  760,033,398  760,033,398  -  -  

793,074,490$  794,035,532$  799,527,269$  (961,041)$     (5,491,737)$     

A

B Reduced revenue due to flume failure at the Washoe Hydroelectric Plant.

C

D Other operating sales are reduced $0.2 million due to lower projected new business fees collected, offset by higher late fees and call-out charges.

E Wages are reduced by $0.5 million in the revised budget due to deferring headcount additions indefinitely.

F

G

H Developer dedicated infrastructure is expected to be lower by $2.1 million due to slowing of the economy.  This is a non cash item.

I

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Area Fees, Supply and Treatment Fees, and Storage Fees are all expected to be lower by 25% due to uncertain economic conditions, resulting in a decrease of $3.0 
million in developer contributions.

Services and supplies expenses were reduced by $ 1.0 million. $0.7 million of this reduction is due to lower chemical and electric power costs (based on expected 
lower use). Various other cuts across several departments make up the remaining $0.3 million.

TRUCKEE MEADOWS WATER AUTHORITY
Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

(Proposed) Final Budget

Net Capital Contributions

Developer Infrastructure Contributions
Developer Will-serve Contributions (Net of Refunds)
Developer Capital Contributions - Other
Developer Facility Charges (Net of Refunds)
Contributions from Others

Grants
Water Resource Sustainability Program

Benefits expense was reduced by $1.6 million, $0.2 million due to reduced headcount, and the remainder due to removal of an estimate for noncash PERS 
adjustment.

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Debt Issuance Costs
Interest Expense

NET POSITION, END OF PERIOD

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Decrease due to the rate increase delay (presumed implementation in September).

In the revised budget, water sales are lower by $3.8 million.  Commercial services are projected to decrease by 15% for the first half of FY2021, and 10% in the second 
half of the fiscal year.  This decrease of $3.25 million in revenue is in line with reductions seen in the last recession during 2008 to 2010.  In addition, an estimate for 
bad debt of $0.5 million is assumed based on economic conditions resulting from the pandemic.

Gain (Loss) Before Capital Contributions

NET POSITION, BEGINNING PERIOD

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment Earnings

Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

OPERATING INCOME

Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies

Total Operating Expenses Before Depreciation

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and Wages

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Water Sales
Hydroelectric Sales
Other Operating Sales

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A
Attachment A

Page 1 of 3



(Proposed) Final 
Budget 2021

Final Budget 
2020

Actual Forecast 
2020

21Fin - 20B 
Variance $

21Fin - 20B 
Variance %

102,260,229$   102,706,086$   99,045,757$     1 (445,857)$    0%
3,193,880  3,664,180  3,273,562  2 (470,300)   -13%
2,800,120  3,320,950  2,716,585  (520,830)   -16% A

108,254,229   109,691,216   105,035,904   (1,436,987)  -1%

24,563,727  23,183,489  22,827,355  1,380,238    6%
10,661,572  12,324,771  10,121,942  (1,663,199)  -13% B
31,419,113  31,125,499  29,762,699  293,614  1%

66,644,412  66,633,759  62,711,996  10,653  0%

33,518,852  33,136,228  32,966,138  382,625  1%

100,163,264   99,769,986  95,678,134  393,278  0%

8,090,965  9,921,230  9,357,770  (1,830,265)  -18%

2,854,243  3,409,815  4,080,716  (555,572)   -16% C
(87,400)   (190,800)  (190,800)  103,400  -54% D

(12,514,133)   (13,052,442)   (13,052,442)   538,308  -4%

(9,747,290)   (9,833,427)   (9,162,526)   86,136  -1%

(1,656,325)   87,803  195,244   (1,744,129)  -1986%

1,900,000  1,937,500  - (37,500) -2%
869,696   926,425   1,390,771  (56,729) -6%

11,226,546  15,768,318  15,768,318  (4,541,772)  -29% E
4,185,412  5,067,536  5,067,536  (882,124)   -17% E

10,242,156  6,697,000  7,860,930  3,545,156    53% F
5,998,608  8,517,248  9,846,889  (2,518,640)  -30% E

275,000   - 343,630 275,000  -

34,697,418  38,914,027  40,278,074 (4,216,609)  -11%

33,041,093  39,001,830  40,473,318  (5,960,738)  -15%

760,033,398   602,342,294   602,342,294   157,691,104  26%

793,074,490$   641,344,124$   642,815,612$   151,730,366$   24%

1 FY 2020 forecast includes reduced Q4 commercial sales of $855k in light of the Pandemic.

2 Decrease in hydroelectric revenue due to flume failure at Washoe and also lower than expected river flows.

A Decrease in other operating sales due to lower new business fees

B

C Lower investment income due to lower cash balances and lower interest rates.

D Lower debt issuance costs due to lower principal balance in Commercial Paper.

E

F

TRUCKEE MEADOWS WATER AUTHORITY

Decrease in employee benefits is primarily due to $2.2m budgeted in FY 2020 for PERS amortization of deferred outflows (non-cash). This is not budgeted in FY 2021.

Decreases in developer contributions, including will-serve sales due to expected slowing in growth both due to the Pandemic but also we've seen slowing in growth 
"pre" Pandemic.

Increase is due to direct developer contributions of $3.9m related to two specific projects (Stonegate BPS and Kinglet BPS). These payments remain in the FY 2021 
budget.

(Proposed) Final Budget
Comparative Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Water Sales
Hydroelectric Sales
Other Operating Sales

Total Operating Revenues

Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies

Total Operating Expenses Before Depreciation

Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

OPERATING INCOME

Gain (Loss) Before Capital Contributions

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment Earnings
Debt Issuance Costs
Interest Expense

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, BEGINNING PERIOD

NET POSITION, END OF PERIOD

Developer Capital Contributions - Other
Developer Facility Charges (Net of Refunds)
Contributions from Others

Net Capital Contributions

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Grants
Water Resource Sustainability Program
Developer Infrastructure Contributions
Developer Will-serve Contributions (Net of Refunds)

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A
Attachment B

Page 2 of 3



 (Proposed) Final 
Budget 2021 

 Rev. Budget 
2021 

 Final Budget 
2020 

Fin - Rev 
Variance $

Fin - Rev 
Variance %

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received From Customers 108,254,229$      109,215,270$      109,691,216$      (961,041)$     -1%
Cash Paid to Employees (35,225,299)  (35,225,299)  (33,274,359)  -  0%
Cash Paid to Suppliers (31,419,113)  (31,419,113)  (31,125,499)  -  0%

Net Cash From Operating Activities 41,609,817   42,570,859   45,291,358   (961,041)   -2%

CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition & Construction of Capital Assets (54,720,000)  (53,720,000)  (58,466,000)  (1,000,000)  2%
Interest Paid on Financing (17,165,004)  (17,165,004)  (17,765,145)  -  0%
Principal Paid on Financing (13,460,867)  (13,460,867)  (2,829,056)  -  0%
Proceeds from Capital Debt Issuance -  -  -  -
Redemptions of Commercial Paper Notes (5,000,000)  (5,000,000)  (5,000,000)  -  0%
Proceeds from Refunding Bonds -  -
Proceeds Transferred to Refunding/Redemption Escrow -  -
Proceeds (Spending) from (on) Capital Asset Disposal -  -
Contributions for Water Resource Sustainability Program 869,696   869,696   926,425   -  0%
Contributions From Developers-Will-Serve Letters 4,185,412   4,185,412   5,067,536   -  0%
Contributions from Developers - Other 10,242,156   10,242,156   6,697,000   -  0%
Contributions from Developers - Facility Charges 5,998,608   5,998,608   8,517,248   -  0%
Grants 2,401,825   2,401,825   1,937,500   -  0%
Bond/Note Issuance Costs (87,400)   (87,400)   (190,800)   -  0%

Net Cash Used For Capital & Relating Financing Activities (66,735,574)    (65,735,574)  (61,105,292)  (1,000,000)  2%

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received 2,854,243   2,854,243   3,409,815   -  0%

Net Cash From Investing Activities 2,854,243   2,854,243   3,409,815   -  0%

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (22,271,514)  (20,310,472)  (12,404,119)  (1,961,041)  10%

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING PERIOD 198,132,592   198,132,592   197,000,000   -  0%

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD 175,861,078$      177,822,120$      184,595,881$      (1,961,041)$    -1%

TRUCKEE MEADOWS WATER AUTHORITY
Statements of Cash Flows
(Proposed) Final Budget

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A
Attachment C

Page 3 of 3



Proposed
FY FY FY FY FY Five Year

TMWA 5 Year Draft Capital Plan Summary 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025  CIP Total

Line Priority Funding Raw Water Supply Improvements
1 2 CR Highland Canal-Upgrades-Downstream 225 225 225 225 225 1,125
2 1 CR Highland Canal-Upgrades-Diversion to Chalk Bluff 1,500 300 300 100 100 2,300
3 1 CR TROA Drought Storage / Implementation 50 50 50 50 50 250
4 2 CR Donner Lake Outlet Improvements Phase 2 150 150
5 2 DF & SF IPR Demonstration Facility 300 3,500 1,200 5,000
6 2,075 4,225 1,775 375 375 8,825
7 Ground Water Supply Improvements
8 1 CR Well Rehabilitation Improvements 200 200 200 200 200 1,000
9 1 DF Double Diamond #5 and Equipping 50 450 60 1,140 1,700

10 2 DF Callamont Well South Equipping 60 1,140 1,200
11 2 CR Air Guard Well Replacement Equipping 1,100 1,100
12 2 CR Sunrise Well #3 Replacement 100 100
13 2 CR Lemmon Valley Well #8 Replacement 0 250 250
14 1 CR Well Fix & Finish 200 200 200 200 200 1,000
15 2 CR Well Plugging / Conversion 120 120
16 1 CR NDEP Monitoring Wells 200 200
17 1 CR Thomas Creek Well Replacement and Spring Creek 5 750 500 1,250
18 2 CR Truckee Canyon Well 3 Site Modifications 50 50
19 1 CR & SF Well Head TTHM  Mitigation 500 500 500 500 500 2,500
20 1 CR & SF Spring Creek Well  #7 Recharge 75 425 500
21 1 CR Kietzke, High, Morrill PCE Treatment 50 50
22 2 DF Callamont Well North Equipping 60 1,140 1,200
23 2 DF Spring Creek Well #8 - Donovan 30 910 1,060 2,000
24 1 CR Fish Springs Ranch TDS Monitoring Wells 300 300
25 1 CR Fish Springs Ranch Weather Station 10 10
26 1 CR Geothermal Fluid Monitoring Well 100 100
27 Total Ground Water 2,705 2,365 3,010 4,260 2,290 14,630
28
29 Treatment Plant Improvements
30 1 CR Chalk Bluff Plant Improvements 650 750 550 365 360 2,675
31 1 CR Glendale Treatment Plant Improvements 400 375 200 1,000 375 2,350
32 1 CR Chalk Bluff Filter Underdrains 800 800 800 800 800 4,000
33 1 CR Glendale Filter Underdrains 500 500 1,000
34 3 CR Chalk Bluff Lighting Upgrade 350 350
35 3 CR Glendale Lighting Upgrade 250 250
36 2 CR Orr Ditch Pump Station Rehab 200 5,000 5,000 10,200
37 1 CR Truckee Canyon Water Treatment  Improvements 100 100 20 20 20 260
38 1 CR Lightning W Treatment Improvements 60 20 20 20 150 270
39 1 CR SCADA Rehab / Plant Operating Software 800 500 500 1,800
40 1 CR & DF Mount Rose Surface Water Treatment Plant 4,000 4,000
41 2 CR Longley Plant  HV 3 and HV 4 Treatment Improvements 200 900 400 1,500
42 2 CR Spanish Springs Nitrate Treatment Facility 300 500 500 1,300
43 1 CR Chalk Bluff Electrical System Upgrades 150 150
44 Total Treatment Plant Improvements 7,660 9,195 8,340 2,705 2,205 30,105
45
46 Pressure Improvements
47 1 CR Pressure Regulators Rehabilitation 1,000 500 500 500 2,500
48 1 CR Pressure Reducing Valve ( Roll Seal) Removal 400 400
49 2 CR Land Acquisitions 250 250 250 250 250 1,250
50 2 CR Desert Fox Standby Generator 150 150
51 1 DF Disc Drive Low Head Pump Station and Mains 1,900 1,900 3,800
52 1 DF Longley Booster Pump Station / Double R Capacity Increase 250 1,000 1,250
53 3 CR Pump Station Oversizing 100 100 100 100 100 500
54 1 CR Pump Station Rebuilds, Rehabilitations 1,200 250 250 250 250 2,200
55 2 CR & DF Sullivan #2 Booster Pump Station  Replacement 0 80 80
56 1 CR Mount Rose Well #3 Pump Station Improvements 250 250
57 3 CR Standby Generator Improvements 150 150 150 150 150 750
58 2 CR Idlewild Booster Pump Station Improvements 100 1,200 1,300
59 1 DF Raleigh to Fish Springs Booster Pump Station 300 1,600 1,900
60 2 CR & DF Southwest Pump Zone Consolidation Phase 1 330 6,330 6,660
61 2 CR Spanish Springs #1 Pump Zone Intertie 600 600
62 1 DF STMGID Tank #4 Booster Pump Station / Transmission Line 550 550
63 2 DF Wildwood 2 Pressure Regulating Station Scada Control 100 100
64 2 CR & DF Southwest Pump Zone Consolidation Phase 2 50 990 1,040
65 2 CR Sierra Summit-Kohl's Zone Consolidation 380 400 780
66 2 CR Wild Mustang Regulated Pressure Zone 50 380 430
67 1 CR Twin Lakes Booster Pump Station 400 400
68 2 CR Thomas Creek #4 PRS 170 170
69 1 CR Kings Row 1 Booster Pump Station 50 50
70 2 DF Spring Creek Tanks #3&4 Booster Pump Station Modifications 600 600
71 2 DF Lazy 5 Low Head Pump Station & Mains 150 1,200 1,350
72 1 DR Common (Stonegate) Booster Pump Station 2,500 2,500
73 2 CR Caughlin 5C Pump and Motor Replacement 150 150
74 1 DR Kinglet Pump Station 1,400 1,400
75 2 CR South Hills BPS Replacement 70 3,760 490 4,320
76 2 CR Sierra Highlands PRS 210 210
77 Total Pressure Improvements 9,600 7,080 10,830 7,550 2,580 37,640
78
79 Water Main-Distribution-Service Line Improvements
80 1 CR Street & Highway Main Replacements 4,500 4,500 4,500 5,000 5,000 23,500
81 2 CR Spring Creek South Zone Conversion 1,500 1,500
82 2 CR Booth, Sharon Way, Monroe 24" Main Replacements 1,800 1,100 2,200 5,100
83 1 DF South Virginia 24" Main (Kumle to Peckham) 1,000 1,000
84 2 CR North East Sparks Tank Feeder Main Relocation 975 975
85 2 CR Goldeneye Parkway Main Tie and Check Valve 180 180
86 2 DF Trademark 14" Main Tie 350 350
87 2 CR Spanish Springs Main Replacement 2,300 2,300
88 2 CR Mt Rose Tank 1 Fire Flow Improvements 400 570 970
89 2 CR & DF Stead Golf Course Main Replacement 170 2,400 2,570
90 3 CR General Waterline Extensions 100 100 100 100 100 500
91 1 DF North-East Sparks Feeder Main Ph. 8 50 2,050 2,100
92 1 DF Mount Rose 5 Distribution / Pressure Improvements 750 750
93 2 DF Goldenrod Main 50 1,200 1,250
94 1 DF Boomtown Water System Improvements 2,500 2,500
95 1 DF Boomtown to TMWA Connection 1,900 1,900
96 2 CR Lemmon Valley Sand Yard 530 530
97 2 CR & DF Sullivan #1 Main Tie & PRS 50 50
98 2 CR Montreux High Pressure ACP Replacement 520 1,060 1,580
99 2 CR 2nd Galena Creek Main Crossing 40 560 600

100 2 CR Off-River Supply Improvements - STM 50 1,050 1,100
101 2 CR Off-River Supply Improvements - NVS Pump Station 400 400
102 2 CR Somersett #6 Main Tie & PRS 280 280
103 1 DF Stonebrook West Main Oversizing 450 450
104 1 CR 2025 Fire Flow Improvements - Gravity <1,000 GPM 550 550
105 1 CR 2025 Fire Flow Improvements - North Valleys <1,000 GPM 940 940

Truckee Meadows Water Authority
Capital Improvement Plan FY 2021-2025

Draft

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A
Attachment D

Page 1 of 2



Proposed
FY FY FY FY FY Five Year

TMWA 5 Year Draft Capital Plan Summary 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025  CIP Total
106 2 DF Deluchi to Airway Main Tie 440 440
107 1 DF SE Sparks Feeder Main Phase 1 50 4,450 4,500
108 1 DF South Truckee Meadows Capacity Improvements 430 670 1,100
109 1 CR Stewart-Taylor Main Replacements 2,000 2,000
110 1 CR Roberts-Wilson-Moran Main Replacements 2,340 2,340
111 2 CR Verdi Hydro Main Extension 320 320
112 Total Water Main-Distribution-Service Line Improvements 19,770 9,575 9,690 11,040 14,550 64,625
113
114 Potable Water Storage Improvements
115 1 CR & DF Sun Valley #2 Tank 420 420
116 2 DF Fish Springs Terminal Tank #2 40 40
117 1 CR Storage Tank Recoats; Access; Drainage Improvements 900 900 900 900 900 4,500
118 2 CR & DF Highland Reservoir Tank 100 5,000 2,700 7,800
119 1 CR & DF STMGID Tank East  Zone 11 Tank 100 2,975 3,075
120 1 CR Lightning W Tank 2 400 400
121 1 CR & DF US 40 Tank & Feeder Main 170 300 2,730 3,200
122 2 CR & DF Spanish Springs Altitude Valves (SC6 & DS3) 300 300
123 1 CR Terminal Tank Generator 200 200
124 2 CR Hidden Valley Tank Altitude Valve 350 350
125 Total Potable Water Storage Improvements 1,500 9,595 4,200 3,630 1,360 20,285
126
127 Hydroelectric Improvements
128 2 CR Forebay, Diversion, and Canal Improvements 100 100 100 100 100 500
129 3 CR Flume Rehabilitation 150 150 300
130 3 CR Hydro Plant Generator Rewinds 650 650 650 1,950
131 1 CR Washoe Flume Reconstruction 50 1,450 1,500
132 3 IS Orr Ditch Hydro Facility 1,100 4,000 500 5,600
133 1 CR Washoe Flume Reconstruction Boxes 1-68 1,350 1,350
134 Hydroelectric Improvements 2,750 6,350 1,250 750 100 11,200
135
136 Customer Service Outlays
137 3 CR Meter Reading Equipment 60 75 135
138 2 DF New Business Meters 100 100 100 100 100 500
139 1 CR Mueller Pit Replacements former Washoe County 125 125 125 125 125 625
140 2 CR Galvanized / Poly Service Line Replacements 250 250 250 250 250 1,250
141 1 CR & MR AMI Automated Meter Infrastructure 2,100 6,000 6,000 6,000 1,000 21,100
142 Total Customer Service Outlays 2,575 6,535 6,475 6,550 1,475 23,610
143
144 Administrative Outlays
145 2 CR GIS / GPS System Mapping Equipment 20 20 40
146 2 CR IT Server Hardware 180 30 45 30 285
147 2 CR IT Network Security Upgrades 45 160 70 10 285
148 2 CR IT Physical Access Security Upgrades 60 60 60 60 240
149 2 CR Printer / Scanner Replacement 40 50 100 190
150 3 CR Crew Trucks / Vehicles 650 750 750 850 950 3,950
151 1 CR Emergency Response Projects 150 150 150 150 150 750
152 1 CR CIS System Replacement 1,000 1,000
153 1 CR Emergency Operations Annex  Design / Construction 0 250 250 500
154 2 CR System Wide Asphalt Rehabilitation 250 200 200 200 200 1,050
155 1 CR Physical Access Control System Upgrade 200 200
156 1 CR CSR Work Area Security Upgrade 360 360
157 1 CR Physical Site Security Improvements 200 150 100 100 100 650
158 1 CR Medeco Intelligent Key System 150 100 100 350

159 Total Administrative Outlays 3,135 1,720 1,475 1,870 1,650 9,850
160
161 Total Capital Spending Outlays 51,770 56,640 47,045 38,730 26,585 220,770
162
163 Special Projects Funded by Development
164 2 MR Water Meter Retrofits 100 100 100 100 100 500
165 3 DF Water Right Purchases 150 150 300 300 300 1,200
166
167 Total Special Projects Funded by Development 250 250 400 400 400 1,700
168
169 Total Projected Capital Spending Including Projects Funded By Development 52,020 56,890 47,445 39,130 26,985 222,470

170

171 Former STMGID System Improvements
172 2 STMGID STMGID Well Fix & Finish 150 150 150 150 150 750
173 1 STMGID STMGID Conjunctive Use Facilities 1,600 500 2,100
174 1 STMGID STMGID Mueller Pit Replacements 50 0 50
175 1 STMGID STMGID NAC Deficiencies - Saddlehorn, Upper Toll,  STMGID East 100 100 1,800 2,000
176 1 STMGID STMGID NAC Deficiencies Ph2  - Sioux Trail, Geiger Grade, Westwind Cr 800 800
177 1 STMGID STMGID Well #1 Re Drill and Equipping 900 900
178 Total Former STMGID Capital Spending - Allocated Funding 2,700 1,650 1,950 150 150 6,600
179
180 Total Projected Capital Spending Including STMGID - Allocated Funding 54,720 58,540 49,395 39,280 27,135 229,070

FY FY FY FY FY Five Year
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025  CIP Total

Customer Rates 32,472 34,983 34,266 32,875 19,210 153,806
Developer Fees 11,910 11,983 11,729 5,905 7,425 48,952
Developer Reimbursements 3,900 0 0 0 0 3,900
STMGID Reserve Funds 2,700 1,650 1,950 150 150 6,600
Water Meter Retrofit / Developer Fees 2,200 3,711 100 100 100 6,211
Sustainability 438 2,213 850 250 250 4,001
Farad Insurance Settlement - Applied to Orr Ditch Hydro project 1,100 4,000 500 0 0 5,600
Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 54,720 58,540 49,395 39,280 27,135 229,070

Check Total 0 0 0 0 0 0

54,720    58,540    49,395    39,280    27,135    229,070    
-  -  -  -  -  -  

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A

Page 2 of 2



Five Year Capital Improvement Plan
Fiscal Year 2021 - 2025

Truckee Meadows Water Authority is a not-for-profit, community-owned water utility,overseen 
by elected officials and citizen appointees from Reno, Sparks, and Washoe County

June 2020

Photo Of: 3ressure Reducing Station at Nectar WayPhoto By: Angel Lacroix, 70WA Engineer

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Table of Contents
INTRODUCTION 1
DEFINITIONS 5
PRIORITIZATION OF PROJECT/OUTLAYS 6
FUNDING of CAPITAL SPENDING 7
FISCAL YEAR 2021 CAPITAL SPENDING - THE CAPITAL BUDGET 10
SUMMARY OF PROJECTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2021 BUDGET 10
CAPITAL EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION 14
PRELIMINARY FUNDING PLAN FUNDING SOURCES 15
FUNDING BY PRIORITY 16
PROJECT FUNCTIONS AND DESCRIPTIONS 17
RAW WATER SUPPLY IMPROVEMENTS Summary 17

Raw Water Supply Improvements Map 18
Highland Canal-Upgrades-Downstream 19
Highland Canal - Upgrades - Diversion to Chalk Bluff 20
TROA Drought Storage/Implementation 21
Donner Lake Outlet Improvements Phase 2 22
Advanced Purified Water Demonstration Facility 23

GROUND WATER SUPPLY IMPROVEMENTS Summary 24
Ground Water Supply Improvements Map 25
Well Rehabilitation Improvements 26
Double Diamond #5 Equipping and Blending Main 27
Callamont Well South Equipping 28
Air Guard Well Replacement Equipping 29
Sunrise Well #3 Replacement 30
Lemmon Valley Well #8 Replacement 31
Well Fix & Finish 32
Well Plugging / Conversion 33
NDEP Monitoring Wells 34
Thomas Creek Well & Spring Creek 5 Equipping 35
Truckee Canyon Well 3 Site Modification 36
Well Head TTHM Mitigation 37
Spring Creek Well #7 Recharge 38
Kietzke, High, Morrill PCE Treatment 39
Callamont Well North Equipping 40
Spring Creek Well #8 - Donovan 41
Fish Springs Ranch TDS Monitoring Wells 42
Fish Springs Ranch Weather Station 43
Geothermal Fluid Monitoring Well 44

TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS Summary 45
Treatment Plant Improvements Map 46
Chalk Bluff Treatment Plant Improvements 47
Glendale Treatment Plant Improvements 48
Chalk Bluff Filter Underdrains 49

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan
05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Glendale Filter Underdrains 50
Chalk Bluff Lighting Upgrade 51
Glendale Lighting Upgrade 52
Orr Ditch Pump Station Rehabilitation 53
Truckee Canyon Water Treatment Improvements 54
Lightning W Treatment Improvements 55
SCADA Rehab/Plant Operating Software 56
Mt. Rose Surface Water Treatment Plant 57
Longley Lane HV 3 & 4 Treatment Improvements 58
Spanish Springs Nitrate Treatment Facility 59
Chalk Bluff Electrical System Upgrades 60

DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM PRESSURE IMPROVEMENTS Summary 61
Pressure Improvements Map 63
Pressure Regulators Rehabilitation 64
Pressure Reducing Valve (Roll Seal) Removal 65
Land Acquisitions 66
Desert Fox Standby Generator 67
Disc Drive Low Head Pump Station & Mains 68
Longley Booster Pump Station/ Double R Capacity Increase 69
Pump Station Oversizing 70
Pump Station Rebuilds, Rehabilitations 71
Sullivan #2 Booster Pump Station Replacement 72
Mount Rose Well #3 Pump Station Improvements 73
Standby Generator Improvements 74
Idlewild Booster Pump Station Improvements 75
Raleigh-Fish Springs Booster Pump Station 76
South-West Reno Pump Zone Consolidation Phase 1 77
Spanish Springs #1 Pressure Zone Intertie 78
STMGID Tank #4 Booster Pump Station / Transmission Line 79
Wildwood Pressure Regulating Station SCADA Control 80
South-West Pump Zone Consolidation Phase 2 81
Sierra Summit-Kohl's Zone Consolidation 82
Wild Mustang Regulated Pressure Zone 83
Twin Lakes Booster Pump Station 84
Thomas Creek #4 Pressure Regulating Station 85
Kings Row 1 Booster Pump Station 86
Spring Creek Tanks #3 & 4 Booster Pump Station Modifications 87
Lazy 5 Low Head Pump Station & Mains 88
Common (Stonegate) Booster Pump Station 89
Caughlin 5C Pump and Motor Replacement 90
Kinglet Pump Station 91
South Hills BPS Replacement 92
Sierra Highlands PRS 93

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan
05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



WATER MAIN DISTRIBUTION & SERVICE LINE IMPROVEMENTS Summary 94
Water Main Distribution Map 96
Street & Highway Main Replacements 97
Spring Creek South Zone Conversion 98
Booth, Sharon Way, Monroe 24" Main Replacements 99
South Virginia 24" Main (Kumle to Peckham) 100
North-East Sparks Tank Feeder Main Relocation 101
Goldeneye Parkway Main & CV Tie 102
Trademark 14" Main Tie 103
Spanish Springs Main Replacement 104
Mount Rose Tank 1 Fire Flow Improvement 105
Stead Golf Course Main Replacement 106
General Waterline Extensions 107
North-East Sparks Feeder Main Phase 8 108
Mount Rose 5 Distribution and Pressure Improvements 109
Goldenrod Main 110
Boomtown Water System Improvements 111
Boomtown to TMWA Connection 112
Lemmon Valley Sand Yard 113
Sullivan #1 Main Tie & Pressure Regulator Station 114
Montreux High Pressure ACP Replacement 115
2nd Galena Creek Main Crossing 116
Off-River Supply Improvements - South Truckee Meadows 117
Off-River Supply Improvements - North Virginia-Stead Pump Station 118
Somersett #6 Main Tie & Pressure Regulator Station 119
Stonebrook West Main Oversizing 120
2025 Fire Flow Improvements - Gravity < 1,000 GPM  121
2025 Fire Flow Improvements - North Valleys < 1,000 GPM  122
Deluchi to Airway Main Tie 123
South-East Sparks Feeder Main Phase 1 124
South Truckee Meadows Capacity Improvements 125
Stewart-Taylor Main Replacements 126
Roberts-Wilson-Moran Main Replacements 127
Verdi Hydro Main Extension 128

POTABLE WATER STORAGE IMPROVEMENTS Summary 129
Potable Water Storage Improvements Map 130
Sun Valley #2 Tank 131
Fish Springs Terminal Tank #2 132
Storage Tank Recoats; Access; Drainage Improvements 133
Highland Reservoir Tank 134
STMGID Tank East (Zone 11 Tank) 135
Lightning W Tank 2 136
US 40 Tank & Feeder Main 137
Spanish Springs Altitude Valves 138

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan
05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Terminal Tank Generator 139
Hidden Valley Tank Altitude Valve 140

HYDROELECTRIC IMPROVEMENTS Summary 141
Hydroelectric Map 142
Forebay, Diversion, and Canal Improvements 143
Flume Rehabilitation 144
Hydro Plant Generator Rewinds 145
Washoe Flume Reconstruction 146
Orr Ditch Hydro Facility 147
Washoe Flume Reconstruction Boxes 1-68 148

CUSTOMER SERVICE OUTLAYS Summary 149
Customer Service Area Map 150
Meter Reading Equipment 151
New Business Meters 152
Mueller Pit Replacements Former Washoe County 153
Galvanized/Poly Service Line Replacements 154
AMI Automated Meter Infrastructure 155

ADMINISTRATIVE OUTLAYS Summary 156
Administrative Outlays Map 157
GIS/GPS System Mapping Equipment 158
IT Server Hardware 159
IT Network Security Upgrades 160
IT Physical Security Upgrades 161
Printer/Scanner Replacement 162
Crew Trucks/Vehicles 163
Emergency Response Projects 164
CIS System Replacement 165
Emergency Operations Annex-Design / Construction 166
System Wide Asphalt Rehabilitation 167
Physical Access Control System Upgrade 168
CSR Work Area Security Upgrade 169
Physical Site Security Improvements 170
Medeco Intelligent Key System 171

FORMER STMGID SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS Summary 172
STMGID Area Map 173
STMGID Well Fix & Finish 174
STMGID Conjunctive Use Facilities 175
STMGID Mueller Pit Replacements Former 176
NAC Deficiencies-Saddlehorn, Upper Toll Road, STMGID East 177
NAC Deficiencies Phase 2 - Sioux Trail, Geiger Grade, Westwind Circle 178
STMGID Well #1 Re-Drill and Equipping 179

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan
05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



INTRODUCTION

The Truckee Meadows Water Authority’s (TMWA’s) Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan
2021-2025 (CIP), describes all infrastructure construction and major capital outlays that will take
place between July 1, 2020 and June 30, 2025. Guidance for identifying and scheduling projects in
the CIP is provided by TMWA's 2015-2035 Water Facility Plan (WFP) and the 2016-2035 Water
Resource Plan (WRP). The 2020-2040 WRP Plan is currently being updated and expected to be
adopted by the Board in calendar year 2020. The updated Plans will reflect the acquisition of West
Reno Water Company, and other small connections in Verdi.

TMWA is a joint powers authority formed in November 2000, pursuant to a Cooperative Agreement
(as amended and restated as of February 3, 2010, the “Cooperative Agreement”) among the City
of Reno, Nevada (“Reno”), the City of Sparks, Nevada (“Sparks”) and Washoe County, Nevada
(the “County”). The Authority owns and operates a water system (the “Water System”) and develops,
manages and maintains supplies of water for the benefit of the Truckee Meadows communities. On
January 1, 2015, TMWA, the WCWU and STMGID consolidated to create a regional water system
under TMWA. TMWA has a total of 162 square miles of service area, which includes the cities of
Reno and Sparks and other surrounding populated areas of the County (except certain areas in the
vicinity of Lake Tahoe and other small areas bordering California). TMWA has no authority to
provide water service outside of its service area; however, may provide service in the future to
developments that are annexed into its service area. 

The CIP incorporates a comprehensive compilation of water system improvements for TMWA. A
major feature of the CIP is the construction of several projects that will expand the conjunctive use
of the region’s water resources. The philosophy behind conjunctive use of local water resources is
to maximize the use of surface water while preserving the integrity of groundwater resources which
are drawn upon during periods of persistently dry weather. Another aspect of the CIP is to expand
the Aquifer Storage and Recovery Program (ASR Program) which is the recharge of groundwater
basins with treated surface water, and explore the possibilities related to Advanced Purified Water
(APW). In addition, this CIP includes several major projects to extend limited water service to the
Verdi area, made possible by cost effective oversizing of developer main extensions. Full capacity
water service for the entire Verdi area will no be available until an additional $17.0 million of new
backbone water facilities are constructed.

The CIP constitutes an essential component in TMWA's system of planning, monitoring and
managing the activities of purveying water and generating hydroelectric power. The CIP is
incorporated into a broader, constantly-updated Five-Year Funding Plan (FP) for a comparable
period. This Funding Plan (FP) will determine adequate levels and sources of funding for projects
contained in the CIP.

The 2020-2024 FP indicates that TMWA can fund the CIP in light of a significant funding gap. This
situation is the result of substantial reductions in water demands resulting from the drought that
ended in the spring of 2017. Otherwise there appears to be adequate treasury and revenues from

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

1 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



various sources to fund operations, pay principal and interest on existing debt, and capital
improvements as presented in the CIP. 

The CIP includes total spending of $229.1 million with approximately 67.1% or $153.8 million
dedicated to upgrades or replacement of existing infrastructure, and approximately 21.4% or $49.0
million allocated to construction of new water system capacity projects, conjunctive use construction
projects, retrofit of remaining unmetered services, and potential opportunistic acquisition of water
rights. Construction and capital outlays associated with the former STMGID service area are
estimated to be approximately 2.9% or $6.6 million of total spending over fiscal years 2021-2025.
STMGID transferred reserves will not be enough to fund the next five years of capital improvements
in this category. STMGID Projects totaling $0.06 million have been included in customer funded
projects. Of the total projected spending over the next five years 6.8% or  $15.5 million is considered
contingency spending which is dependent on certain events occurring to trigger spending. The
$229.1 million in projected spending is grouped into broad categories of improvements and spending
outlays.  These categories are described below with detailed project descriptions to be found in the
Project Description Section.

Raw Water Supply Improvements contains 3.9% or approximately $8.8 million of total spending
in the CIP. Projects focus on improvements to the Highland Canal/Siphon raw water conveyance
infrastructure, upstream storage improvements for Donner Lakes where TMWA stores Privately-
Owned Stored Water (POSW) and expenses associated with the storage and implementation of the
Truckee River Operating Agreement (TROA). Construction of an APW Demonstration Facility is
also included in this category which will be built as a follow up to the OneWater NV advanced
purified water feasibility study, and will be a joint effort with other agencies. 

Ground Water Supply Improvements contains 6.4% or approximately $14.6 million of total
spending in the CIP. These projects focus on preserving existing well capacities, drilling and
equipping of new wells and at times complete replacement of existing wells.

Treatment Plant Improvements contains 13.1% or approximately $30.1 million of total spending
in the CIP. Construction of the Mt. Rose Surface Water Treatment Plant will be completed in fiscal
year 2021, and will provide additional critical conjunctive use water supplies on the Mt. Rose/
Galena Fan with water sourced from local creeks. The Orr Ditch pump station project will increase
redundancy and reliability by enhancing the Truckee River source of supply to the Chalk Bluff
Water Treatment Plant. Other spending in this category targets fix and finish projects with the
primary focus on the Chalk Bluff and Glendale Surface Water Treatment Plants located on the
Truckee River. Other improvements focus on satellite water system treatment upgrades and a
complete upgrade of the Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) system which
provides centralized automated system control and data storage for the distribution system and
treatment plants. 

Distribution System Pressure Improvements contains 16.4% or approximately $37.6 million of
total spending and is the most significant spending category in the CIP. This spending is bifurcated
into pressure improvements and water main and service line improvements. Pressure improvements

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

2 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



include pump station rebuilds and new construction, correction of pressure or fire flow deficiencies,
pressure regulating station rebuilds and new construction, as well as reconstruction of pressure
regulating valves. 

Water Main Distribution & Service Line Improvements contains 28.2% or approximately $64.6
million of total spending in the CIP. These improvements include replacement of aged water mains
reaching end of service life, installation of new mains for new and expanded service, water main
oversizing and extensions, off-river supply improvements, and two of the three major conjunctive
use projects to extend surface water supplies to the areas that rely heavily on year round groundwater
pumping. This last set of projects furthers the conjunctive use philosophy of water resource
management, and include Mount Rose 5 Distribution/Pressure Improvements, Boomtown water
system improvements, and STMGID Conjunctive Use Facilities ($2.1 million to be funded by
STMGID reserves).

Potable Water Storage Improvements contains 8.9% or approximately $20.3 million of total
spending in the CIP. These projects are comprised mainly of new treated water storage tank
construction to serve new and expanded service (STMGID Tank East Zone 11 Tank), some
replacement of existing treated water tank capacity as well as systematic recoating of treated water
tank interiors and exteriors to extend service life of these facilities.

Hydroelectric Improvements contains 4.9% or approximately $11.2 million of total spending in
the CIP. Included in this category is the new Orr Ditch Hydro Facility, which will generate
hydroelectric power for the Chalk Bluff Treatment Plant, and directly offset power costs at TMWA's
largest treatment plant. Other spending centers on the three run-of-river hydroelectric facilities
currently owned by TMWA. Efforts on these facilities focus primarily on flume, forebay, diversion
and canal improvements as well as equipment upgrades. 

Customer Service Outlays contains 10.3% or approximately $23.6 million of total spending in the
CIP. Spending in this category focuses on meter reading device replacements and meter replacement
if required. The principal spending in this category focuses on consolidating the meter system to
one format which will provide more frequent and automatic meter reading, and meter data
management.  Also, in this category is a spending provision for new business meters which is funded
by development. 

Administrative Outlays contains 4.3% or approximately $9.9 million of total spending in the CIP.
These outlays are primarily for Information Technology equipment, licenses, and hardware
replacements as required. Included in this category of spending are fleet upgrades for heavy and
light vehicles as well as excavation equipment. Included is the replacement of the Customer
Information Services (CIS) system in FY21, including a customer portal for water usage information
and bill payment.

Special Programs Funded by Development include outlays for water meter retrofit, and
opportunistic water rights purchases. They are separated from a presentation standpoint because in
the case of water right acquisitions, spending is currently driven by pricing opportunity. The

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

3 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



completion of the water meter retrofit project may occur during the current five-year planning
horizon , with very little opportunity to meter any existing unmetered services. These projects
comprise 0.7% or approximately $1.7 million of total spending in the CIP. 

Former STMGID System Improvements are separated from a presentation standpoint because
projects in this category are funded by the STMGID reserve, which TMWA acquired through the
acquisition of former STMGID. It contains 2.9% or approximately $6.6 million of total spending
in the CIP. Improvements in this category focus on conjunctive use, well replacement and
improvements, and tank recoats. Also as meter pit failures occur in the former STMGID water
system service areas those meter pits are converted to TMWA material standards. This reserve fund
is expected to be depleted by the end of the five year plan.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

4 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



DEFINITIONS

Capital Improvement Program Definitions

The Five-Year CIP is a planning and budgeting tool, which provides information about
TMWA’s infrastructure needs for a five-year time frame. Each year, the list of projects is
reviewed for cost and priority. New projects may be added and other projects delayed or
deleted entirely. Since most projects are mandatory or necessary, deletion of a project would
be rare with the exception of contingency spending. However, capital spending plans must
remain flexible, and it is often necessary to take revisions to the approved fiscal year’s CIP
back to the TMWA Board for approval. If construction or outlays can be deferred, TMWA
will defer spending in order to preserve cash reserves, regardless whether or not there are
difficult economic times. These decisions are made on a case by case basis. 

Generally, capital improvements/outlays are defined as physical assets, constructed or
purchased, that have a useful life of one year or longer and a cost of $5,000 or more.

Definition of Capital Outlays

"Capital Outlays," which are in TMWA's capital budget, include construction projects that
improve the life of current TMWA infrastructure, or are new additions to TMWA
infrastructure, as well as computer equipment and software, vehicles, and heavy equipment
needed to support TMWA's operations. These items are generally found in the Administrative
category of projects. For Customer Service category, these outlays involve meter
installations and related infrastructure, and acquiring meter reading equipment.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

5 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



PRIORITIZATION OF PROJECTS/OUTLAYS

TMWA may not have sufficient funding to meet all its capital needs each year or may divert funding
to meet unexpected capital improvements. If such conditions arise, projects are prioritized based
on the effect each project has on TMWA's ability to meet customer demand and maintain water
system reliability. TMWA’s Five-Year Funding Plan is used to analyze total spending, identify
various funding alternatives, and determine whether or not water rate adjustments will be required.

The priority categories represent a relative degree of need for any particular project and are described
below.

* PRIORITY 1 MANDATORY: These are considered absolutely required, and are the
highest priority of all capital projects. Mandatory projects include those in final design or
already under construction, or those required by legislation or regulation for protection of
public health and safety. These projects are generally found in the first fiscal year of the
2021-2025 CIP. Water demands or infrastructure conditions are such that if the project is
not completed TMWA runs the risk of eventually being unable to reliably provide water
service to its existing customers and/or new and expanded service, or incur extended outages.

* PRIORITY 2 NECESSARY: A project that is important for providing water service to
customers, yet timing of construction or spending outlay is not as critical as a mandatory
project. These projects are required and are generally found in the last four years of the
2021-2025 CIP. External factors such as the pace of new development or the condition of
existing infrastructure may delay or accelerate the timing of project construction. A rate of
return may not be applicable to projects whose economic/financial benefits cannot be easily
quantified.

* PRIORITY 3 CONTINGENCY: These projects or capital outlays are not immediately
critical to the operation of the water system. Expenditures in this category generally require
a business case study or specific criteria to be met before spending can occur. If such criteria
are not met, then spending may or may not be justified. Also, some projects are deferrable
if spending is required in an area of higher priority. Even though these projects and outlays
are in the 2021-2025 CIP the likelihood that spending will occur may be remote and is based
upon future conditions that are difficult to predict.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

6 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



FUNDING OF CAPITAL SPENDING 

Funding Sources

The CIP will rely on various funding sources to pay for capital projects/capital outlays.
TMWA relies heavily on revenues generated from water sales, hydroelectric, and other
operating sales to fund the majority of projects. Developer contributions have historically
been an important funding source for certain construction projects for new and expanded
water system capacity. Investment income is also available to augment other revenue sources
but is minor in relation to other funding sources. Collection of developer fees have rebounded
since reaching historical lows during the great recession . TMWA continues a non-reliance
policy on these fees to fund operations or fund annual principal and interest payments on
TMWA’s outstanding debt. Residential and commercial development activity has
accelerated in a meaningful manner providing financial resources to fund projects listed in
the CIP for new and expanded service. TMWA may rely on the issuance of new money debt
to fund large levels of capital spending in a particular period. The CIP does not anticipate
reliance on funding from new money at this time. TMWA has relied on a number of new
money debt issuances in the past to fund capital spending.

Developer Contributions

TMWA looks to the development community for developer contributions in the form of
system development charges or direct reimbursements to fund capital expenditures related
to new or expanded water service, including pump station construction or expansions and
feeder main extension projects. In June 2003, the TMWA Board adopted facility charges to
pay for new treatment/supply capacity projects and new storage capacity projects. TMWA
began collecting these facility charges in January 2004. Under TMWA’s Rule 5 these
proceeds are used to support new capacity construction. Rule 7 governs the purchase of
water rights and reimbursement by developers for issuance of will-serve commitments for
water service. However, because of the timing of certain growth driven capital projects,
additional financial resources may be called upon as needed. The most recent update to the
water system facility charges, which updated area fees, supply and treatment fees, as well
as storage unit costs was approved by the TMWA Board in August, 2019 with an effective
date of October, 2019. These fees are subject to periodic review for funding adequacy. 

Financing Background

New money revenue bond issuance has been historically an integral part of funding
construction spending. TMWA has also taken advantage of lower rate, subordinated debt
financing obtained through the Drinking Water State Revolving Loan Fund (DWSRF) and
a tax-exempt commercial paper program (TECP) due to lower cost of capital and repayment
subordination features of these funding vehicles. Federal and State Grants and loan
forgiveness programs have also been identified in the past to fund projects. Customer water

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

7 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



sales and various developer fees may not be immediately sufficient to pay for construction
spending and capital outlays so there may be some reliance on new money debt and reliance
on future tax-exempt commercial paper note sales.  TMWA plans to avoid relying on
additional debt whenever possible and reasonable. TMWA has been able to reduce debt by
over $100 million, and 20% during the last 4 years, and currently has no plan to increase
debt to fund projects in this plan.

Rule 5 and Rule 7 Fees

These fees are collected from the development community. Rule 5 fees are paid by developers
to TMWA for the construction of new water feeder mains, new treatment/supply capacity,
new storage capacity, and for new or rebuilt pump stations to meet demand resulting from
new and expanded service. Rule 7 Fees are derived from will-serve sales to development.
TMWA historically purchased water rights on the open market and reserves these rights for
will-serve letters to be sold to development. TMWA also recovers a modest amount of
administrative and financing costs with the sale of each will-serve. The title to water rights
are retained by and dedicated to TMWA. TMWA has sufficient inventory of water rights to
meet the demands for new and expanded service for the foreseeable future.

Water Meter Retrofit Fees 

TMWA has been retrofitting flat rate water services with meter boxes, setters and meters.
The intent is to meter the entire water system which is now in the final stages. To accomplish
this task TMWA has collected $1,830 for each acre-foot of demand when will-serve
commitments based on surface water right dedications are issued for new or expanded
service. Proceeds from the fee are used to fund water meter retrofits. Pursuant to Resolution
272 passed by the Board of Directors on January 16, 2019, the fee was broadened to include
other uses. The pre-January 16, 2019 balance of these fees will be used to complete any
remaining water meter retrofits and other water meter replacement projects.

Water Resource Sustainability Fund Fees

Resolution 272,  passed by the Board of Directors on January 16, 2019, broadened the
purpose of the Water Meter Retrofit Fee to support projects such as expanded conjunctive
use, aquifer storage and recovery, demonstration and validation of exceptional quality
reclaimed water uses, future water resource identification and acquisition, and other
projects that enhance water resource sustainability and drought resiliency. The fee has
been reduced from $1,830 to $1,600 for each acre-foot of demand when will-serve
commitments based on surface water right dedications are issued for new or expanded
service.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

8 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Capital Contributions from Other Governments

TMWA is a water wholesaler to the Sun Valley General Improvement District (SVGID).
From time to time, new infrastructure must be constructed to service this retail water-service
provider. There are no expectations of any need for reimbursement from this source in the
CIP although historically SVGID has made contributions to TMWA.

Reserves from the Water Utility Consolidation

TMWA, the WCWU and STMGID consolidated on January 1, 2015. As a result of the
consolidation, the respective treasuries of the WCWU and STMGID were transferred to
TMWA. The WCWU treasury that was transferred to TMWA amounted to approximately
$43.4 million after the final transfer of funds (which was absorbed into TMWA's account)
while the STMGID treasury transferred to TMWA was approximately $15.7 million of which
$6.6 million remains. These cash and investment reserves will continue to be used to make
necessary improvements in the former water utility service areas including conjunctive use
enhancements. 

Other Resources

One method of generating additional funds for capital improvements is to increase existing
fees/charges or to add new fees/charges. However, future increases will be provisional if
TMWA is able to meet revenue requirements and maintain bond coverage ratios that will
suffice to maintain strong investment-grade credit ratings. TMWA has obtained many
benefits of Aa2 and AA+ credit ratings from Moody's and S&P, respectively. The Board
approved a five-year customer water rate plan in early 2017 which included a water rate
increase of 3.0% in May of 2017 and 2018. TMWA Board deferred the 2.5% rate increases
scheduled for 2019 through 2021 to 2020 through 2022, effectively delaying the rate increase
plan by one year.  Recently, the Board decided to defer the 2.5% rate increase in May, 2020
to September, 2020 and will revisit the remaining 2.5% increases scheduled for 2021 and
2022 before they are implemented. Water rate increases are essential for TMWA to maintain
sound credit ratings and to preserve access to opportunities in the capital markets. TMWA
also funds rehabilitative capital projects in a meaningful manner due to water delivery being
an essential municipal service.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

9 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



FISCAL YEAR 2021 CAPITAL SPENDING-THE CAPITAL BUDGET

TMWA expects to spend $54.7 million for fiscal year 2021, the first year of the FY 2021-2025 CIP.
Of this total $32.5 million will be paid for by customer rates for water system rehabilitation,
hydroelectric improvements, pressure system improvements, water main distribution service line
improvements, and administrative and customer service outlays. While $15.8 million will be paid
for by developer fees and will be dedicated to water system expansion, limited opportunistic
acquisition of water rights and some water meter retrofit activities. Finally, STMGID reserves
account for $2.7 million of improvements in the STMGID area.

SUMMARY OF PROJECTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2021 BUDGET

Total construction spending, acquisition spending, and capital outlays are expected to be $54.7
million for the fiscal year 2021. TMWA has established the following projects for the capital budget
in fiscal year 2021 (Amounts presented in thousands of dollars):

Summary of Projects for FY 2021 Amount
Raw Water Supply Improvements
Highland Canal-Upgrades-Downstream 225
Highland Canal-Upgrades-Diversion to Chalk Bluff 1,500
TROA Drought Storage / Implementation 50
Advanced Purified Water Demonstration Facility 300
Total Raw Water Supply 2,075

Ground Water Supply Improvements
Well Rehabilitation Improvements 200
Double Diamond #5 and Equipping 50
Sunrise Well #3 Replacement 100
Well Fix & Finish 200
Well Plugging/Conversion 120
NDEP Monitoring Wells 200
Thomas Creek Well and Spring Creek 5 Equipping 750
Truckee Canyon Well 3 Site Modifications 50
Well Head TTHM Mitigation 500
Spring Creek Well #7 Recharge 75
Kietzke, High, Morrill PCE Treatment 50
Fish Springs Ranch TDS Monitoring Wells 300
Fish Springs Ranch Weather Station 10
Geothermal Fluid Monitoring Well 100
Total Ground Water Supply 2,705

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

10 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Summary of Projects for FY 2021 (continued) Amount
Treatment Plant Improvements
Chalk Bluff Treatment Plant Improvements 650
Glendale Treatment Plant Improvements 400
Chalk Bluff Filter Underdrains 800
Orr Ditch Pump Station Rehab 200
Truckee Canyon Water Treatment Improvements 100
Lightning W Treatment Improvements 60
SCADA Rehab / Plant Operating Software 800
Mount Rose Surface Water Treatment Plant 4,000
Longley Plant HV 3 and HV 4 Treatment Improvements 200
Spanish Springs Nitrate Treatment Facility 300
Chalk Bluff Electrical System Upgrades 150
Total Treatment Plant 7,660

Pressure Improvements
Pressure Reducing Valve (Roll Seal) Removal 400
Land Acquisitions 250
Disc Drive Low Head Pump Station and Mains 1,900
Pump Station Oversizing 100
Pump Station Rebuilds, Rehabilitations 1,200
Mount Rose Well #3 Pump Station Improvements 250
Standby Generator Improvements 150
Idlewild Booster Pump Station Improvements 100
Spanish Springs #1 Pump Zone Intertie 600
Twin Lakes Booster Pump Station 400
Kings Row 1 Booster Pump Station 50
Laxy 5 Low Head Pump Station and Mains 150
Common (Stonegate) Booster Pump Station 2,500
Caughlin 5C Pump and Motor Replacement 150
Kinglet Pump Station 1,400
Total Pressure Improvements 9,600

Water Main-Distribution-Service Line Improvements
Street & Highway Main Replacements 4,500
Spring Creek South Zone Conversion 1,500
South Virginia 24" Main - Kumle to Peckham 1,000
Spanish Springs Main Replacement 2,300
General Waterline Extensions 100
Mount Rose 5 Distribution/Pressure Improvements 750
Boomtown Water System Improvements 2,500

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

11 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Project Summary for FY 2021 (continued) Amount
Boomtown to TWMA Connection 1,900
Stonebrook West Main Oversizing 450
South Truckee Meadows Capacity Improvements 430
Stewart-Taylor Main Replacements 2,000
Roberts-Wilson-Moran Main Replacements 2,340
Total 19,770

Potable Water Storage Improvements
Storage Tank Recoats; Access; Drainage Improvements 900
Highland Reservoir Tank 100
STMGID Tank East Zone 11 Tank 100
Lightning W Tank #2 400
Total Potable Water Storage 1,500

Hydroelectric Improvements
Forebay, Diversion, and Canal Improvements 100
Flume Rehabilitation 150
Washoe Flume Reconstruction 50
Orr Ditch Hydro Facility 1,100
Washoe Flume Reconstruction Boxes 1-68 1,350
Total Hydroelectric 2,750

Customer Service Outlays
New Business Meters 100
Mueller Pit Replacements former Washoe County 125
Galvanized / Poly Service Line Replacements 250
AMI Automated Meter Infrastructure 2,100
Total Customer Service Outlays 2,575

Administrative Outlays
IT Server Hardware 180
IT Network Security Upgrades 45
IT Physical Access Security Upgrades 60
Printer / Scanner Replacement 40
Crew Trucks / Vehicles 650
Emergency Response Projects 150
CIS System Replacement 1,000
System Wide Asphalt Rehabilitation 250
Physical Access Control System Upgrade 200
CSR Work Area Security Upgrade 360
Physical Site Security Improvements 200
Total Administrative Outlays 3,135

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

12 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Project Summary for FY 2021 (continued) Amount
Special Projects Funded by Development
Water Meter Retrofits 100
Water Right Purchases 150
Total Special Projects 250

Former STMGID System Improvements
STMGID Well Fix & Finish 150
STMGID Conjunctive Use Facilities 1,600
STMGID Mueller Pit Replacements 50
STMGID NAC Deficiencies - Saddlehorn, Upper Toll, STMGID East 100
STMGID NAC Deficiencies - Phase 2 - Sioux Trail, Geiger Grade, Westwind Circle 800
Total STMGID System Improvements 2,700
Total Capital Spend for FY 2021 54,720

Detailed project descriptions are provided for all projects in the CIP. These descriptions cover the
fiscal year 2021 capital budget as well as the four additional years from 2022-2025.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

13 

Photo By: 
Jared Harkema, 
TMWA Inspector

Photo of: 
Pyramid Hwy & 
Blackstone Bore 
Project

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



CAPITAL EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION „
(Amounts in thousands of dollars)

Summary of Capital Expenditures by
Function

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

 Five
Year CIP

Raw Water Supply Improvements 2,075 4,225 1,775 375 375 8,825
Ground Water Supply Improvements 2,705 2,365 3,010 4,260 2,290 14,630

Treatment Plant Improvements 7,660 9,195 8,340 2,705 2,205 30,105
Distribution System Pressure
Improvements 9,600 7,080 10,830 7,550 2,580 37,640
Water Main Distribution Service Line
Improvements 19,770 9,575 9,690 11,040 14,550 64,625
Potable Water Storage Improvements 1,500 9,595 4,200 3,630 1,360 20,285
Hydroelectric Improvements 2,750 6,350 1,250 750 100 11,200

Customer Service Outlays 2,575 6,535 6,475 6,550 1,475 23,610
Administrative Outlays 3,135 1,720 1,475 1,870 1,650 9,850
Water Meter Retrofit / Water Rights
Purchases 250 250 400 400 400 1,700
Sub-Total TMWA Construction Spending &
Outlays 52,020 56,890 47,445 39,130 26,985 222,470

Former STMGID System Improvements 2,700 1,650 1,950 150 150 6,600
Total Projected Capital Spending,
Including STMGID 54,720 58,540 49,395 39,280 27,135 229,070

Raw Water Supply Improvements

Ground Water Supply
Improvements

Treatment Plant Improvements

Pressure Improvements

Water Main-Distribution-Service
Line Improvements

Potable Water Storage
Improvements

Hydroelectric Improvements

Customer Service Outlays

Administrative Outlays

Water Meter Retrofit/Water Rights
Purchases

Former STMGID System
Improvements

Capital Expenditures by Function

1.9%
9.3%

17.1%

18.5%
24.8%

10.3%

2.6%

6.0%

5.5%
0.7%

3.1%

Truckee„Meadows„Water„Authority„FY„2021„-„2025„Capital„Improvement„Plan

14

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



PRELIMINARY FUNDING PLAN 
FUNDING SOURCES  

(Amounts in thousands of dollars)
 

Summary of Funding Sources
FY 

2021
FY 

2022
FY 

2023
FY 

2024
FY 

2025
 Five Year
CIP Total

Capital Improvements Funded by
Customer Rates 32,472 34,983 34,266 32,875 19,210 153,806
Capital Improvements Funded by
Developer Fees 11,910 11,983 11,729 5,905 7,425 48,952

Capital Improvements Funded by
Developer Reimbursements 3,900 — — — — 3,900
Capital Improvements Funded with
former STMGID Reserve Funds 2,700 1,650 1,950 150 150 6,600
Water Meter Retrofit / Water Rights
Purchases 2,200 3,711 100 100 100 6,211
Capital Improvements Funded by
Sustainability Fees 438 2,213 850 250 250 4,001

Farad Insurance Settlement - Applied to
Orr Ditch Hydro 1,100 4,000 500 — — 5,600

Total Projected Capital Spending 54,720 58,540 49,395 39,280 27,135 229,070

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

15 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



FUNDING BY PRIORITY „
(Amounts in thousands of dollars)

Summary of Funding by Priority
FY 

2021
FY 

2022
FY 

2023
FY 

2024
FY 

2025
 Five Year
CIP Total

Priority 1 - Mandatory Spending,
Projects in Progress, Regulatory 44,400 27,860 22,715 19,970 19,580 134,525

Priority 2 - Necessary Spending 7,920 24,320 23,780 17,085 5,955 79,060

Priority 3 - Contingency Spending 2,400 6,360 2,900 2,225 1,600 15,485

Total Projected Capital Spending 54,720 58,540 49,395 39,280 27,135 229,070

Priority 1 -
Mandatory
Spending,
Projects in
Progress,
Regulatory

Priority 2 -
Necessary
Spending

Priority 3 -
Contingency
Spending

Funding by Priority

58.7%

34.5%

6.8%

Truckee„Meadows„Water„Authority„FY„2021„-„2025„Capital„Improvement„Plan

16

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



PROJECT FUNCTIONS AND DESCRIPTIONS
RAW WATER SUPPLY IMPROVEMENTS 

Summary

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP 
Total

2 Customer Rates
Highland Canal-
Upgrades-Downstream 225 225 225 225 225 1,125

1
Customer Rates

Highland Canal-
Upgrades-Diversion to
Chalk Bluff 1,500 300 300 100 100 2,300

1
Customer Rates

TROA Drought
Storage /
Implementation 50 50 50 50 50 250

2
Customer Rates

Donner Lake Outlet
Improvements Phase 2 — 150 — — — 150

2 Developer Fees /
Sustainability Fees

Advanced Purified
Water Demonstration
Facility 300 3,500 1,200 — — 5,000

Subtotal Raw Water Supply 2,075 4,225 1,775 375 375 8,825

Project Locations: Map of all Raw Water Supply Improvements projects are highlighted in the
following map.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

17 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

18 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Raw Water Supply Improvements
Highland Canal-Upgrades-Downstream

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Highland Canal-
Upgrades-Downstream 225 225 225 225 225 1,125

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The improvements reflected in this capital project item are for
betterments along the canal downstream of the Chalk Bluff Water Treatment Plant to the Rancho
San Rafael Park. Approximately 2,000 feet of “smart ditch” (a molded plastic trapezoidal
channel section) has been installed downstream of Chalk Bluff in recent years. This product
reduces leakage and maintenance and it is planned to continue to extend the installation in the
future. Other efforts are rehabilitative in nature and may address access and security concerns.

SCHEDULE: Projects are identified and prioritized on an annual basis.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

19 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Raw Water Supply Improvements
Highland Canal – Upgrades – Diversion to Chalk Bluff 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Highland Canal-Upgrades-
Diversion to Chalk Bluff 1,500 300 300 100 100 2,300

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: These improvements are for the stretch of canal between the
diversion on the Truckee River and Chalk Bluff Water Treatment Plant. The proposed spending is
to secure the canal from trespass to enhance public safety and prevent encroachment on TMWA
property. Due to swift flows in the Highland Canal TMWA will also complete fencing along the
canal for public safety, install security cameras and access barriers. The proposed FY 2021
budget is for replacement of the existing 54-inch siphon pipe under the Truckee River just
downstream of the diversion installed in 1954.

SCHEDULE: Projects are identified and prioritized on an annual basis.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

20 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Raw Water Supply Improvements
TROA Drought Storage/Implementation 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

TROA Drought Storage /
Implementation 50 50 50 50 50 250

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: TROA became effective and TMWA began implementation
officially on December 1, 2015. 

SCHEUDLE: Ongoing budget under TROA implementation is for additional stream gages in
new locations as required, as well as improving the monitoring capabilities of existing gages as
needed on an annual basis. Other smaller capital improvements are related to the operation of
reservoir sites. 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

21 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Raw Water Supply Improvements
Donner Lake Outlet Improvements Phase 2

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Donner Lake Outlet
Improvements Phase 2 — 150 — — — 150

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Dredging of a portion of the Donner Lake outlet channel was
completed in FY2019.  The project was scaled back to fit within the CEQA emergency
permitting requirements.  Additional work is required to extend and improve the outlet channel
further into the lake, including possible bank stabilization improvements to minimize future
dredging requirements.

SCHEDULE: Permitting and preliminary design will be conducted over the next two years.
Construction of improvements is scheduled beyond FY 2025.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

22 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Raw Water Supply Improvements
Advanced Purified Water Demonstration Facility

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2
Developer
Fees /
Sustainability
Fees

Advanced Purified
Water Demonstration
Facility 300 3,500 1,200 — — 5,000

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Funds are needed to continue the OneWater NV advanced
purified water feasibility study. Following the small scale-pilot study, which will be completed in
FY 2021, it is likely that a larger facility will be considered for demonstration purposes. There
will likely be cost sharing on this project from other local agencies and outside funding sources.

SCHEDULE: Construction for this project will begin in FY 2022.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

23 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



GROUND WATER SUPPLY IMPROVEMENTS 
Summary

Priority Funding Source Description
FY 

2021
FY 

2022
FY 

2023
FY 

2024
FY 

2025
CIP
Total

1 Customer Rates
Well Rehabilitation
Improvements 200 200 200 200 200 1,000

1
Developer Fees

Double Diamond #5
Equipping &
Blending Main 50 450 — 60 1,140 1,700

2 Developer Fees
Callamont Well
South Equipping — 60 1,140 — — 1,200

2 Customer Rates
Air Guard Well
Replacement — — — 1,100 — 1,100

2 Customer Rates
Sunrise Well #3
Replacement 100 — — — — 100

2 Customer Rates
Lemmon Valley Well
#8 Replacement — — — — 250 250

1 Customer Rates Well Fix & Finish 200 200 200 200 200 1,000

2 Customer Rates
Well Plugging /
Conversion 120 — — — — 120

1 Customer Rates
NDEP Monitoring
Wells 200 — — — — 200

1
Customer Rates

Thomas Creek Well
& Spring Creek #5
Equipping 750 500 — — — 1,250

2 Customer Rates
Truckee Canyon
Well #3 Site 50 — — — — 50

1
Customer Rates /
Sustainability
Fees

Well Head TTHM
Mitigation 500 500 500 500 500 2,500

1
Customer Rates /
Sustainability
Fees

Spring Creek Well
#7 Recharge 75 425 — — — 500

1
Customer Rates

Kietzke, High,
Morrill PCE
Treatment 50 — — — — 50

2 Developer Fees
Callamont Well
North Equipping — — 60 1,140 — 1,200

2 Developer Fees
Spring Creek Well
#8 - Donovan — 30 910 1,060 — 2,000

1 Customer Rates
Fish Springs Ranch
TDS Monitoring 300 — — — — 300

1 Customer Rates
Fish Springs Ranch
Weather Station 10 — — — — 10

1
Customer Rates

Geothermal Fluid
Monitoring Well 100 — — — — 100

Subtotal Ground Water Supply 2,705 2,365 3,010 4,260 2,290 14,630

Project Locations: Map of all Ground Water Supply Improvements projects are highlighted in the
following map.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

24 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

25 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Ground Water Supply Improvements
Well Rehabilitation Improvements 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority Funding Source Description
FY 

2021
FY 

2022
FY 

2023
FY 

2024
FY 

2025
CIP
Total

1 Customer Rates
Well Rehabilitation
Improvements 200 200 200 200 200 1,000

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Funds are budgeted to rehabilitate TMWA production wells as
required. Typically for subgrade rehabilitation efforts, five to six wells are inspected, tested and
evaluated every year to determine if rehabilitation is required. Typical subgrade rehab activities
include but are not limited to pump and pump column pipe replacements; rehabilitation of well
casing and screen; and other enhancements to maintain well function and capacities. Spending in
fiscal years  2021-2025 will include improvements at several wells to provide general above
grade well equipment and building and/or electrical upgrades. Some of the spending will go
towards converting an oil lubed shaft vertical turbine to water lubed and eliminate any standing
oil in the well. TMWA has over 90 production wells operating throughout the water system.
TMWA relies on these wells to provide drought and emergency supply and as a supplemental
source to meet peak demands on the water system.

SCHEDULE: Wells targeted for rehabilitation improvements in FY 2021 include Nugget Well,
Corbett Well, Silver Knolls Well, STMGID 8 Well, and Boomtown 7.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

26 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Ground Water Supply Improvements
Double Diamond #5 Equipping & Blending Main

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Developer
Fees

Double Diamond #5
Equipping & Blending Main 50 450 — 60 1,140 1,700

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Construct pumping facilities for the existing Double Diamond
Well #5 including the pump house building, electrical power, pump/motor and valves and piping
to provide an additional 1,200 gallons per minute of peak period supply to the Double Diamond
area. The project also includes construction of a blending main between Double Diamond Wells
#4 & #5.

SCHEDULE: Based on current growth rates, it is anticipated that the additional capacity from
the new well will be needed in the summer of FY 2025.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

27 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Ground Water Supply Improvements
Callamont Well South Equipping

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Developer
Fees

Callamont Well
South Equipping — 60 1,140 — — 1,200

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Construct pumping facilities for one of the existing Callamont
wells in the Mt. Rose system including the pump house building, electrical power, pump/motor
and valves and piping to provide an additional 500 gallons per minute of peak period supply to
the area.

SCHEDULE: This project is currently scheduled for construction in FY 2023, but may be
constructed sooner (or later) depending on the actual schedule for the proposed 210 unit
Callamont residential development.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

28 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Ground Water Supply Improvements
Air Guard Well Replacement Equipping

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Air Guard Well
Replacement Equipping — — — 1,100 — 1,100

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Replacement of the Air Guard Well in Stead was necessary to
reduce sanding and provide additional capacity to the Stead system. The new/replacement well
was drilled and constructed in FY 2016. Test pumping indicates the new well will have a
capacity of about 2,500 gallons per minute which is twice the capacity of the old well. The
budget for FY 2024 is for constructing the pumping facilities including the well building, pump
and motor, valves and piping, electrical and controls, etc.

SCHEDULE: The pumping facilities are scheduled for construction in FY 2024.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

29 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Ground Water Supply Improvements
Sunrise Well #3 Replacement 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Sunrise Well #3
Replacement 100 — — — — 100

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: This project involves construction activities required to move a
septic tank located on a property adjacent to Sunrise Well #3. This will allow TMWA to activate
the well with the Washoe County Health Department (allowing the well to be utilized as a
backup well to meet demands). Sunrise Well #3 is currently located within the regulated septic
tank setback radius. Allocated funds will be utilized to complete all required earthwork and
install a new septic system outside of the regulated setback radius.

SCHEDULE: Septic tank relocation activities will begin during FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

30 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Ground Water Supply Improvements
Lemmon Valley Well #8 Replacement 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Lemmon Valley Well
#8 Replacement — — — — 250 250

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The existing Lemmon Valley 8 Well has been in service since
1974, making it one of the older wells in the East Lemmon Valley system. The existing well
casing and screens show signs of significant corrosion. With the potential for a well casing
failure, TMWA intends to drill and equip a replacement well on the existing well property. In
addition, the replacement well is expected to have similar construction while producing at least
20 percent more capacity than the original Lemmon Valley 8 Well. The additional capacity will
provide supply to support base load supplied from the Fish Springs groundwater system.

SCHEDULE: Well drilling will occur in FY 2025 and well equipping in FY 2026.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

31 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Ground Water Supply Improvements
Well Fix & Finish

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates Well Fix & Finish 200 200 200 200 200 1,000

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Equipment improvements are expected to bring existing wells up
to modern standards, including antiquated equipment replacements and improvements for water
quality purposes. This project includes improvements to sodium hypochlorite rooms, pump to
waste lines and drainage improvements. It also includes well retrofit for recharge where needed.

SCHEDULE: Projects are identified and prioritized on an annual basis.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

32 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Ground Water Supply Improvements
Well Plugging / Conversion

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Well Plugging /
Conversion 120 — — — — 120

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: There are a number of old wells in the TMWA system that were
recently replaced by new wells (or system supply) and are no longer viable or necessary. These
old production wells may be plugged or, if they occur in areas where water level and water
chemistry data are needed, they will be converted to monitoring wells. Wells slated for plugging
will be disconnected from the distribution system and filled with neat cement to 2 feet below
land surface. Wells slated for conversion will be designed to accommodate a 2” PVC monitoring
well liner, appropriate gravel pack, and sanitary seal to allow formerly screened aquifer intervals
to transmit water to the new monitoring well. Plugged wells will be terminated 1 foot below
grade. Monitoring wells will be completed to 2’ above land surface and secured with a steel
monument where possible; otherwise they will be completed at grade with a traffic-rated vault.

SCHEDULE: New monitoring well drilling and installation as well as old monitoring well
plugging activities will occur in FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

33 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Ground Water Supply Improvements
NDEP Monitoring Wells 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

NDEP Monitoring
Wells 200 — — — — 200

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: There are a number of old monitoring wells in the TMWA system
that were relied on to collect water level and/or water quality data to meet the Nevada Division
of Environmental Protection - Underground Injection Control (NDEP-UIC) Permit requirements.
Several of these wells were found to be plugged and no longer viable monitoring points. This
project estimate assumes 3 monitoring wells will be replaced with new monitoring wells and the
3 replaced monitoring wells will be plugged.

SCHEDULE: New monitor well drilling and installation as well as old monitoring well
plugging activities began in FY 2020 and are scheduled to be completed in FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

34 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Ground Water Supply Improvements
Thomas Creek Well & Spring Creek 5 Equipping

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Thomas Creek Well  &
Spring Creek #5
Equipping 750 500 — — — 1,250

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The Thomas Creek and Spring Creek 5 production wells were
both replaced in FY 2019. Each well will require new infrastructure prior to use. Allocated funds
will be utilized for engineering and construction activities required to bring the wells online.   

SCHEDULE: This project requires new well infrastructure in FY 2021 and well equipping in
FY 2022.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

35 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Ground Water Supply Improvements
Truckee Canyon Well #3 Site Modifications

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Truckee Canyon Well
#3 Site Modifications 50 — — — — 50

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Project includes minor site modifications in cooperation with an
A&K Earthmovers project to expand their equipment yard by backfilling an existing drainage
channel, relocating the Truckee Canyon Well 3 pump to waste discharge, and installing a security
fence and gate.  The improvements will provide a new TMWA access point to the well site that
does not require travel through the A&K equipment yard.

SCHEDULE: Design was completed in FY 2019 and construction will be completed in FY
2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

36 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Ground Water Supply Improvements
Well Head TTHM Mitigation 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority Funding Source Description
FY 

2021
FY 

2022
FY 

2023
FY 

2024
FY 

2025
CIP
Total

1 Customer Rates /
Sustainability Fees

Well Head TTHM
Mitigation 500 500 500 500 500 2,500

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Planning, permitting and implementation of tank mixers and
ventilation equipment technologies to reduce disinfection by product (DBP) formation in
recharged water and receiving groundwater.

SCHEDULE: Planning and design began in FY 2018 and is ongoing. Construction of tank
mixers and ventilation equipment at Zolezzi and Verdi Business Park tanks were completed in
FY 2019 .  Other technologies will be implemented at key recharge well sites in subsequent years
based on priority.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

37 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Ground Water Supply Improvements
Spring Creek Well #7 Recharge

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority Funding Source Description
FY 

2021
FY 

2022
FY 

2023
FY 

2024
FY 

2025
CIP
Total

1 Customer Rates /
Sustainability Fees

Spring Creek Well
#7 Recharge 75 425 — — — 500

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: A new 12-inch diameter recharge water line and well piping
improvements are needed to provide the necessary capacity to allow TMWA to recharge SC Well
7. TMWA is in the process of expanding its ASR program into areas formerly served by Washoe
County.

SCHEDULE: Construction will begin in FY 2022.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

38 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Ground Water Supply Improvements
Kietzke, High, Morrill PCE Treatment 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Kietzke, High, Morrill
PCE Treatment 50 — — — — 50

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Currently, the raw water from these wells exceed the PCE limit,
and pump-to-waste water discharges directly to the Truckee River without treatment.  The
project will study treatment alternatives, select a design and construct improvements to reduce
PCE to acceptable levels prior to discharge into the Truckee River.  It should be noted that
discharge of untreated pump-to-waste water only occurs a few times per year and for very short
durations since these facilities normally stay on-line for long periods once they are started up.
Reimbursement for the project costs will be provided from the remediation district.

SCHEDULE: The improvements are scheduled for completion in FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

39 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Ground Water Supply Improvements
Callamont Well North Equipping

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Developer
Fees

Callamont Well
North Equipping — — 60 1,140 — 1,200

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Construct pumping facilities for the remaining existing Callamont
well in the Mt. Rose system including the pump house building, electrical power, pump/motor
and valves and piping to provide an additional 500 gallons per minute of peak period supply to
the area.

SCHEDULE: This project is currently scheduled for construction in FY 2024, but may be
constructed sooner (or later) depending on the actual schedule for the proposed 210 unit
Callamont residential development.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

40 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Ground Water Supply Improvements
Spring Creek Well #8 - Donovan

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Developer
Fees

Spring Creek Well
#8 - Donovan — — 30 910 1,060 2,000

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves construction and equipping of a new
production well located just south of Indian Sage Court in Spanish Springs Valley.  TMWA owns
a 6,000 square feet parcel at this location where a test well was previously constructed but will
need access and pipeline/utility easements.  It is anticipated that the new well will produce up to
500 gallons per minute of new supply for the area.

SCHEDULE: This project schedule assumes the new well is drilled and constructed in FY 2024
and the pumping facilities are constructed in FY 2025. 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

41 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Ground Water Supply Improvements
Fish Springs Ranch TDS Monitoring Wells

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority Funding Source Description
FY 

2021
FY 

2022
FY 

2023
FY 

2024
FY 

2025
CIP
Total

1
Customer Rates

Fish Springs Ranch
TDS Monitoring
Wells 300 — — — — 300

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: This project involves installing a network of wells that will
monitor TDS concentrations and vertical gradients near the Fish Springs Ranch production
wellfield in Honey Lake Valley. These monitoring locations will provide critical water quality
information associated with increased groundwater production at Fish Springs Ranch. Allocated
funds will be utilized to drill and construct three nested monitoring wells completed to
approximately 450-feet below land surface.  

SCHEDULE: Design and construction for the project is scheduled to be completed in FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

42 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Ground Water Supply Improvements
Fish Springs Ranch Weather Station

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Fish Springs Ranch
Weather Station 10 — — — — 10

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: This project involves purchasing and installing a new weather
station that will record information required by the Nevada Department of Water Resources as
part of the Honey Lake Valley Hydrogeologic Monitoring Plan. Allocated funds will be utilized
to purchase all new weather station components required to achieve all monitoring requirements. 

SCHEDULE: The project is scheduled to be completed in FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

43 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Ground Water Supply Improvements
Geothermal Fluid Monitoring Well

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Geothermal Fluid
Monitoring Well 100 — — — — 100

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: This project involves drilling and constructing a new well that
will monitor fluid flux on the boundary of the Steamboat Hills geothermal outflow zone in South
Truckee Meadows. The well will be installed to monitor water quality changes that may
eventually impact down gradient municipal supply wells. Allocated funds will be utilized to drill,
construct and test a four- to six-inch monitoring well completed to approximately 600-feet below
land surface.   

SCHEDULE: New monitoring well drilling and construction will occur in FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

44 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



TREATMENT PLANT IMPROVEMENTS 
Summary

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Chalk Bluff Treatment
Plant Improvements 650 750 550 365 360 2,675

1 Customer
Rates

Glendale Treatment
Plant Improvements 400 375 200 1,000 375 2,350

1 Customer
Rates

Chalk Bluff Filter
Underdrains 800 800 800 800 800 4,000

1 Customer
Rates

Glendale Filter
Underdrains — — — 500 500 1,000

3 Customer
Rates

Chalk Bluff Lighting
Upgrade — — 350 — — 350

3 Customer
Rates

Glendale Lighting
Upgrade — 250 — — — 250

2 Customer
Rates

Orr Ditch Pump Station
Rehabilitation 200 5,000 5,000 — — 10,200

1 Customer
Rates

Truckee Canyon Water
Treatment
Improvements 100 100 20 20 20 260

1 Customer
Rates

Lightning W Treatment
Improvements 60 20 20 20 150 270

1 Customer
Rates

SCADA Rehab / Plant
Operating Software 800 500 500 — — 1,800

1

Customer
Rates /
Developer
Fees

Mount Rose Surface
Water Treatment Plant 4,000 — — — — 4,000

2 Customer
Rates

Longley Plant  HV 3 &
4 Treatment
Improvements 200 900 400 — — 1,500

2 Customer
Rates

Spanish Springs Nitrate
Treatment Facility 300 500 500 — — 1,300

1 Customer
Rates

Chalk Bluff Electrical
System Upgrades 150 — — — — 150

Subtotal Treatment Improvements 7,660 9,195 8,340 2,705 2,205 30,105

Project Locations: Map of all Treatment Plant Improvements projects are highlighted in the
following map.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

45 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

46 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Treatment Plant Improvements
Chalk Bluff Treatment Plant Improvements

FUNDING TIMELINE: 

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Chalk Bluff Treatment
Plant Improvements 650 750 550 365 360 2,675

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The Chalk Bluff Water Treatment Plant is 24 years old and
requires rehabilitation work to remain operational 24/7/365. This spending is classified as
necessary due to the criticality of maintaining plant operations during rehabilitation work. Plant
improvements include, but are not limited to, plate settlers inspections, valve and instrument
replacement, filter media replacement, UPS upgrades, Trac Vac/sludge removal improvements,
treatment train isolation valves, flow meter  improvements and safety improvements. 

SCHEDULE: Major projects and timelines include: ice fighting improvements to maintain raw
water supply via the Highland Canal will continue in FY 2021, instrumentation upgrades will
continue within the next five years as obsolete instruments are no longer supported by suppliers,
solids removal upgrades started in 2018 will wrap up in FY 2021. Work to isolate sections of the
treatment plant influent trains will begin in FY 2019.  Filter media replacement will occur when
yearly filter media evaluation indicates that replacement will soon be necessary. Since the Chalk
Bluff plant is operated year-round, most work will continue over the course of the five-year CIP
and when system demands allow maintenance.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

47 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Treatment Plant Improvements
Glendale Treatment Plant Improvements

FUNDING TIMELINE: 

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Glendale Treatment
Plant Improvements 400 375 200 1,000 375 2,350

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The Glendale Water Treatment Plant is 40 years old and while
there have been significant upgrades, Glendale remains a significant piece of the water supply
portfolio by operating 24/7 typically during the months of April through October. Glendale plays
an important role due to its availability to treat off-river water supplies, such as groundwater
wells that cannot pump straight to the distribution system. This spending is classified as
necessary due to the criticality of maintaining plant operations. Plant improvements include, but
are not limited to, plate settler inspections, valve and instrument replacement, Trac Vac
improvements, flow meter improvements, treatment chemical upgrades and maintenance storage/
shop upgrades.

SCHEDULE: The treatment plant maintenance shop and storage improvements are currently
scheduled in FY 2024.  Instrumentation upgrades will continue within the next five years as
obsolete instruments are no longer supported by suppliers.  Filter media replacement will occur
when yearly filter media evaluation indicates that replacement will soon be necessary.  Since the
Glendale plant is used seasonally, most work will continue over the course of the five-year CIP
and during the periods that the plant is not operating.
 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

48 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Treatment Plant Improvements
Chalk Bluff Filter Underdrains

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Chalk Bluff Filter
Underdrains 800 800 800 800 800 4,000

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The dual media filters at Chalk Bluff are nearing 27 years old and
maintenance and/or repairs are needed on filters that have experienced recent underdrain
performance issues. An engineering evaluation of the filters has been completed and an entire
replacement of one or more filter underdrains is recommended.

SCHEDULE: Due to cost and operational complexities associated with taking a filter out of
service, this will be a multi-year effort beginning with design and bidding in FY 2021 and
construction taking place in at least FY’s  2021-25.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

49 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Treatment Plant Improvements
Glendale Filter Underdrains

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Glendale Filter
Underdrains — — — 500 500 1,000

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The dual media filters at Glendale are nearing 24 years old and
maintenance and/or repairs are needed on filters that have experienced recent underdrain
performance issues. An engineering evaluation of the filters has been completed and an entire
replacement of one or more filter underdrains is recommended.

SCHEDULE: Due to cost and operational complexities associated with taking a filter out of
service, this will be a multi-year effort beginning with design and bidding in FY 2024 and
construction taking place in at least FY’s  2024-25.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

50 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Treatment Plant Improvements
Chalk Bluff Lighting Upgrade

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

3 Customer
Rates

Chalk Bluff
Lighting Upgrade — — 350 — — 350

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Upgrade lighting at the Chalk Bluff Water Treatment Plant. Work
will include all areas and buildings outside of the most recent remodel areas as well as upgrades
to outside area lighting.

SCHEDULE: Lighting upgrade is scheduled to begin in FY 2023.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

51 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Treatment Plant Improvements
Glendale Lighting Upgrade

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

3 Customer
Rates

Glendale„Lighting
Upgrade ƒ 250 ƒ ƒ ƒ 250

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Upgrade„lighting„at„the„Glendale„Water„Treatment„Plant.„Work
will„include„all„areas„and„buildings„outside„of„the„most„recent„remodel„areas„as„well„as„upgrades
to„outside„area„lighting.

SCHEDULE: Lighting„upgrade„is„scheduled„to„begin„in„FY„2022.

Truckee„Meadows„Water„Authority„FY„2021„-„2025„Capital„Improvement„Plan

52

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



 Treatment Plant Improvements
Orr Ditch Pump Station Rehabilitation

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Orr Ditch Pump
Station Rehabilitation 200 5,000 5,000 — — 10,200

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: This project will increase redundancy and reliability by enhancing
the Truckee River source of supply to the Chalk Bluff Water Treatment Plant.  Currently, there
are very limited options to facilitate repairs or conduct preventative maintenance due to the
location and arrangement of the intake structure and wet well.  The project design may include
modifying the existing proprietary wet well submersible pump design into a pedestal-style
vertical turbine pump arrangement with non-submerged motors, may include the construction of
a building over the top of the wet well to increase security and allow a safer means of performing
maintenance activities and may also incorporate a system to eliminate silting issues within the
intake structure.

SCHEDULE: Planning and design will be completed in FY 2021. Construction will commence
in FY's 2022-23 and scheduled to be completed in FY 2023.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

53 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Treatment Plant Improvements
Truckee Canyon Water Treatment Improvements

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Truckee Canyon Water
Treatment Improvements 100 100 20 20 20 260

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The current treatment system which removes arsenic, iron, and
manganese consists of a greensand filter system and an evaporation pond for backwash water
with a total capacity of about 100 gallons per minute. Scheduled improvements may include the
addition of a polymer feed system to improve filter performance, fine tuning of the treatment
process to reflect chemical changes in the raw water and replacement of miscellaneous
components and control upgrades.

SCHEDULE: Expenditures in FY's 2021- 25 are contingent spending related to treatment
efficiency and for chemical changes in the raw water.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

54 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Treatment Plant Improvements
Lightning W Treatment Improvements

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Lightning„W„Treatment
Improvements 60 20 20 20 150 270

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The„existing„treatment„process„consists„of„two„ion„exchange„resin
pressure„vessels„to„remove„uranium.„Previous„work„included„change„out/replacement„of„the„filter
media,„disposal„of„the„spent„media.„The„remaining„work„includes„miscellaneous„improvements„to
the„building„that„houses„the„treatment„equipment.

SCHEDULE: „The„FY„2021„work„includes„miscellaneous„building„improvements.„

Truckee„Meadows„Water„Authority„FY„2021„-„2025„Capital„Improvement„Plan

55

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Treatment Plant Improvements
SCADA Rehab/Plant Operating Software 

FUNDING TIMELINE: 

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

SCADA„Rehab„/„Plant
Operating„Software 800 500 500 ƒ ƒ 1,800

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: SCADA„(Supervisory„Control„and„Data„Acquisition)„is„the„system
by„which„TMWA„monitors,„records„and„controls„the„water„system„inputs,„outputs,„flows„and
pressures.„Data„acquired„by„these„system„controls„are„primarily„monitored„at„the„treatment
plants,„but„the„system„equipment„and„technology„are„spread„throughout„the„water„system
infrastructure.„Much„of„the„technology„is„approaching„obsolescence„and„needs„to„be„replaced
with„emphasis„on„standardization„of„programmable„logic„controllers„(PLC)„and„other„equipment.
Therefore,„TMWA„decided„on„a„systematic„approach„to„updating„the„equipment„and„operating
software„starting„in„fiscal„year„2015„with„telemetry„improvement„in„the„ensuing„four„years„to
convert„to„wireless„transmission„of„data„feeds„where„possible.

SCHEDULE: The„improvements„and„replacements„of„the„equipment„and„operating„software
have„already„begun„and„will„continue„through„FY„2023.

Truckee„Meadows„Water„Authority„FY„2021„-„2025„Capital„Improvement„Plan

56

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Treatment Plant Improvements
Mt. Rose Surface Water Treatment Plant

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority Funding Source Description
FY 

2021
FY 

2022
FY 

2023
FY 

2024
FY 

2025
CIP
Total

1 Customer Rates /
Developer Fees

Mount Rose Surface
Water Treatment Plant 4,000 — — — — 4,000

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Due to a combination of municipal and domestic well pumping
and the extended drought, TMWA has determined that additional infrastructure and facilities are
needed to utilize Whites Creek resources to improve the long-term viability and sustainability of
groundwater supplies in this region. To provide reliability of supply, avoid or reduce pumping
costs and avoid major on-peak capacity improvements within the lower TMWA gravity system, a
4 MGD treatment plant located off of Callahan Road near the Monte Vista subdivision has
received a SUP to treat Whites Creek  water. The County’s South Truckee Meadows Facility Plan
recognized “The upper treatment plant is an integral component of the recommended water
supply plan. Most importantly; it will provide recharge water and/or offset winter groundwater
pumping in the upper Mt. Rose fan area.”

SCHEDULE: Permitting, design, and bidding was completed in FY 2019. Construction began in
FY 2019. Construction is scheduled for completion in FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

57 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Treatment Plant Improvements
Longley Lane HV 3 and HV 4 Treatment Improvements

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Longley Plant  HV 3 & 4
Treatment Improvements 200 900 400 — — 1,500

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: TMWA completed planning and preliminary design of an
innovative UV disinfection / Arsenic blending water treatment process to treat the HV 3 and HV
4 groundwater wells that are out of service due to surface water influence and elevated arsenic.
These wells were formerly treated at the Longley Lane WTP which is currently not being utilized
as a treatment facility due to needed safety improvements on the chemical feed, membrane
clean-in-place and the solids handling piping systems.  An assessment of the plant was
completed, and short-term improvements identified to modify the facility to serve as a booster
pump station using either surface water or groundwater supply sources.

SCHEDULE: Planning and permitting to be completed in FY 2021.  Design and construction to
be performed in FY's 2021 - 23.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

58 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Treatment Plant Improvements
Spanish Springs Nitrate Treatment Facility

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority Funding Source Description
FY 

2021
FY 

2022
FY 

2023
FY 

2024
FY 

2025
CIP
Total

2
Customer Rates

Spanish Springs Nitrate
Treatment Facility 300 500 500 — — 1,300

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Initiation of planning, permitting, site acquisition and design for a
3 MGD biological water treatment process to treat several groundwater wells in Spanish Springs
that are out of service due to elevated nitrate and arsenic.  Treatment is required to maintain and
restore the service capacity of the wells.

TMWA completed the operation and testing of a 5 GPM pilot treatment plant in 2018.
Biological treatment of nitrate in potable water is currently not permitted in Nevada.  TMWA,
working with Carollo Engineers, UNR and WaterStart, has evaluated this innovative technology
and determined it to be a cost-effective treatment solution compared to traditional, high cost
alternatives such as ion exchange. 

SCHEDULE: Planning, permitting, site acquisition and design to be conducted in FY's 2021-23.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

59 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Treatment Plant Improvements
Chalk Bluff Electrical System Upgrades

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority Funding Source Description
FY 

2021
FY 

2022
FY 

2023
FY 

2024
FY 

2025
CIP
Total

1
Customer Rates

Chalk Bluff Electrical
System Upgrades 150 — — — — 150

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Evaluation of the existing electrical system at the Chalk Bluff
Treatment Plant to identify the cause of main breaker power disruption when electrical faults
occur in auxiliary plant equipment.

SCHEDULE: Electrical System upgrades are scheduled to be completed in FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

60 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM PRESSURE IMPROVEMENTS 
Summary

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer Rates
Pressure Regulators
Rehabilitation — 1,000 500 500 500 2,500

1
Customer Rates

Pressure Reducing
Valve (Roll Seal)
Removal 400 — — — — 400

2 Customer Rates Land Acquisitions 250 250 250 250 250 1,250

2 Customer Rates
Desert Fox Standby
Generator — 150 — — — 150

1
Developer Fees

Disc Drive Low Head
Pump Station & Mains 1,900 1,900 — — — 3,800

1
Developer Fees

Longley BPS / Double
R Capacity Increase — 250 1,000 — — 1,250

3 Customer Rates
Pump Station
Oversizing 100 100 100 100 100 500

1
Customer Rates

Pump Station
Rebuilds,
Rehabilitations 1,200 250 250 250 250 2,200

2 Customer
Rates /
Developer Fees

Sullivan #2 BPS
Replacement — — — — 80 80

1
Customer Rates

Mount Rose Well #3
Pump Station
Improvements 250 — — — — 250

3 Customer Rates
Standby Generator
Improvements 150 150 150 150 150 750

2 Customer Rates
Idlewild BPS
Improvements 100 1,200 — — — 1,300

1 Developer Fees
Raleigh to Fish
Springs BPS Station — 300 1,600 — — 1,900

2 Customer
Rates /
Developer Fees

South-West Reno
Pump Zone
Consolidation Phase 1 — 330 6,330 — — 6,660

2 Customer Rates
Spanish Springs #1
Pump Zone Intertie 600 — — — — 600

1
Developer Fees

STMGID Tank #4
BPS / Transmission
Line — — — — 550 550

2
Developer Fees

Wildwood Pressure
Regulating Station
SCADA Control — — 100 — — 100

2 Customer
Rates /
Developer Fees

South-West Reno
Pump Zone
Consolidation Phase 2 — — 50 990 — 1,040

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

61 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Project Locations: Map of all Distribution System Pressure Improvements projects are
highlighted in the following map.

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2020

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

CIP
Total

2 Customer Rates
Sierra Summit-Kohl's
Zone Consolidation — — 380 400 — 780

2
Customer Rates

Wild Mustang
Regulated Pressure
Zone — — 50 380 — 430

1 Customer Rates Twin Lakes BPS 400 — — — — 400
2 Customer Rates Thomas Creek #4 PRS — — — 170 — 170
1 Customer Rates Kings Row 1 BPS 50 — — — 50

2
Developer Fees

Spring Creek Tanks #3
& 4 BPS
Modifications — — — 600 — 600

2 Developer Fees
Lazy 5 Low Head
Pump Station & Mains 150 1,200 — — — 1,350

1 Developer
Reimbursement
s

Common (Stonegate)
Booster Pump Station 2,500 — — — — 2,500

2 Customer Rates
Caughlin 5C Pump and
Motor Replacement 150 — — — — 150

1 Developer
Reimbursement Kinglet Pump Station 1,400 — — — — 1,400

2 Customer Rates
South Hills BPS
Replacement — — 70 3,760 490 4,320

2 Customer Rates Sierra Highlands PRS — — — — 210 210

Sub-Total Pressure Improvements 9,600 7,080 10,830 7,550 2,580 37,640

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

62 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

63 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
Pressure Regulators Rehabilitation 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Pressure Regulators
Rehabilitation — 1,000 500 500 500 2,500

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Provision is made in the annual budget for major rehabilitation or
complete reconstruction of several pressure regulators in the distribution system. TMWA has
evaluated nearly 130 pressure regulator stations currently in service and has identified a number
of pressure regulator stations requiring a certain amount of rehabilitation on an annual basis. 

SCHEDULE: This is an ongoing rehabilitation project with about 130 individual stations
identified as requiring rehabilitation or replacement over the next fifteen years.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

64 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
Pressure Reducing Valve (Roll Seal) Removal 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Pressure Reducing Valve
(Roll Seal) Removal 400 — — — — 400

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: There were approximately 180 pressure regulating stations in
former County systems where Roll Seal pressure reducing valves are installed. These valves are
subject to failure on a 3-5 year basis as compared to an expected life of 10-20 years for the Cla-
Val regulator valves utilized in the TMWA system. A Roll Seal failure can result in significant
damage to customer homes and in most cases requires a major service outage to repair or replace
the valve.

SCHEDULE: Projects will be prioritized based on potential damage (unregulated pressure) and
failure rate records. FY 2021 will be the last year of multi-year project to replace Roll Seals at
about 20 stations per year.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

65 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
Land Acquisitions 

FUNDING TIMELINE: 

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates Land Acquisitions 250 250 250 250 250 1,250

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: TMWA has over 120 pump stations in service. Many of these
pump stations have 480 volt electrical services and are underground (below grade) in locations
that allows for water infiltration. Many underground pump stations will be reaching the end of
their service life, which will require replacement of the underground vault. Rather than replace
the stations in place TMWA is planning to acquire other sites so these stations can be rebuilt
above grade improving access and safety. Acquisition of sites may be time consuming and may
not be purchased in a particular year.

SCHEDULE: This is an ongoing project with funding to allow purchase of 3-4 sites per year
depending on location and market conditions.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

66 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
Desert Fox Standby Generator

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Desert Fox Standby
Generator — 150 — — — 150

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: This project involves furnishing and installing a new standby
generator and ATS to power one 50 Hp pump at the existing Desert Fox booster pump station.
This alternative pumping capacity is needed when the existing 0.5 MG Spring Creek #5A Tank is
out of service for recoating or other maintenance or if an extended power outage occurs in the
area.

SCHEDULE: The installation of the generator is scheduled in FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

67 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
Disc Drive Low Head Pump Station and Mains

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Developer
Fees

Disc Drive Low Head
Pump Station & Mains 1,900 1,900 — — — 3,800

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: This involves construction of a new low head pump station
located just north of the intersection of Disc Dr. and Sparks Blvd. in North-East Sparks/Spanish
Springs Valley, along with suction and discharge mains. TMWA owns a 6,000 square foot parcel
in this location and has obtained an easement out to Vista Blvd.  A suction pipe must be extended
from Disc Dr. to Sparks Blvd.  The pump station is needed to maintain peak period distribution
pressure in the area and to provide adequate suction pressure to the Vista #1 and Spanish Springs
#2 pump stations.  The low-head pumping option was determined to be more cost effective than
oversizing of the Sparks Feeder Main projects.

SCHEDULE: Improvements are scheduled for design in FY 2021 and construction in FY's 2021
- 22.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

68 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
Longley Booster Pump Station/Double R Capacity Increase 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Developer
Fees

Longley BPS / Double R
Capacity Increase — 250 1,000 — — 1,250

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Increase pumping capacity at the existing Longley Lane Booster
Pump Station and make improvements at the Double R Intertie to provide additional peak supply
to the Double Diamond area. The improvements at the Longley pump station will consist of
replacing one of the existing pumps/motors with a new higher capacity unit along with electrical
and motor starter upgrades. Certain components of the Double R Intertie will be replaced to
provide the additional capacity without excessive friction losses.

SCHEDULE: The improvements are scheduled for FY 2022. The improvements are necessary
when supply through the Double R Intertie must exceed 5,400 gallons per minute.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

69 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
Pump Station Oversizing 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

3 Customer
Rates

Pump Station
Oversizing 100 100 100 100 100 500

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The FY 2021 project may consist of cash contributions towards
construction of a new above ground booster pump station located near the Comstock Tank to
replace the existing Sierra Pump Station which is located in an underground vault and is in need
of major rehabilitation. TMWA would normally expend approximately $1 million to replace an
existing underground pump station with a new above ground station.

SCHEDULE: The improvements are ongoing, but the schedule is subject to change based on
development & operational needs.

 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

70 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
Pump Station Rebuilds, Rehabilitations 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Pump„Station„Rebuilds,
Rehabilitations 1,200 250 250 250 250 2,200

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: TMWA„has„over„120„pump„stations„in„service.„An„amount„is
budgeted„annually„for„rehabilitation„of„TMWA€s„older„pump„stations.„Other„pump„stations„may
require„pump,„motor,„and„electrical„upgrades.„Budget„for„future„years„will„allow„TMWA„to
complete„up„to„one„above„ground„replacement„project„per„year„if„suitable„sites„can„be„acquired.
Otherwise,„normal„rehabilitation„work„will„be„performed„per„the„priorities„established„by„the
study„at„a„lower„overall„annual„cost.„

SCHEDULE: In„FY„2021,„TMWA„is„preparing„to„reconstruct„a„number„of„booster„stations
above„ground.„Depending„on„land„acquisition„timing„and„priorities„of„rehabilitation,„it„could„be
the„Seventh„Street„High„Pump„Station,„Seventh„Street„Low„Pump„Station,„or„Kings„Row„#2
Pump„Station.

Truckee„Meadows„Water„Authority„FY„2021„-„2025„Capital„Improvement„Plan

71

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
Sullivan #2 Booster Pump Station Replacement

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority Funding Source Description
FY 

2021
FY 

2022
FY 

2023
FY 

2024
FY 

2025
CIP
Total

2 Customer Rates /
Developer Fees

Sullivan #2 BPS
Replacement — — — — 80 80

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves construction of a new above grade pump
station at the site of the existing Sullivan Tank on El Rancho.  The new pump station will pump
to the proposed Sun Valley #2 Tank tentatively located off of Dandini Drive near the TMCC/DRI
complex.  Completion of these facilities should allow the retirement of the existing Sun Valley
#1 pump station.

SCHEDULE: Construction has been pushed out to FY 2026 to reflect delays in obtaining a tank
site due to unknowns with the US 395 Connector Project.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

72 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
Mt. Rose Well #3 Pump Station Improvements 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Mount Rose Well #3 Pump
Station Improvements 250 — — — — 250

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves rehab of the building, removal of pipe and
valves that will no longer be necessary following completion of the Mt. Rose Well #3
improvements and upgrades to electrical and control systems.

SCHEDULE: Construction is scheduled in FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

73 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
Standby Generator Improvements 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

3 Customer
Rates

Standby Generator
Improvements 150 150 150 150 150 750

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: A number of TMWA pumps stations have backup generation in
case of power failures. TMWA incorporates a contingency for replacement of a generator in case
of failure or if the Washoe County Health District requires backup generation at a particular site.
No spending will occur unless necessary. This spending does not include backup generation for
new pump stations required by and paid for by growth. 

SCHEDULE: No single project has been identified for the current 5-year CIP and no funds will
be expended unless necessary.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

74 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
Idlewild Booster Pump Station Improvements 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Idlewild BPS
Improvements 100 1,200 — — — 1,300

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project will replace existing pumps and motors at the
Idlewild BPS Transfer Station to insure adequate and reliable emergency capacity. It is the only
booster station that is capable of transferring water from the Highland Reservoir Zone to the
Hunter Creek Reservoir Zone. The station was originally constructed as part of the Idlewild
WTP, and was never designed specifically for the purpose that it is used for today. Improvements
identified in the project include: Properly sizing new pumps and motors for today’s application,
upgrading antiquated electrical systems and HVAC systems and bringing building up to modern
construction codes. Evaluations by TMWA indicated this was the most cost effective alternative
to provide a redundant supply for the zone and allowed retirement of the old 24-inch
transmission pipeline on Plumb Lane all the way to the Hunter Creek Reservoir.

SCHEDULE: Design is scheduled for FY2021 and construction should begin in FY 2022. This
schedule may be moved based on system needs.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

75 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
Raleigh to Fish Springs Booster Pump Station 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Developer
Fees

Raleigh to Fish Springs
BPS Station — 300 1,600 — — 1,900

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves construction of a new pump station to pump
water from the Raleigh Heights zone to the Fish Springs terminal tank when the Fish Springs
Wells are off-line or if a main break occurs on the Fish Springs transmission line.  In the future,
there will be a number of customers served directly from the Fish Springs terminal tank;
therefore, it is necessary to provide a secondary supply to maintain continuous water service.

SCHEDULE: Implementation will begin in FY 2022 and construction in FY 2023.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

76 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
South-West Reno Pump Zone Consolidation Phase 1 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority Funding Source Description
FY 

2021
FY 

2022
FY 

2023
FY 

2024
FY 

2025
CIP
Total

2 Customer Rates /
Developer Fees

South-West Reno
Pump Zone
Consolidation Phase 1 — 330 6,330 — — 6,660

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project includes a new high head booster pump station
located on Lakeridge golf course property adjacent to Plumas; a new 12-inch suction pipeline
from Lakeside Dr.; a high pressure transmission pipeline from the pump station across golf
course property to Greensboro and McCarran Blvd.; and another 12-inch pipeline tie to the
Ridgeview #1 pump zone. The completion of Phase 1 will allow the retirement of four existing
below ground pump stations (Lakeside, Lakeridge, Plumas, Ridgeview #1).

SCHEDULE: Design of the improvements is scheduled to begin in FY 2022. Construction is
scheduled for FY 2023.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

77 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
Spanish Springs #1 Pressure Zone Intertie

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Spanish Springs #1
Pump Zone Intertie 600 — — — — 600

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project consists of about 1,600 feet of 8-inch main from Rio
Alayne Ct to Martini Rd. paralleling the Orr Ditch and a new pressure regulating station.
Completion of the facilities will allow the retirement of the existing underground Spanish
Springs #1 pump station.

SCHEDULE: The project is scheduled for FY 2021. 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

78 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
STMGID Tank #4 Booster Pump Station / Transmission Line

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Developer
Fees

STMGID Tank #4 BPS /
Transmission Line — — — — 550 550

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project includes a new booster pump station located near the
STMGID Tank 4/5 site and approximately 6,000 feet of 12-inch discharge main to the Mt Rose
WTP. The facilities will provide a supplemental source to the Mt Rose WTP that will back up
plant production on the maximum day during drought and will also provide another source of
supply for implementing conjunctive use in the area.

SCHEDULE: Design and construction will begin in FY 2025 and construction will continue
into FY 2026. Schedule assumes that the STMGID Conjunctive Use Facilities are completed by
FY 2024.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

79 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
Wildwood Pressure Regulating Station/Scada Control 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Developer
Fees

Wildwood Pressure Regulating
Station SCADA Control — — 100 — — 100

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves retrofitting an existing pressure regulating
station to SCADA (remote) control to provide additional transfer capacity into the Mt Rose Tank
#2 zone. It will be necessary to obtain electrical service to the existing vault; install a new PLC;
and to equip the existing pressure regulating valve with solenoid control to allow the valve to be
remotely operated from the Glendale control room.

SCHEDULE: The project is scheduled for FY 2023 but may be delayed or accelerated
depending on the timing of growth and the need for the additional tank fill capacity.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

80 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
South-West Reno Pump Zone Consolidation Phase #2 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority Funding Source Description
FY 

2021
FY 

2022
FY 

2023
FY 

2024
FY 

2025
CIP
Total

2 Customer Rates /
Developer Fees

South-West Reno
Pump Zone
Consolidation Phase 2 — — 50 990 — 1,040

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project is a continuation of Phase 1 and involves construction
of additional water main to further integrate the new South-West Reno pump station and allow
the retirement of one more existing underground pump station plus provide backup to two other
pump zones.

SCHEDULE: Design of the facilities is scheduled to begin in FY 2023. Construction is
scheduled to start in FY 2024.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

81 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
Sierra Summit-Kohl's Zone Consolidation 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description FY 

2021
FY 

2022
FY 

2023
FY 

2024
FY 

2025
CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Sierra Summit-Kohl's
Zone Consolidation — — 380 400 — 780

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves construction of a new pressure regulating
station (PRS) at Old Virginia and Sutherland; a short main tie between the former STMGID Well
#9 site and the distribution system; and about 950 feet of 8-inch main in Sutherland from the
PRS to Sage Hill Road. The improvements will convert an area with very high distribution
system pressures to the existing Kohl’s Regulated Zone and would expand the regulated zone by
consolidating the Kohl’s, Walmart and Old Virginia #2 regulated pressure zones.

SCHEDULE: The project is scheduled for construction in FY 2024.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

82 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
Wild Mustang Regulated Pressure Zone

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Wild Mustang Regulated
Pressure Zone — — 50 380 — 430

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves construction of a new pressure regulator
station and approximately 750 LF of water main to create a new pressure zone in the Geiger
Grade area of the South Truckee Meadows to reduce distribution system pressures in the area. 

SCHEDULE: Design of the construction is scheduled to begin in FY 2023. Construction is
scheduled to start in FY 2024.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

83 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
Twin Lakes Booster Pump Station

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates Twin Lakes BPS 400 — — — — 400

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project cost contains oversizing of a developer funded
booster pump station to provide redundant supply to the Summit Ridge Regulated Zone which is
currently fed off of the Chalk Bluff / Highland Zone. Supply will be provided from the Hunter
Creek zone. The current total is estimated at $800,000 with TMWA providing 50%
reimbursement to the developer.

SCHEDULE:  Construction is planned to be completed in FY 2021.

 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

84 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
Thomas Creek #4 PRS

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Thomas Creek #4
PRS — — — 170 — 170

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves construction of a new PRS and
approximately 160 LF of water main to increase capacity to the Moonrise pressure zone.  The
increase in capacity will help with replenishing storage in the STMGID Tank and increase fire
flow within the zone.

SCHEDULE: The project is scheduled for FY 2024.
 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

85 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
Kings Row 1 Booster Pump Station

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates Kings Row 1 BPS 50 — — — 50

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: This project will replace the existing underground Kings Row #1
pump station with a new above ground pump station on TMWA property.  The project is part of
annual booster pump station rehabilitation/replacement program focused on reconstructing
existing pump stations above grade.

SCHEDULE: Planning and design were completed in FY 2019. The project will be completed
in FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

86 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
Spring Creek Tanks #3 & #4 Booster Pump Station Modifications

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Developer
Fees

Spring Creek Tanks #3 &
4 BPS Modifications — — — 600 — 600

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: This project will replace an existing 200 GPM pump with a new
pump/motor rated for 1800 GPM at the existing Spring Creek 3/4 Tanks site in Spanish Springs
Valley.  The existing regulated bypass will also be equipped for SCADA control.  The
improvements will provide redundant supply to the Desert Springs 3 and Spring Creek 6 tank
zones.

SCHEDULE: Planning, design and construction will occur in FY 2024.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

87 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
Lazy 5 Low Head Pump Station & Mains

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Developer
Fees

Lazy 5 Low Head Pump
Station & Mains 150 1,200 — — — 1,350

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves construction of a new low head pump station
located near the existing Lazy 5 Intertie in NE Sparks/Spanish Springs Valley along with suction
and discharge mains.  TMWA will need to acquire a parcel of land and pipeline easements out to
the Pyramid Hwy.  The project will increase TMWA’s ability to transfer surface water to the
Spanish Springs Valley and may defer more costly groundwater treatment options to increase
capacity for growth.

SCHEDULE: Planning and design will occur in FY 2021 with construction scheduled in FY
2022.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

88 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
Common (Stonegate) Booster Pump Station

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Developer
Reimbursements

Common (Stonegate)
Booster Pump Station 2,500 — — — — 2,500

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project consists of design and construction of a new booster
pump station to deliver the water supply for the proposed Stonegate development in Cold
Springs.  Suction and discharge pipelines on North Virginia and terminal storage facilities in
Cold Springs will be constructed by Stonegate as applicant-installed projects.  The pump station
will be located on a parcel on North Virginia that has already been acquired by Stonegate.
Stonegate is responsible for 100 percent of the project costs.

SCHEDULE: Design was initiated in FY 2020 and construction will occur in FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

89 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
Caughlin 5C Pump and Motor Replacement

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Caughlin 5C Pump
and Motor
Replacement 150 — — — — 150

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves replacement of the existing Caughlin #5
pump station “C” Pump with a higher capacity unit and construction of a main tie near Foxcreek
Trail and Village Green Parkway to avoid a 300+ customer outage when Caughlin #5 Pump
Station is off-line. 

SCHEDULE: The project will be designed and built in FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

90 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
Kinglet Pump Station

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Developer
Reimbursement

Kinglet Pump
Station 1,400 — — — — 1,400

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves construction of a new, above grade Booster
Pump Station with a standby generator to serve the Broken Hills residential development in
Spanish Springs.  The developer is responsible for 100% of the pump station project costs.  The
pump station will fill a developer designed and built water storage tank for the project. 

SCHEDULE: Some design work will occur in FY 2020 and construction will occur in FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

91 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
South Hills BPS Replacement

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

South Hills BPS
Replacement — — 70 3,760 490 4,320

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves construction of a new, above grade BPS with
genset; 3,700 feet of l6-inch main, 250 feet of l4-inch main and 2,300 feet of l2-inch main on Broken
Hills Rd, Foothill Rd and Broili; a new Caribou PRS; and 9 each individual PRV'S on customer service
lines.

SCHEDULE:  Planning and design is scheduled to begin in FY 2023 and construction is
scheduled to begin in FY 2024 with the project completing in FY 2025.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

92 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
Sierra Highlands PRS

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates Sierra Highlands PRS — — — — 210 210

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves construction of a new PRS located near the
intersection of Sierra Highlands Drive and North McCarran Blvd. to provide a secondary/supplemental
supply from the Mae Anne-McCarran zone to the Chalk Bluff zone.

SCHEDULE:  Construction for the project is scheduled for FY 2025.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

93 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



WATER MAIN DISTRIBUTION & SERVICE LINE IMPROVEMENTS
Summary

Priority Funding Source Description
FY 

2021
FY 

2022
FY 

2023
FY 

2024
FY 

2025
CIP
Total

1 Customer Rates
Street & Highway Main
Replacements 4,500 4,500 4,500 5,000 5,000 23,500

2 Customer Rates
Spring Creek South Zone
Conversion 1,500 — — — — 1,500

2
Customer Rates

Booth, Sharon Way,
Monroe 24" Main
Replacements — 1,800 1,100 2,200 — 5,100

1 Developer Fees
South Virginia 24" Main -
Kumle to Peckham 1,000 — — — — 1,000

2 Customer Rates
North-East Sparks Feeder
Tank Main Relocation — 975 — — — 975

2 Customer Rates
Goldeneye Parkway Main
& CV Tie — 180 — — — 180

2 Developer Fees Trademark 14" Main Tie — — — — 350 350

2 Customer Rates
Spanish Springs Main
Replacement 2,300 — — — — 2,300

2 Customer Rates
Mt. Rose Tank 1 Fire Flow
Improvements — 400 570 — — 970

2 Customer Rates /
Developer Fees

Stead Golf Course Main
Replacement — — 170 2,400 — 2,570

3 Customer Rates
General Waterline
Extensions 100 100 100 100 100 500

1 Developer Fees
North-East Sparks Feeder
Main Phase 8 50 2,050 — — 2,100

1
Developer Fees

Mount Rose 5
Distribution / Pressure
Improvements 750 — — — — 750

2 Developer Fees Goldenrod Main — 50 1,200 — — 1,250

1 Developer Fees
Boomtown Water System
Improvements 2,500 — — — — 2,500

1 Developer Fees
Boomtown to TMWA
Connection 1,900 — — — — 1,900

2 Customer Rates Lemmon Valley Sand Yard — 530 — — — 530

2 Customer Rates /
Developer Fees

Sullivan #1 Main Tie &
PRS — — — — 50 50

2 Customer Rates
Montreux High Pressure
ACP Replacement — — — 520 1,060 1,580

2 Customer Rates
2nd Galena Creek Main
Crossing — — — 40 560 600

2 Customer Rates
Off-River Supply
Improvements - STM — — — 50 1,050 1,100

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

94 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Project Locations: Map of all Water Main Distribution Service Line Improvements projects are
highlighted in the following map.

Priority Funding Source Description
FY 

2020
FY 

2021
FY 

2022
FY 

2023
FY 

2024
CIP
Total

2
Customer Rates

Off-River Supply
Improvements - NVS
Pump Station — — — 400 — 400

2 Customer Rates
Somersett #6 Main Tie &
PRS — — — 280 — 280

1 Developer Fees
Stonebrook West Main
Oversizing 450 — — — — 450

1
Customer Rates

2025 Fire Flow
Improvements - Gravity
<1,000 GPM — — — — 550 550

1
Customer Rates

2025 Fire Flow
Improvements - North
Valleys <1,000 GPM — — — — 940 940

2 Developer Fees
Deluchi to Airway Main
Tie — — — — 440 440

1 Developer Fees
South-East Sparks Feeder
Main Phase 1 — — — 50 4,450 4,500

1 Developer Fees
South Truckee Meadows
Capacity Improvements 430 670 — — — 1,100

1 Customer Rates
Stewart-Taylor Main
Replacements 2,000 — — — — 2,000

1 Customer Rates
Roberts-Wilson-Moran
Main Replacements 2,340 — — — — 2,340

2 Customer Rates
Verdi Hydro Main
Extension — 320 — — — 320

Subtotal Water Main Distribution Improvements 19,770 9,575 9,690 11,040 14,550 64,625

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

95 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

96 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
Street & Highway Main Replacements 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Street & Highway Main
Replacements 4,500 4,500 4,500 5,000 5,000 23,500

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Provision is made each year for water main replacements in
conjunction with repaving efforts by the City of Reno, City of Sparks, Washoe County and RTC.
In addition to repaving projects, TMWA coordinates water main replacements with sewer main
replacements in areas where TMWA also has older water lines. TMWA plans for approximately
$5.0 million annually for these efforts, so that TMWA can capitalize on repaving projects
planned by other entities. Anticipated spending in the out years is reflective of historical activity.
Levels of spending can vary year to year and are difficult to predict. These efforts by far are the
largest expenditure in the water system rehabilitation category.

SCHEUDLE: Projects are identified and prioritized on an annual basis.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

97 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
Spring Creek South Zone Conversion

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Spring Creek South
Zone Conversion 1,500 — — — — 1,500

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves construction of approximately 2,800 linear
feed of various size water mains, several interties, retirement of several mains and facilities
including the existing Spring Creek Tanks. New water mains include 2060 linear feet of 12-inch
on Pyramid Highway and 300 linear feet of 8-inch main across Pyramid Highway at Spring
Ridge.

SCHEDULE: Implementation and construction will be completed by FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

98 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
Booth, Sharon Way, Monroe 24" Main Replacements 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Booth,„Sharon„Way,„Monroe
24"„Main„Replacements ƒ 1,800 1,100 2,200 ƒ 5,100

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: This„project„is„a„continuation„of„the„previously„constructed
California-Marsh„Intertie„to„provide„reliable„emergency„capacity„to„the„Hunter„Creek„gravity
zone.„The„project„consists„of„about„6,900„feet„of„24-inch„main„on„Booth,„Sharon„to„Plumb„Lane
and„on„Monroe„between„Sharon„and„Nixon„to„supply„the„Nixon-Monroe„regulator.

SCHEDULE: Construction„is„scheduled„for„FY„2022.„TMWA„will„attempt„to„coordinate
construction„with„other„municipal„infrastructure„projects„if„possible,„but„the„existing„pipes„will„be
73-years„old„by„the„proposed„construction„date.

Truckee„Meadows„Water„Authority„FY„2021„-„2025„Capital„Improvement„Plan

99

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
South Virginia 24" Main (Kumle to Peckham) 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Developer
Fees

South„Virginia„24"„Main„-
Kumle„to„Peckham 1,000 ƒ ƒ ƒ ƒ 1,000

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The„project„consists„of„construction„of„about„1,700„feet„of„new
24-inch„water„main„on„South„Virginia„Street„between„Kumle„Lane„and„Peckham„Lane.„The
project„is„required„to„expand„transmission„capacity„to„the„South„Truckee„Meadows„area.

SCHEDULE:„Construction„is„scheduled„to„be„completed„in„FY„2021„subject„to„adjustment„for
actual„growth„or„coordination„with„road„improvements.

Truckee„Meadows„Water„Authority„FY„2021„-„2025„Capital„Improvement„Plan

100

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
North-East Sparks Tank Feeder Main Relocation 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

North-East Sparks
Feeder Tank Main
Relocation — 975 — — — 975

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The North-East Sparks Tank Feeder Main was constructed in
1988 within private easements several years prior to the construction of South Los Altos
Parkway. The final alignment selected for South Los Altos Parkway does not follow the
alignment of the tank feeder main. As a result, the tank feeder main now runs through developed
properties next to buildings, under parking areas and at considerable depth in some locations.
This situation presents potential problems for access to the pipe for maintenance and repair of the
critical pipeline. This project will relocate approximately 3,000 feet of the 18-inch tank feeder
main out into the public right-of-way in South Los Altos Parkway.

SCHEDULE: Design and the improvements are scheduled for  FY 2021.

 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

101 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
Goldeneye Parkway Main & CV Tie

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Goldeneye„Parkway
Main„&„CV„Tie ƒ 180 ƒ ƒ ƒ 180

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The„project„involves„construction„of„approximately„450„linear„of
8-inch„water„main„with„a„Check„Valve„from„the„Eagle„Canyon„PRS„to„Longspur„Way„to„provide
a„secondary„supply„to„the„Nightingale„Regulated„Zone„and„avoid„customer„outages„when
maintenance„of„the„Nightingale„pressure„reguator„station„is„required.

SCHEDULE:„Implementation„and„construction„will„be„completed„in„FY„2022.

Truckee„Meadows„Water„Authority„FY„2021„-„2025„Capital„Improvement„Plan

102

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements 
Trademark 14" Main Tie

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Developer
Fees Trademark 14" Main Tie — — — — 350 350

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: This project involves construction of approximately 350 LF of
14” water main from Trademark to South Meadows Parkway, including crossing of an existing
major drainage channel.  The project will increase transmission capacity in the Double Diamond
system to meet the needs of growth.

SCHEDULE: Construction is scheduled to be completed in FY 2025.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

103 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
Spanish Springs Main Replacement 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Spanish Springs Main
Replacement 2,300 — — — — 2,300

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves replacement of approximately 6,700 feet of
existing Schedule 40 PVC pipe on Cordoba Blvd, Virgil Dr., Virgil Ct, La Posada, Benedict Dr.,
Valparaiso Ct. and Cortez Ct. in Spanish Springs. The actual extent of the Schedule 40 pipe has
not been determined, but several of these substandard pipes have failed in the last several years
in the areas noted.

SCHEDULE: Construction is scheduled to be completed in FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

104 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
Mt. Rose Tank 1 Fire Flow Improvements 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Mt.„Rose„Tank„1„Fire
Flow„Improvements ƒ 400 570 ƒ ƒ 970

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The„project„involves„reconstruction„of„an„existing„PRS„at„Mt.
Rose„Tank„#1,„a„new„PRS„on„Blue„Spruce„and„approximately„3100„linear„feet„of„10-inch„water
main„on„Blue„Spruce„and„Douglas„Fir„to„increase„system„pressure„and„fire„flow„capacity„to
existing„customers„in„Galena„Forest„Estates.„„Existing„fire„flows„are„currently„less„than„1,000
GPM„in„the„area.

SCHEDULE: Planning„and„design„will„be„completed„in„FY„2021.„Construction„will„occur„in
FY's„2021-„2022.

Truckee„Meadows„Water„Authority„FY„2021„-„2025„Capital„Improvement„Plan

105

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
Stead Golf Course Main Replacement 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority Funding Source Description
FY 

2021
FY 

2022
FY 

2023
FY 

2024
FY 

2025
CIP
Total

2 Customer Rates /
Developer Fees

Stead Golf Course
Main Replacement — — 170 2,400 — 2,570

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project consists of replacement of about 10,000 feet of 14-
inch steel pipe installed around 1945. The pipe provides an important hydraulic tie between the
Stead tanks and the northeast extremities of the Stead distribution system. The pipeline may also
be useful to alleviate an existing bottleneck between the Stead wells and the distribution system.

SCHEDULE: The project is scheduled for construction in FY 2024.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

106 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
General Waterline Extensions 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority Funding Source Description
FY 

2021
FY 

2022
FY 

2023
FY 

2024
FY 

2025
CIP
Total

3 Customer Rates
General Waterline
Extensions 100 100 100 100 100 500

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: A nominal amount of funding is budgeted each year to
accommodate water main extensions to correct pressure, dead ends and fire flow deficiencies as
they are identified. Funds will not be expended unless determined necessary.

SCHEDULE: This is an ongoing annual project budget. Projects will not be constructed unless
determined necessary to correct deficiencies identified above.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

107 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
North-East Sparks Feeder Main Ph. 8 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Developer
Fees

North-East Sparks
Feeder Main Phase 8 50 2,050 — — 2,100

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves construction of approximately 6,400 linear
feet of 14-inch water main on Satellite Drive from Vista Blvd to Sparks Blvd to increase capacity
for growth in Spanish Springs and maintain adequate suction pressure at the Satellite Hills
booster pump station.
 
SCHEDULE: Design is scheduled for FY 2022 and the improvements will be constructed in FY
2023.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

108 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
Mount Rose 5 Distribution / Pressure Improvements

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Developer
Fees

Mount Rose 5 Distribution /
Pressure Improvements 750 — — — — 750

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Improvements are intended to provide off-peak conjunctive use
supply. The proposed improvements are intended to be consistent with future improvements to
improve peaking supply to the Mt. Rose system and will reduce pressure in the high pressure
pipeline downhill of Mt. Rose Well 5. It will also increase the off-peak pumping capacity of
surface water into the Mt. Rose 1 and 4 tanks to 650 gpm from 400 gpm. Future phases are
intended to increase system redundancy and further reduce high pressures in the system.
 
SCHEDULE: Construction is scheduled for FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

109 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
Goldenrod Main

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Developer
Fees Goldenrod Main — 50 1,200 — — 1,250

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves construction of approximately 4,500 LF of
12" water main from the Tessa West Well to the intersection of Goldenrod and Mountain
Meadows Lane.  This project will provide additional capacity between the Arrowcreek and Mt
Rose systems for Mt Rose 2 tank fills and for on-peak supply from the Mt Rose Water Treatment
Plant.

SCHEDULE: Design is planned in FY 2022 and construction is planned in FY 2023.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

110 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
Boomtown Water System Improvements 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Developer
Fees

Boomtown Water
System Improvements 2,500 — — — — 2,500

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: If TMWA successfully acquires the Boomtown water system
assets, the system will initially be operated as a stand-alone system that will be 100 percent
dependent upon local groundwater resources.  To insure reliable water service to existing
Boomtown customers, several high priority improvements are necessary to bring the system into
compliance with NAC 445A regulations and TMWA standards and to allow efficient operation
and maintenance of the water facilities.  The improvements consist of upgrades to three existing
wells (pump to waste facilities, SCADA, new pumps, new motors, new starters and arc flash
analyses), tank site improvements (grading, drainage, overflow, fencing, paving, sampling vault,
SCADA) and tank access improvements (improved gravel road, improvements to the existing
bridge over Steamboat Ditch).
  
SCHEDULE: The improvements will be designed and constructed in FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

111 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
Boomtown to TMWA Connection 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Developer
Fees

Boomtown to
TMWA Connection 1,900 — — — — 1,900

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:   The Boomtown water system currently operates as a stand-alone
system that is 100 percent dependent upon local groundwater resources.  Significant growth in
the Boomtown area will require increased pumping of Boomtown wells.  The additional
groundwater pumping may result in deficiencies in water quality and quantity.  To insure reliable
water service to Boomtown and to protect the viability of the groundwater resource, TMWA will
connect the Boomtown system to the TMWA system.  The connection will provide an emergency
backup source of supply and most importantly, an off-peak source of supply that will allow
TMWA to implement conjunctive use management of surface water and groundwater resources
within the Boomtown system.  The Boomtown connection consists of about 1,800 feet of 16”
main, including a jack and bore crossing of the railroad tracks and a new booster pump station.

SCHEDULE: Design of the facilities was completed in FY 2020. Construction of the facilities
would occur in FY's 2020 - 21.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

112 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
Lemmon Valley Sand Yard

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Lemmon„Valley
Sand„Yard ƒ 530 ƒ ƒ ƒ 530

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: „„With„continued„growth„in„the„area„including„the„acquisition„of
the„Lemmon„Valley„water„system„formerly„owned„by„Washoe„County,„it„is„very„inefficient„for
TMWA„crews„to„respond„to„a„main„break„or„other„major„issue„in„the„North„Valleys„and„have„to
either„return„to„the„Truckee„Meadows„or„call„out„a„second„crew„to„transport„materials„to„the„site
to„complete„the„repairs.„„To„increase„the„efficiency„of„maintenance„operations„in„the„North
Valleys,„TMWA„plans„to„improve„the„balance„of„the„1.25„acre„lot„surrounding„Lemmon„Valley
Well„#6„(near„the„intersection„of„Lemmon„Drive„and„Arkansas„Drive)„to„store„the„common
materials„such„as„sand„and„base„rock„normally„used„in„water„system„maintenance.„„The
improvements„consist„of„import,„grading,„fencing,„drainage,„material„storage„bins,„lighting„and
landscaping.„„The„project„has„been„designed„and„the„building„permit„has„been„acquired.

SCHEDULE: Assuming„flood„water„recede„sufficiently,„the„project„would„be„constructed„in„FY
2021.

Truckee„Meadows„Water„Authority„FY„2021„-„2025„Capital„Improvement„Plan

113

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
Sullivan #1 Main Tie & PRS

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority Funding Source Description
FY 

2021
FY 

2022
FY 

2023
FY 

2024
FY 

2025
CIP
Total

2 Customer Rates /
Developer Fees

Sullivan #1 Main
Tie & PRS — — — — 50 50

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves construction of about 1,300 LF of 10” main
on El Rancho and a new PRS to supply the Sullivan #1 zone.  The project timeline assumes that
the proposed Sun Valley #2 Tank and Sullivan #2 pump station are in service.

SCHEDULE: Planning and design is scheduled to begin in FY 2025.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

114 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
Montreux High Pressure ACP Replacement

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Montreux„High„Pressure
ACP„Replacement ƒ ƒ ƒ 520 1,060 1,580

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The„project„involves„replacement„of„approximately„6,500„linear
feet„of„existing„10-inch„transite„water„main„between„Mt„Rose„Well„#5„and„Joy„Lake„Road.„The
existing„ACP„pipe„installed„in„the„1970's„is„currently„operated„at„pressures„between„120-250„psi.

SCHEDULE: Planning„and„design„will„occur„in„FY„2024„with„construction„to„be„completed„in
FY„2025.

Truckee„Meadows„Water„Authority„FY„2021„-„2025„Capital„Improvement„Plan

115

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
2nd Galena Creek Main Crossing

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

2nd Galena Creek
Main Crossing — — — 40 560 600

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves construction of approximately 2,200 linear
feet of 10-inch ductile iron water main between Breithorn Cir. and Piney Creek Parklet including
a crossing of Galena Creek.  The existing 10" ACP pipe that crosses Galena Creek is currently
the only tie between well sources and storage tanks.

SCHEDULE: Design will occur in FY 2024 with construction to be completed in FY 2025.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

116 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
Off-River Supply Improvements - South Truckee Meadows

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Off-River Supply
Improvements - STM — — — 50 1,050 1,100

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves construction of four SCADA controlled,
pressure reducing bypass stations in strategic locations in the South Truckee Meadows to allow
excess well capacity and excess Mt. Rose Water Treatment Plant capacity to be provided to the
Highland gravity zone in case of loss supply from the Truckee River.  Two additional bypasses
(Arrowcreek BPS & future Veteran's BPS) will be constructed separately under the budget for
those facilities.

SCHEDULE: Planning and design will occur in FY 2024 with construction to be completed in
FY 2025.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

117 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
Off-River Supply Improvements - North Virginia-Stead Pump Station

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Off-River Supply
Improvements -
NVS Pump Station — — — 400 — 400

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves construction of a SCADA controlled,
pressure reducing bypass station at the North Virginia-Stead booster pump station to allow
excess Fish Springs well capacity to be provided to the Highland gravity zone in case of loss
supply from the Truckee River.

SCHEDULE: Project implementation and construction will occur in FY 2024.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

118 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
Somersett #6 Main Tie & Pressure Regulator Station

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Somersett #6 Main
Tie & PRS — — — 280 — 280

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves construction of about 600 linear feet of 10-
inch main within improved paved pathway and a new pressure regulator station to provide a
secondary source (looping) to Somersett Village 6.

SCHEDULE: Project implementation and construction will occur in FY 2024.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

119 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
Stonebrook West Main Oversizing

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Developer
Fees

Stonebrook West
Main Oversizing 450 — — — — 450

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves oversizing of about 7,000 linear feet of 12-
inch water main on Wingfield Hills Rd and Tierra Del Sol Prkwy to 16-inch diameter pipe as part
of an Applicant-Installed new business project (Stonebrook West, PLL 19-6695 Annex.) 

SCHEDULE: This project should be completed by FY 2021, subject to the schedule of the
developer.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

120 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
2025 Fire Flow Improvements - Gravity < 1,000 GPM

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

2025 Fire Flow
Improvements -
Gravity <1,000
GPM — — — — 550 550

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves improvements at 5 separate locations in the
gravity zone that have an available fire flow of less than 1000 GPM.  Reference Pages 20-22 of
the 2035 WFP – Items 14,18,20,25,31 (also Figures 38,42,44,49,55).  Construction consists of
approximately 1,900 linear feet of new 6-inch & 8-inch main including new hydrant taps and
laterals. 

SCHEDULE: The improvements are scheduled for construction in FY 2025.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

121 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
2025 Fire Flow Improvements - North Valleys < 1,000 GPM

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

2025 Fire Flow
Improvements -
North Valleys
<1,000 GPM — — — — 940 940

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: This project involves improvements at two separate locations that
have an available fire flow of less than 1,000 GPM. Reference Items SI6 and SI7 on pages 6-7 of
the North Valleys section of the 2035 Water Facilities Plan (also Figures D and E). Construction
of approximately 3,500 linear feet of new 6-inch and 8-inch main and new high pressure
Regulating Station.

SCHEDULE: The improvements are scheduled for construction in FY 2025.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

122 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
Deluchi to Airway Main Tie

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Developer
Fees

Deluchi to
Airway Main Tie — — — — 440 440

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves construction of approximately 1,200 linear
feet of l4-inch main from Deluchi to Airway including crossing a major storm drainage channel.
The project promotes looping of the distribution system and provides additional North to South
peak period capacity.

SCHEDULE: The project is scheduled for construction in FY 2025.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

123 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
South-East Sparks Feeder Main Phase 1

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Developer
Fees

South-East Sparks
Feeder Main
Phase 1 — — — 50 4,450 4,500

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves construction of approximately 9,700 linear
feet of 24-inch main on Greg Street between 21st Street and Stanford to provide additional
capacity for future growth and to lower peak period pressure in the area.

SCHEDULE: Planning and design are scheduled to begin in FY 2024 and construction is
scheduled to begin in FY 2025.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

124 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
South Truckee Meadows Capacity Improvements

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Developer
Fees

South Truckee
Meadows
Capacity
Improvements 430 670 — — — 1,100

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves construction of approximately 1,500 linear
feet of l4-inch main on Offenhauser and Gateway with a SCADA controlled valve installed an
underground vault to provide an intertie between the Longley and Double Diamond systems.
Also included is a short 8-inch main tie at Bluestone and Portman.The improvements increase
capacity to the South Truckee Meadows system.

SCHEDULE: Design for the project is scheduled to begin in FY 2021 and construction is
scheduled for FY 2022.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

125 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
Stewart-Taylor Main Replacements

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Stewart-Taylor
Main
Replacements 2,000 0 0 0 0 2,000

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Replace approximately 5,000 linear feet of old cast iron water
main ahead of COR's 2021 Neighborhood Street Rehabilitation Project. 

SCHEDULE: The project is scheduled to begin in FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

126 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
Roberts-Wilson-Moran Main Replacements

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Roberts-Wilson-
Moran Main
Replacements 2,340 0 0 0 0 2,340

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Replace approximately 5,100 linear feet of old cast iron water
main ahead of COR's 2021 Neighborhood Street Rehabilitation Project. 

SCHEDULE: The project is scheduled to begin in FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

127 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution Service Line Improvements
Verdi Hydro Main Extension

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Verdi Hydro Main
Extension — 320 — — — 320

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves construction of approximately 1,700 linear
feet of 8-inch main and 750 linear feet of 6-inch main parallel to the penstock from Verdi
Elementary School to the Hydro building. Approximately half of the cost will be reimbursed by
growth in the area.  Completion of the main will also provide fire protection for the hydro facility
and will allow the existing water service from the Verdi Mutual Water Co. to be retired, saving
about $21,000 per year. 

SCHEDULE: Construction is scheduled for FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

128 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



POTABLE WATER STORAGE IMPROVEMENTS 
Summary

Priority
Funding 
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1
Customer
Rates /
Developer Fees Sun Valley Tank #2 — — — — 420 420

2 Developer Fees
Fish Springs Terminal
Tank #2 — — — — 40 40

1
Customer Rates

Storage Tank Recoats;
Access; Drainage
Improvements 900 900 900 900 900 4,500

2
Customer
Rates /
Developer Fees

Highland Reservoir
Tank 100 5,000 2,700 — — 7,800

1
Customer
Rates /
Developer Fees

STMGID Tank East
Zone 11 Tank 100 2,975 — — — 3,075

1 Customer Rates Lightning W Tank #2 400 — — — — 400

1
Customer
Rates /
Developer Fees

US 40 Tank & Feeder
Main — 170 300 2,730 — 3,200

2
Customer
Rates /
Developer Fees

Spanish Springs
Altitude Valves — — 300 — — 300

1 Customer Rates
Terminal Tank
Generator — 200 — — — 200

2 Customer Rates
Hidden Valley Tank
Altitude Valve — 350 — — — 350

Subtotal Storage Improvements 1,500 9,595 4,200 3,630 1,360 20,285

Project Locations: Map of all Potable Water Storage Improvements projects are highlighted in
the following map.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

129 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

130 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Potable Water Storage Improvements
Sun Valley #2 Tank

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority Funding Source Description
FY 

2021
FY 

2022
FY 

2023
FY 

2024
FY 

2025
CIP
Total

1 Customer Rates /
Developer Fees Sun Valley Tank #2 — — — — 420 420

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: TMWA continues to analyze opportunities to consolidate pump
zones to eliminate future pump station replacement costs and to increase reliability to continuous
pumping zones. Several years ago, TMWA consolidated the Sutro #1 pump zone with the Sun
Valley/Sullivan pump zone, placing additional capacity requirements on the Sun Valley zone.
This tank is needed to provide the required emergency storage capacity to the expanded zone and
will also provide the capacity for the Sun Valley zone to reach buildout.

SCHEDULE: The project is scheduled for construction in FY 2025 subject to successful
acquisition of a suitable tank site which is elevation sensitive and is complicated by the US 395
Connector project alignment. 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

131 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Potable Water Storage Improvements
Fish Springs Terminal Tank #2

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Developer
Fees

Fish Springs
Terminal Tank #2 — — — — 40 40

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Ultimately, a second 2.5 MG storage tank is needed at the
terminus of the Fish Springs pipeline at the north end of Lemmon Valley to equalize demand and
supply during peak use periods. 

SCHEDULE: The project is currently scheduled for design in FY 2025 with construction to
follow in FY 2026. The actual schedule will be dependent upon the rate of growth in the North
Valleys.

 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

132 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Potable Water Storage Improvements
Storage Tank Recoats; Access; Drainage Improvements  

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Storage Tank Recoats; Access;
Drainage Improvements 900 900 900 900 900 4,500

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: TMWA has a very proactive tank reservoir maintenance program
whereby 20% of all tanks are inspected annually on a rotating basis. Based upon these inspection
observations, a determination is made as to whether interior tank coatings (for steel tanks) or
other fix and finish work is required. TMWA has 93 storage tanks in service, with combined
storage of approximately 121 million gallons. Interior coating/liners are generally replaced every
15 years resulting in the need to recoat several tanks per year to maintain the rehabilitation cycle.
The budget and plan also includes exterior painting of steel tanks and any replacement of any
interior components that may be corroded.

SCHEDULE: This is an ongoing annual project. It is anticipated that several tanks will need to
be recoated approximately every year.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

133 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Potable Water Storage Improvements
Highland Reservoir Tank

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority Funding Source Description
FY 

2021
FY 

2022
FY 

2023
FY 

2024
FY 

2025
CIP
Total

2 Customer Rates /
Developer Fees

Highland Reservoir
Tank 100 5,000 2,700 — — 7,800

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: TMWA has two large finished water storage reservoirs, one at
Hunter Creek and one at the Highland site just west of the intersection of Washington and
College Drive. These reservoirs are lined and covered with flexible polyethylene or hypalon
membranes. As such, they are more maintenance intensive and susceptible to damage than a
conventional steel or concrete tank. To provide reliability during repairs or during extended
outages for inspection and cleaning, it is proposed to construct a conventional 4 million gallon
water storage tank at the reservoir site. Due to topography and proximity to residential areas the
tank may need to be a buried pre-stressed concrete tank, which is reflected in the project budget.
The tank will also provide additional storage capacity to meet future system requirements as
required by the NAC regulations.

SCHEDULE: The tank is scheduled for construction in FY's 2022-23.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

134 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Potable Water Storage Improvements
STMGID Tank East (Zone 11 Tank)

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority Funding Source Description
FY 

2021
FY 

2022
FY 

2023
FY 

2024
FY 

2025
CIP
Total

1 Customer Rates /
Developer Fees

STMGID Tank East
Zone 11 Tank 100 2,975 — — — 3,075

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves construction of a 3.7 MG above ground
welded steel storage tank in the South Truckee Meadows area off of Geiger Grade formerly
owned by STMGID.  Due to growth in the area over the last several years, additional storage is
required to meet the requirements of the NAC 445A regulations and TMWA standards.  The tank
will replace an existing 0.75 MG tank providing a net increase in storage of about 3 MG.

SCHEDULE: The project is currently scheduled for construction in FY 2022, subject to
acquisition of the Special Use Permit and Bureau of Land Management (BLM) permitting.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

135 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Potable Water Storage Improvements
Lightning W Tank 2

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates Lightning W Tank #2 400 — — — — 400

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Construct a new 0.25 MG steel tank to provide redundancy,
system reliability, and alleviate Washoe County Health District concerns related to service in the
satellite systems.

SCHEDULE: This project will be completed in FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

136 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Potable Water Storage Improvements
US 40 Tank & Feeder Main

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority Funding Source Description
FY 

2021
FY 

2022
FY 

2023
FY 

2024
FY 

2025
CIP
Total

1 Customer Rates /
Developer Fees

US 40 Tank &
Feeder Main — 170 300 2,730 — 3,200

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves construction of two 800,000 gallon steel
tanks with site improvements, utilities, drain line and access road including about 2,100 LF of
20" feeder main.  The project will improve reliability and hydraulic performance in the zone
which experiences a lot of surge issues due to cycling of the Mae Anne pump train and the closed
system on the Mogul end.  This situation is only expected to worsen when pumping to Verdi
begins.

SCHEDULE: The project is currently scheduled for design in FY's 2022 - 23 and construction
in FY 2024.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

137 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Potable Water Storage Improvements
Spanish Springs Altitude Valves

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority Funding Source Description
FY 

2021
FY 

2022
FY 

2023
FY 

2024
FY 

2025
CIP
Total

2 Customer Rates /
Developer Fees

Spanish Springs
Altitude Valves — — 300 — — 300

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves the construction of altitude valves in
underground vaults at the Desert Springs Tank #3 and at Spring Creek Tank #6.  The altitude
valves will keep the existing tanks from overflowing when well recharge operations are
conducted in Spanish Springs Valley.

SCHEDULE: Implementation and construction will occur in FY 2023.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

138 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Potable Water Storage Improvements
Terminal Tank Generator

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority Funding Source Description
FY 

2021
FY 

2022
FY 

2023
FY 

2024
FY 

2025
CIP
Total

1
Customer Rates

Terminal Tank
Generator — 200 — — — 200

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: This project includes adding a 40kW generator to provide backup
power when NV Energy cannot provide power.

SCHEDULE: The project is scheduled to be completed in FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

139 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Potable Water Storage Improvements
Hidden Valley Tank Altitude Valve

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority Funding Source Description
FY 

2021
FY 

2022
FY 

2023
FY 

2024
FY 

2025
CIP
Total

2
Customer Rates

Hidden Valley
Tank Altitude
Valve — 350 — — — 350

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves installation of a new altitude valve in a vault
on the Hidden Valley Tank #l in/out line. Requires cutting into and rerouting existing piping,
addition of new valves, etc.

SCHEDULE: The project is schedule for construction in FY 2022.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

140 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



HYDROELECTRIC IMPROVEMENTS
Summary

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Forebay, Diversion, &
Canal Improvements 100 100 100 100 100 500

3 Customer
Rates Flume Rehabilitation 150 150 — — — 300

3 Customer
Rates

Hydro Plant Generator
Rewinds — 650 650 650 — 1,950

1 Customer
Rates

Washoe Flume
Reconstruction 50 1,450 — — — 1,500

3 Insurance
Settlement

Orr Ditch Hydro
Facility 1,100 4,000 500 — — 5,600

1 Customer
Rates

Washoe Flume
Reconstruction Boxes 1,350 — — — — 1,350

Subtotal Hydroelectric Improvements 2,750 6,350 1,250 750 100 11,200

Project Locations: Map of all Hydroelectric Improvements projects are highlighted in the
following map.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

141 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

142 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Hydroelectric Improvements
Forebay, Diversion, and Canal Improvements  

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Forebay, Diversion, &
Canal Improvements 100 100 100 100 100 500

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
Provision is made each year for hydroelectric flume reconstruction to mitigate damage from
unexpected rock falls, landslides and/or flooding events. Diversion structures including gates,
canals, flumes, forebays and all hydro-plant water conveyance structures are monitored and
evaluated for reliable and safe operation.

SCHEDULE: Ongoing annual evaluation and prioritization of forebay and canal conditions in
the early spring (winter weather can change priorities) to identify projects for fall construction
when historically, river flows are lower.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

143 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Hydroelectric Improvements
Flume Rehabilitation 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

3 Customer
Rates Flume Rehabilitation 150 150 — — — 300

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: TMWA’s three operating hydroelectric facilities have nearly
12,150 feet of flume. The average service life for flume structures is 35 years using treated
timbers, at an average replacement cost of approximately $1,000 per lineal foot of flume. The
present cost to replace a linear foot of flume depends on the location and height of the flume
structure.

SCHEDULE: Ongoing annual evaluation and prioritization of flume condition in the early
spring (winter weather can change priorities) to identify projects for fall construction when
historically, river flows are lower.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

144 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Hydroelectric Improvements
Hydro Plant Generator Rewinds

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

3 Customer
Rates

Hydro Plant Generator
Rewinds — 650 650 650 — 1,950

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
The Fleish generator was last rewound in 1958 and is still operational. The typical in-service life
of this type of generator is about 50 years. The two Washoe generators were damaged in a flood
in 2006. The units were cleaned and repaired but suffered damage to the core laminations that
has shortened the operating life. Work would consist of rewinding the plant generators with
spending in fiscal years 2020, 2021 and 2022. 

SCHEDULE: Washoe Hydro Plant generators FY 2021 and FY 2022, Fleish Hydro Plant
generator FY 2023. This schedule may be adjusted depending on river flows and generator
condition evaluation. 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

145 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Hydroelectric Improvements
Washoe Flume Reconstruction

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Washoe Flume
Reconstruction 50 1,450 — — — 1,500

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project includes the demolition and reconstruction of the
Washoe Flume from the Boomtown Access Rd East to I-80. To be demolished and reconstructed
is approximately 1,250 linear feet of wood flume and timer structure. An additional 150 linear
feet of flume will be reconstructed with steel sub structure. Approximately 800 linear feet of
slope stabilization will be included in the project.

SCHEDULE: This project is schedule to start in FY 2021 with construction to begin in FY
2022.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

146 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Hydroelectric Improvements
Orr Ditch Hydro Facility

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

3 Insurance
Settlement

Orr Ditch Hydro
Facility 1,100 4,000 500 — — 5,600

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: During periods of low demand, the Highland Canal has available
capacity to bring water to the Chalk Bluff Facility. An existing pipeline brings water from the
river via the Orr Ditch Pump Station up to Chalk Bluff. A feasibility and financial study will be
completed to analyze the possibility of using existing infrastructure with the addition of power
generation equipment to produce power for direct use at the Chalk Bluff Water Treatment
Facility. 

SCHEDULE: A feasibility study was completed in FY 2020. Construction on the projected is
scheduled to begin in FY 2021.

 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

147 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Hydroelectric Improvements
Washoe Flume Reconstruction Boxes 1-68

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Washoe Flume
Reconstruction Boxes
1-68 1,350 0 0 0 0 1,350

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Project includes demolition and reconstruction of the Washoe
Flume 64 box sections. 

SCHEDULE: Construction for the project is scheduled to be completed in FY 2021. 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

148 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



CUSTOMER SERVICE OUTLAYS 
Summary

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

3 Customer
Rates

Meter Reading
Equipment — 60 — 75 — 135

2 Developer
Fees New Business Meters 100 100 100 100 100 500

1 Customer
Rates

Mueller Pit
Replacements former
Washoe County 125 125 125 125 125 625

2 Customer
Rates

Galvanized / Poly
Service Line
Replacements 250 250 250 250 250 1,250

1
Customer
Rates /
Meter
Retrofit Fees

AMI Automated Meter
Infrastructure 2,100 6,000 6,000 6,000 1,000 21,100

Subtotal Customer Service 2,575 6,535 6,475 6,550 1,475 23,610

Project Locations: Map of all Customer Service Outlays projects are highlighted in the
following map.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

149 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

150 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Customer Service Outlays
Meter Reading Equipment

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025 CIP Total

3 Customer
Rates

Meter Reading
Equipment — 60 — 75 — 135

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: TMWA utilizes a multiple meter reading systems in which the
transmitters attached to the meters send a signal out to be collected by data collectors. These
collectors are mounted in the meter reading vehicles or on various mountain peaks surrounding
the valley. TMWA is anticipating replacing units that have degraded.

SCHEDULE: Will need to purchase equipment on an as needed basis.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

151 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Customer Service Outlays
New Business Meters

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Developer
Fees New Business Meters 100 100 100 100 100 500

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: All new water services are required to be metered. Meters are
purchased by TMWA and installed for new development. New business fees pay for these
installations.

SCHEDULE: As development picks up, more meters will need to be purchased.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

152 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Customer Service Outlays
Mueller Pit Replacements Former Washoe County

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Mueller Pit Replacements
former Washoe County 125 125 125 125 125 625

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The Mueller metering pits are a very high maintenance metering
facility and are prone to leaks and failures. TMWA plans to replace these facilities in response to
leaks and or subsidence of these facilities. 

SCHEDULE: Equipment and employee needs are evaluated and updated annually.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

153 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Customer Service Outlays
Galvanized / Poly Service Line Replacements

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Galvanized„/„Poly„Service
Line„Replacements 250 250 250 250 250 1,250

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: TMWA„has„shifted„from„just„repairing„service„lines„from„the
street„main„to„the„curb„valve„or„meter„box„to„completely„replacing„service„lines„that„are
galvanized„steel„or„polybutylene.„These„two„materials„are„responsible„for„many„after-hours„call
outs„which„escalate„overtime„expenses„to„repair„leaks„in„the„street„because„the„galvanized„lines
are„corroded,„and„polybutylene„once„thought„very„durable,„becomes„brittle„and„cracks„or„splits
very„easily.„Just„repairing„these„lines„does„not„prevent„them„from„leaking„in„the„near„future,
escalating„repair„costs„while„further„damaging„city„streets.„Complete„replacement„provides„a
permanent„repair„in„a„cost„effective„manner„and„prevents„further„water„system„losses.

SCHEDULE:  This„is„an„ongoing„annual„project„budget.„Service„lines„will„be„replaced„as„they
are„identified.

Truckee„Meadows„Water„Authority„FY„2021„-„2025„Capital„Improvement„Plan

154

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Customer Service Outlays
AMI Automated Meter Infrastructure 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1
Customer
Rates / Meter
Retrofit Fees

AMI Automated Meter
Infrastructure 2,100 6,000 6,000 6,000 1,000 21,100

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  TMWA utilizes multiple meter reading systems in which the
transmitters attached to the meters send a signal out to be collected by data collectors. We
currently are utilizing two separate systems to collect this data. TMWA utilized a drive-by data
collection system and Washoe County used a radio read system. The technology in these systems
have improved vastly over the last couple of years and we are currently analyzing both systems,
with the goal to move to one system. We are currently using a consultant to assist TMWA in the
move to one remote reading data collection system. 

SCHEDULE: Once identified this project would be staged and implemented over the next 4-5
years, the equipment to be replaced or upgraded in many instances is already scheduled for
replacement.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

155 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



ADMINISTRATIVE OUTLAYS  
Summary

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

GIS / GPS System
Mapping Equipment — 20 — 20 — 40

2 Customer
Rates IT Server Hardware 180 30 45 30 — 285

2 Customer
Rates

IT Network Security
Upgrades 45 160 70 10 — 285

2 Customer
Rates

IT Physical Access
Security Upgrades 60 60 60 60 — 240

2 Customer
Rates

Printer / Scanner
Replacement 40 50 — 100 — 190

3 Customer
Rates Crew Trucks / Vehicles 650 750 750 850 950 3,950

1 Customer
Rates

Emergency Response
Projects 150 150 150 150 150 750

1 Customer
Rates

CIS System
Replacement 1,000 — — — — 1,000

1 Customer
Rates

Emergency Operations
Annex  Design /
Construction — — — 250 250 500

2 Customer
Rates

System Wide Asphalt
Rehabilitation 250 200 200 200 200 1,050

1 Customer
Rates

CSR Work Area Security
Upgrade 360 — — — — 360

1 Customer
Rates

Physical Access Control
System Upgrade 200 — — — — 200

1 Customer
Rates

Physical Site Security
Improvements 200 150 100 100 100 650

1 Customer
Rates

Medeco Intelligent Key
System — 150 100 100 — 350

Subtotal Administrative Outlays 3,135 1,720 1,475 1,870 1,650 9,850

Project Locations: Map of all Administrative Outlays projects are highlighted in the following
map.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

156 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

157 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Administrative Outlays
GIS/GPS System Mapping Equipment

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

GIS / GPS System
Mapping Equipment — 20 — 20 — 40

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: TMWA will have to update mapping equipment on a periodic
basis to keep up with changes in technology; and to replace existing equipment as it reaches
obsolescence.

SCHEDULE: Equipment is replaced and/or purchased as needed.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

158 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Administrative Outlays
IT Server Hardware

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates IT„Server„Hardware 180 30 45 30 ƒ 285

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: TMWA„currently„has„over„50„physical„servers„and„130„virtual
servers,„hosting„a„variety„of„enterprise„software„applications„that„support„TMWA€s„daily„business
operations.„All„physical„servers„are„typically„purchased„with„a„three„year„warranty,„with„the
expectation„that„they„will„reach„the„end„of„their„system„life„cycle„in„a„three„to„five„year„time
frame,„requiring„a„replacement.„TMWA„annually„reviews„its„server„platforms„and„can„option„a
strategy„of„warranty„extension,„if„cost„effective,„rather„than„outright„hardware„replacement.„All
servers„require„an„Operating„System„Software„license„to„run.„Operating„System„Software„is
upgraded„only„when„the„current„release„is„obsolete„or„a„newer„version„offers„a„significant
advantage„over„the„current„iteration.

SCHEDULE: Spending„would„be„determined„on„an„as„needed„basis.

Truckee„Meadows„Water„Authority„FY„2021„-„2025„Capital„Improvement„Plan

159

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Administrative Outlays
IT Network Security Upgrades

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

IT„Network„Security
Upgrades 45 160 70 10 ƒ 285

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: As„a„leading„water„purveyor„for„a„major„metropolitan„area,
TMWA„is„reliant„on„the„internet„for„employee„productivity„enhancement„and„providing„valuable
customer„information„and„outreach.„Such„dependency„on„the„internet„also„carries„a„significant
degree„of„risk,„as„it„makes„TMWA„a„major„target„for„external„security„threats„looming„within
globalized„networks.„To„offset„this„risk„and„combat„network„threats,„a„variety„of„security„specific
hardware„and„software„solutions„are„used,„weaving„them„into„a„layered„deployment„strategy
called„Defense„in„Depth.„In„order„to„continually„evolve„and„reinforce„this„Defense„in„Depth
strategy„and„effectively„fight„new„unforeseen„threats,„TMWA„must„continually„acquire„new
security„platforms„that„adapt„to„the„continually„changing„security„landscape.

SCHEDULE: Spending„occurs„only„on„an„as„needed„basis.

Truckee„Meadows„Water„Authority„FY„2021„-„2025„Capital„Improvement„Plan

160

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Administrative Outlays
IT Physical Security Upgrades

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

IT Physical Access
Security Upgrades 60 60 60 60 — 240

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Security measures that are designed to deny unauthorized access
to facilities, equipment and resources to protect personnel from damage or harm such as theft or
attacks. Physical security involves the use of multiple layers of interdependent systems which
can include surveillance, security guards, protective barriers, locks and other techniques. 

SCHEDULE: Equipment is replaced and/or purchased as needed.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

161 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Administrative Outlays
Printer / Scanner Replacement

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

Printer / Scanner
Replacement 40 50 — 100 — 190

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: TMWA currently has variety of printers and scanners that support
TMWA’s daily business operations. All printers are typically purchased with a three-year
warranty, with the expectation that they will reach the end of their system life cycle in a three to
five year time frame, requiring a replacement. TMWA annually reviews its printer/scanner
performance and business needs and can option a strategy of warranty extension, if cost
effective, rather than outright replacement. 

SCHEDULE: Equipment is replaced and/or purchased as needed.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

162 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Administrative Outlays
Crew Trucks/Vehicles

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

3 Customer
Rates

Crew„Trucks„/
Vehicles 650 750 750 850 950 3,950

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: TMWA€s„service„fleet„consists„of„light„duty„and„heavy„duty„crew
trucks.„TMWA„plans„to„cycle„the„light„crew„fleet„over„a„period„of„seven„to„ten„years.„Spending„is
determined„annually„depending„on„vehicle„availabilities„and„other„factors.„Spending„only„occurs
if„justified.„TMWA€s„fleet„cycles„older„vehicles„to„the„treatment„plants„or„other„less„demanding
activities„prior„to„disposal„at„auction.„TMWA„has„scaled„back„spending„on„light„vehicles„for„the
past„several„years„and„a„number„of„vehicles„will„be„in„excess„of„ten„years„old„and„greater„than
120,000„miles„of„duty.„„

SCHEDULE: Equipment„and„employee„needs„are„evaluated„and„updated„annually.

Truckee„Meadows„Water„Authority„FY„2021„-„2025„Capital„Improvement„Plan

163

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Administrative Outlays
Emergency Response Projects

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Emergency
Response Projects 150 150 150 150 150 750

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Various ongoing improvements to security infrastructure are
required to protect TMWA facilities. TMWA has performed vulnerability assessment studies in
the past and reviews the applicability of the findings to continually improve physical security as
needed. In addition, TMWA is preparing a new disaster recovery plan with procedures to recover
and protect water system operations.

SCHEDULE: Upgrades to security projects is ongoing and completed on a review of priorities
each year.

PROJECT LOCATION: Various locations at treatment plants, at well sites, storage area for
water fill station manifolds.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

164 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Administrative Outlays
CIS System Replacement 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

CIS System
Replacement 1,000 — — — — 1,000

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Software configuration, training and consulting to implement new
Customer Information (billing) system, which will also include a customer portal for water usage
information and bill payment.

SCHEDULE: Project implementation began in FY 2020 and will be completed in FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

165 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Administrative Outlays
Emergency Operations Annex-Design / Construction

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Emergency Operations Annex
Design / Construction — — — 250 250 500

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: TMWA is currently in the planning and conceptual design phase
for a Primary Emergency Operations Center (EOC)  including Disaster Recovery (DR) capacity.
TMWA’s EOC will relocate from the current location at the corporate office to the Chalk Bluff
Water Treatment Plant. Which includes scope review, design, and contract bid packages, bid and
award, construction, and testing. Potential emergency operations would include responding to
earthquakes, floods, or other emergency related events. 

SCHEDULE: Construction of water fill stations at four tank sites, standby power retrofits at
four existing wells and ten portable water fill manifold stations to be completed in FY's 2024 -
25. 

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

166 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Administrative Outlays
System Wide Asphalt Rehabilitation 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Customer
Rates

System Wide Asphalt
Rehabilitation 250 200 200 200 200 1,050

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: TMWA has 93 tanks, 90 wells, 113 pump stations, 2 storage
reservoirs and 3 treatment plants, most of which have some asphalt pavement. It is much more
economical to extend the life of existing pavement with routine maintenance such as repairing
cracks and applying slurry seals than it is to prematurely replace the pavement.

SCHEDULE: This is a new reoccurring maintenance item. It is originally assumed that up to 15
sites per year will receive some sort of rehabilitation that may include patching, crack repair,
slurry seal and/or partial replacement.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

167 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Administrative Outlays
Physical Access Control System Upgrade

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Physical Access Control
System Upgrade 200 — — — — 200

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Replacement of legacy readers and employee cards with multi-
frequency readers and smart cards to address several vulnerabilities and increase the physical
security of various TMWA sites.

SCHEDULE: Construction is scheduled for FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

168 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Administrative Outlays
CSR Work Area Security Upgrade

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

CSR Work Area
Security Upgrade 360 — — — — 360

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Project involves design of a new desktop work area
accommodating UL-3 Ballistic Security Glass as well as security upgrades to doors and walls.

SCHEDULE: Construction is scheduled to be completed in FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

169 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Administrative Outlays
Physical Site Security Improvements

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Physical Site Security
Improvements 200 150 100 100 100 650

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Physical site security improvements for Chalk Bluff, Glendale and
Corporate based on recommendations from the Department of Homeland Security Infrastructure Survey,
Security & Resilience Report dated 18 July 2018. These recommendations were echoed in the
Department of Emergency Managements Vulnerability Assessment completed in December 2019.
Recommended priority improvements include: 
1. Enhanced perimeter fencing with outriggers and barbed wire around 100% of site perimeters, fencing
secured into the ground, and repairs as needed to existing fencing. 
2. Dedicated security camera system for perimeter fence coverage as well as critical points in and around
key buildings. 
3. Solar powered LED lighting with motion detection along full fence perimeter of both WTP’s. 
4. 3M window film application for windows on exteriors of Corporate building not within fenced
perimeters. 
5. Intrusion detection systems for perimeter fencing and gate areas to be used with the new security
camera system. 
6. Landscaping improvements including the placement of large boulders around the SE corner of the
Chalk Bluff Control Room to protect against high speed vehicle ramming. Cleared areas along both sides
of all perimeter fencing.

SCHEDULE: The project is scheduled to begin in FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

170 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Administrative Outlays
Medeco Intelligent Key System

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1 Customer
Rates

Medeco Intelligent Key
System — 150 100 100 — 350

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The Medeco XT Intelligent Key System consists of a robust electronic
locking and access control system that is managed by state-of-the-art web-based system software. It uses
existing hardware, reduces the risk of lost keys, provides electronic scheduling, and gives audit
accountability to the system manager. Key management software and programming devices allow
administrators to program, amend or delete keys remotely and instantly. 
This system would be used to eventually replace our current CA keys which have left our physical
security compromised due to lost keys and unaccounted distribution and recovery of CA keys in the past.
It would initially be installed to protect the critical infrastructure sites throughout our system that do not
have any form of electronic access control. Eventually it will replace all CA keyed locking devices at all
TMWA facilities. 

The Medeco Intelligent Key System replaces the existing mechanical locking cylinder core with an
intelligent electronic locking cylinder on almost all type of locking devices. All other existing hardware
remains the same. 

Once installed, this system helps reduce the overall costs of key control program management while
providing a high level of security for our employees. It meets all NERC CIP standards and is in currentuse
by major utilities in Nevada.

SCHEDULE: The project is scheduled to begin in FY 2021.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

171 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



FORMER STMGID SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS 
Summary

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2 Reserve STMGID Well Fix & Finish 150 150 150 150 150 750

1
Reserve

STMGID Conjunctive Use
Facilities 1,600 500 — — — 2,100

1 Reserve
STMGID Mueller Pit
Replacements 50 — — — — 50

1
Reserve

STMGID NAC Deficiencies -
Saddlehorn, Upper Toll,
STMGID East 100 100 1,800 — — 2,000

1
Reserve

STMGID NAC Deficiencies
Phase 2 - Sioux Trail, Geiger
Grade, Westwind Cr. 800 — — — — 800

1
Reserve

STMGID Well #1 Re-Drill
and Equipping — 900 — — — 900

Subtotal STMGID System Improvements 2,700 1,650 1,950 150 150 6,600

Project Locations: Map of all Former STMGID System Improvements projects are highlighted
in the following map.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

172 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

173 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Ground Water Supply Improvements
STMGID Well Fix & Finish

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

2
Reserve

STMGID Well Fix &
Finish 150 150 150 150 150 750

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Equipment improvements are expected to bring existing wells up
to modern standards, including antiquated equipment replacements and improvements for water
quality purposes. This project includes improvements to sodium hypochlorite rooms, electrical
and instrumentation equipment, pump to waste lines and drainage improvements. It also includes
retrofit for recharge where needed.

SCHEDULE: Improvements are planned to continue for the duration of this CIP funding plan.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

174 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Water Main-Distribution & Service Line Improvements
STMGID Conjunctive Use Facilities

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1
Reserve

STMGID Conjunctive
Use Facilities 1,600 500 — — — 2,100

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project involves construction of a new booster pump station
on the reclaim water reservoir site on Arrowcreek Parkway and approximately 8,100 feet of 14-
inch discharge pipe on Arrowcreek Parkway to the STMGID Tank 4/5 pressure zone.
Approximately $0.5 million of the $3.6 million will be used for pipeline oversizing which will be
allocated to new development. The facilities will provide off-peak supply which will allow
TMWA to implement conjunctive use in the STMGID West system.

SCHEDULE: Construction of the pipeline was completed in FY 2019 and the booster station
design/construction is scheduled to begin in FY 2021 completing in FY 2022.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

175 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Customer Service Outlays
STMGID Mueller Pit Replacements 

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1
Reserve

STMGID Mueller Pit
Replacements 50 — — — — 50

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The Mueller metering pits are a very high maintenance metering
facility and are prone to leaks and failures. TMWA plans to replace these facilities to leaks and or
subsidence of these facilities.

SCHEDULE: Equipment and employee needs are evaluated and updated annually.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

176 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
NAC Deficiencies-Saddlehorn, Upper Toll Road, STMGID East  

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1
Reserve

STMGID NAC Deficiencies
- Saddlehorn, Upper Toll,
STMGID East 100 100 1,800 — — 2,000

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The project consists of main ties, hydrant installations and
individual booster pump systems to be constructed in multiple locations in former STMGID
service areas to correct NAC pressure and fire flow deficiencies. In order to correct deficiencies
in the upper Toll Road area, it will be necessary to create a new higher pressure zone by
constructing a new tank, booster pump station and approximately 6,300 linear feet of 12-inch
main.

SCHEDULE: The new pressure zone on upper Toll Road will be constructed in FY 2023 subject
to acquisition of the tank site property which may be private or on BLM property.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

177 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
NAC Deficiencies Phase 2 - Sioux Trail, Geiger Grade, Westwind Circle  

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1
Reserve

STMGID NAC Deficiencies
Phase 2 - Sioux Trail, Geiger
Grade, Westwind Cr. 800 — — — — 800

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Sioux Trail Improvements - Replace existing main with ~204-400
linear feet of 8-inch diameter and ~377-410 linear feet of 10-inch diameter Geiger Grade
Hydrant Improvements - Replace existing main with ~250 linear feet of 10-inch diameter
Westwind Circle Improvements - Replace existing main with ~1150 linear feet of 8inch diameter
Install 9 individual booster pumps.

SCHEDULE: The deficiencies on Sioux Trail, on Geiger Grade, on Westwind Circle and Terry
Way will be addressed in FY 2019/20. The individual booster stations will start in FY 2021
depending on customer needs and coordination.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

178 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



Distribution System Pressure Improvements
STMGID Well #1 Re-Drill and Equipping

FUNDING TIMELINE:

Priority
Funding
Source Description

FY 
2021

FY 
2022

FY 
2023

FY 
2024

FY 
2025

CIP
Total

1
Reserve

STMGID Well #1 Re-Drill and
Equipping — 900 — — — 900

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: This project involves the complete replacement of STMGID 1.
Recent rehabilitation work on the production well indicated the screens have deteriorated enough
to allow sediment and gravel pack to pass through. The well is a critical groundwater supply
asset as it currently accounts for ~24% of the max day demand in STMGID Tank Zone 1. 

SCHEDULE: The well is estimated to be drilled and constructed in FY 2022.

Truckee Meadows Water Authority FY 2021 - 2025 Capital Improvement Plan

179 

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 8.A



05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 9 
 

  Page 1 of 1 

 

STAFF REPORT 
 

TO: Chairman and Board Members 
FROM:   Sonia Folsom, SAC Liaison   
DATE: May 11, 2020 
SUBJECT: Discussion and action, and possible direction to staff regarding the appointment of 

Kristine Brown to the Standing Advisory Committee (SAC) to fill the Reno-Sparks 
Chamber of Commerce customer representative primary position for term ending 
December 31, 2021 

 
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends the appointment of Kristine Brown to the Standing Advisory Committee (SAC), to 
fill the Reno-Sparks Chamber of Commerce customer representative primary position for term ending 
December 31, 2021. (Please refer to the attached membership chart.)    
 
Background 
 
In August, 2005, a Subcommittee of the TMWA Board appointed the original, eight SAC members 
along with six alternate members. Subsequently, additional members and alternates were appointed by 
the Builders’ Association of Northern Nevada, the Reno-Sparks Chamber of Commerce. In September 
2016, the TMWA Board decided to remove the two appointments made by the Northern Nevada Water 
Planning Commission and the Office of Consumer Advocate and replace those with two at-large 
positions.  



Customer Class
Primary 

Representative Member Since Term Ends
Alternate 

Representative Member Since Term Ends

Wholesale (Sun Valley) Fred Schmidt 2005 12/31/2021 Chris Melton 2020 12/31/2021

Irrigation Neil McGuire 2005 12/31/2020 Karl Katt 2013 12/31/2020

Multi-family Residential Mike Schulewitch 2013 12/31/2020 Jonnie Pullman 2012 12/31/2021

Commercial Donald Kowitz 2017 12/31/2020 John Krmpotic 2020 12/31/2021

Senior Citizen Robert Chambers 2005 12/31/2020 Vacant 

At-Large 1 Ken McNeil 2013 12/31/2020 Ken Becker 2017 12/31/2020

At-Large 2 Jordan Hastings 2017 12/31/2020 Susan Hoog 2019 12/31/2021

Residential:

Representative 1 Carol Litster 2014 12/31/2020 Dale Sanderson 2017 12/31/2020

Representative 2 Harry Culbert 2006 12/31/2020 Fred Arndt 2017 12/31/2020

Representative 3 Jerry Wager 2014 12/31/2020 Scot Munns 2017 12/31/2020

Appointments:

BANN Colin Hayes 2010 12/31/2021 Jim Smith 2010 12/31/2021

Reno-Sparks Chamber Kristine Brown 2020 12/31/2021 Ann Silver 2019 12/31/2021

TMWA Standing Advisory Committee
Term Appointments

2020 Membership List

05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 9
Attachment

Page 1 of 1



05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 10 

Page 1 of 1 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

TO: Board of Directors  
FROM: Mark Foree, General Manager 
DATE: May 11, 2020 
SUBJECT: General Manager’s Report  
 
 
Attached please find the written reports from the Management team including the Operations 
Report (Attachment A), the Water Resource and the Annexation Activity Report (Attachment 
B), and the Customer Services Report (Attachment C). 

Also, please see the attached update regarding TMWA’s response to the current COVID-19 
situation. 



05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment 

  Page 1 of 1 

 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

TO:  Board of Directors  
THRU:  Mark Foree, General Manager  
FROM:  Jessica Atkinson, Human Resources Manager & Andy Gebhardt, Director of 

Operations & Water Quality 
DATE:  May 12, 2020 
SUBJECT:  Update on TMWA’s COVID-19 Coronavirus status 
 
 
As the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic remains present in our community, Truckee 
Meadows Water Authority (TWMA) has continued to deliver safe and reliable water service to 
our customers and our community. During these ever-changing times, TWMA staff is focused on 
a seamless continuation of our operations while minimizing any health impacts to employees and 
customers. 
On March 18, 2020, TMWA began operating at Pandemic Response Level 3, which provided for 
minimal and critical staffing only.  We have kept as much staff as possible in abeyance, in an 
effort to ensure continuity of water service for the community. The majority of the TMWA staff 
are working remotely from home or dispatching from their homes.   
As a result of Governor Sisolak’s announcement on May 7, 2020 that the State would be moving 
to a Phase 1 status in his Roadmap to Recovery for Nevada plan, TMWA has also transferred to 
Recovery Level 1 in its Pandemic Recovery Plan. The objectives at this recovery level are to ready 
employees and facilities and begin a restrictive, safe and controlled return to normal operations 
while adhering to governmental directives.  

TMWA is still operating with minimal and critical staffing and will continue to have the majority 
of employees work remotely from home as well as dispatch from their homes. TMWA has begun 
readying their facilities in preparation for the eventual return of more employees, and has 
instituted recommended safety precautions, such as health screenings, masks and social 
distancing procedures, to help ensure that the employees have a safe and healthy work 
environment in an effort to minimize the spread of COVID-19.  
We will continue to monitor COVID-19 developments during this recovery phase and will make 
necessary operational adjustments to ensure continued operations while putting the safety of our 
employees and community first. 



05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment A 

  Page 1 of 2 

 
 

 

STAFF REPORT 
 

TO: Board of Directors  
THRU: Mark Foree, General Manager  
FROM: Scott Estes, Director of Engineering 
BY: Bill Hauck, Water Supply Administrator 
DATE: May 11, 2020 
SUBJECT: May 2020 Operations Report  
 

Summary 

• This region is on very solid footing from a water supply perspective 
• Total upstream reservoir storage is at 77% of maximum capacity 
• Lake Tahoe is down 1.35 feet from its maximum elevation (and 78% of capacity) 
• Significant carry-over storage on the Truckee River system virtually assures the region of 

normal river flows at least the next 2 years despite below normal snowpack in 2020 (71% 
and 72% of normal on April 1st in both the Tahoe and Truckee basins respectfully) 

• Hydroelectric revenue for April 2020 was approximately $326,000 
 

(A) Water Supply  
 

• River Flows - Truckee River flows at the CA/NV state line are slightly below average 
for this time of year. Discharge was approximately 1,200 cubic feet per second (CFS) this 
morning. The median flow for May 11th based on 111 years of record is 1,460 CFS.   

 
• Reservoir Storage - Truckee River reservoir storage is slightly more than ¾ capacity 

(77%). The elevation of Lake Tahoe is 6227.75 feet (1.35’ below legal maximum storage 
elevation). Storage values for each reservoir as of 5/11 are as follows: 

 
 
Reservoir 

Current Storage 
(Acre-Feet) 

% of Capacity 
(Percent) 

Tahoe  578,700  78% 
Boca    11,814 29% 
Donner     8,999 95% 
Independence   12,969 74% 
Prosser     17,973 60% 
Stampede          192,060 85% 

 
 
 



05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment A 

  Page 2 of 2 

In addition to the 21,968 acre-feet of storage in Donner and Independence reservoirs, 
TMWA has approximately 14,300 acre-feet of water stored between Lake Tahoe, Boca 
and Stampede reservoirs under the terms of TROA. TMWA’s total combined upstream 
reservoir storage is approximately 36,270 acre-feet as of 5/10.  

 
• Outlook - Despite below average April 01 snowpack conditions of roughly 70% of 

normal in both the Tahoe and Truckee River basins, and runoff projections about 50% of 
average, the regional water supply outlook is still very good. Upstream reservoir storage 
is in great shape at 77% of capacity and continuing to improve as the runoff season is not 
over yet. Lake Tahoe should start the summer off just about a foot or so from maximum 
capacity which is very good news. While 2020 will end up a relatively lackluster, below 
average water year, normal river flows are projected for the foreseeable future because 
upstream reservoir storage is in such good shape. The region’s water supply is in a very 
solid position.  

 
(B) Water Production  
 

• Demand - TMWA’s customer demand averaged 96 million gallons per day over the first 
full week of the month. Overall, surface water is providing about 74% of our supply and 
groundwater the other 26%.   

 
(C) Hydro Production   
 
Generation - Average Truckee River flow at Farad (CA/NV state line) for the month of April 
2020 averaged 866 CFS. The Fleish and Verdi power plants were on-line the entire month and 
100% available, while the Washoe Power plant had to be taken out of service on April 23rd due 
to a catastrophic flume failure. Monthly statistics are as follows:     
 

 
Hydro Plant 

Days 
On-Line 

Generation 
(Megawatt hours) 

Revenue 
(Dollars) 

Revenue 
(Dollars/Day) 

Fleish 30   1,777 $  131,374 $   4,379 
Verdi 30   1,551 $  113,642 $   3,788 

Washoe 23   1,095        $    81,085 $   3,525 
Totals 83              4,423 $  326,101         $  11,692 

 
 



05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment B 

Page 1 of 5 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
TO:   Chairman and Board Members 
THRU:   Mark Foree, General Manager 
FROM:   John Zimmerman, Manager, Water Resources  
DATE:           May 12, 2020 
SUBJECT:    Report Water Resources and Annexation Activity 
 
 
RULE 7 
 

Rule 7 water resource purchases and will-serve commitment sales against purchased 
water resources through this reporting period (March 27-May 12): 
 
Beginning Balance                    4,113.69 AF 
Purchases of water rights            0.00 AF 
Refunds       0.00 AF 
Sales                       −   24.26 AF 
Adjustments       4.85 AF 
Ending Balance                               4,094.28 AF 
 
Price per acre foot at report date:  $7,700 
 
FISH SPRINGS RANCH, LLC GROUNDWATER RESOURCES 

 
Through the merger of Washoe County’s water utility, TMWA assumed a Water Banking 

and Trust Agreement with Fish Springs Ranch, LLC, a subsidiary of Vidler.  Under the 
Agreement, TMWA holds record title to the groundwater rights for the benefit of Fish Springs.  
Fish Springs may sell and assign its interest in these groundwater rights to third parties for 
dedication to TMWA for a will-serve commitment in Areas where TMWA can deliver 
groundwater from the Fish Springs groundwater basin.  Currently, TMWA can deliver Fish 
Springs groundwater to Area 10 only (Stead-Silver Lake-Lemmon Valley).  The following is a 
summary of Fish Springs’ resources. 
 
Beginning Balance                       7,772.49 AF 
Committed water rights            − 11.77 AF 
Ending Balance            7,760.72 AF 
 
Price per acre foot at report date:  $41,500 (for SFR and MFR); $36,000 (for all other services)1 

 
1 Price reflects avoided cost of Truckee River water right related fees and TMWA Supply & Treatment WSF charge. 



05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment B 

Page 2 of 5 

 
WATER SERVICE AREA ANNEXATIONS 
 
 There have been three annexations since the date of the last Board meeting (see attached 
maps). 
  



05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment B 

Page 3 of 5 



05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment B 

Page 4 of 5 



05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment B 

Page 5 of 5 

 



05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment C 

  Page 1 of 3 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

TO: Board of Directors  
THRU: Mark Foree, General Manager 
FROM: Marci Westlake, Manager Customer Service 
DATE: May 21, 2020 
SUBJECT: March & April Customer Service Report 
 
 
The following is a summary of Customer Service activity for March & April 2020.   
 
Ombudsman 
 

• Customer called to verify if we had the correct mailing address- confirmed that we did 
have the correct address.  

• Customer called and wanted a list of water facilities and charges, new business called and 
helped him. 
 

Communications 
 
Customer outreach in March Only included: 

• Laine Christman, Kara Steeland and Lauren Jones were at Damonte Ranch High School 
for a job/career fair and 900 students attended. 

• Laine Christman and Sonia Folsom were at Donner Springs Elementary School for a 
Science fair and 75 students attended.  

• Aaron Stickley did a water treatment tour for UNR Chemical Engineering Club and 7 
attended. 

• Lauren Kunin, Jesse Kohler and Sonia Folsom were at Spanish Springs High School for a 
career fair and 500 students attended.  
 

Conservation (2020 Calendar year to date) 
 
•  58 Water Watcher Contacts 
• 292 Water Usage Reviews 
 
 
 
 



05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment C 

  Page 2 of 3 

Customer Calls – March & April 
 
• 12,595 phone calls handled  
• Average handling time – 4 minutes, 21 seconds per call 
• Average speed of answer – 19 seconds per call 
 
Billing –March & April 
 
• 264,108 bills issued. 
• 38 (0.00%) corrected bills. 
• 22,454 customers (17%) have signed up for paperless billing to date. 
 
Service Orders –March & April (% is rounded) 
 
• 11,702 service orders taken 
• 7,456 (64%) move-ins / move-outs  
• 290 (2%) cut-out-for-non-payment and cut-in after receiving payments, including deposits 

and checks for tamper 
• 513 (4%) zero consumption meter checks 
• 1,025 (9%) re-read meters 
• 1,375 (12%) new meter sets and meter/register/ERT exchanges and equipment checks 
• 613 (5%) problems / emergencies, including cut-out for customer repairs, dirty water, no 

water, leaks, pressure complaints, safety issues, installing water meter blankets, etc.  
• 115 (1%) high-bill complaints / audit and water usage review requests 
• 315 (3%) various other service orders 
 
Remittance – March & April 
 
• 55,473 mailed-in payments 
• 52,968 electronic payments 
• 73,814 payments via RapidPay (EFT)  
• 37,615 one-time bank account payments 
• 13,919 credit card payments  
• 457 store payments  
• 2,366 payments via drop box or at front desk 
 
• Collections –March Only 
 
• 8,502 accounts received a late charge                     
• Mailed 3,867 10-day delinquent notices, 2.9% of accounts     
• Mailed 580 48-hour delinquent notices, 0.4% of accounts    
• 101 accounts eligible for disconnect 
• 94 accounts were disconnected (including accounts that had been disconnected-for-non-

payment that presented NSF checks for their reconnection) 
• 0.14% write-off to revenue 



05-21-20 BOARD Agenda Item 10 
Attachment C 

  Page 3 of 3 

 
Meter Statistics – Fiscal Year to Date 
 
• 0 Meter retrofits completed 
• 2,303 Meter exchanges completed 
• 2,064 New business meter sets completed  
• 128,934 Meters currently installed    


	__2020.0521-BOD-04-Agenda.Final
	__2020.0521-BOD-05-Draft-04-10-20-Minutes
	__2020.0521-BOD-06.A.0-ILVNPS.Report
	_2020.0521-BOD-06.A.1-LVNPWS Rate Tariff

	__2020.0521-BOD-07-TMWA-Q3-2020-Financials.Report
	__2020.0521-BOD-08.A-FY2021-Budget&5-YR-CIP.Report
	_2020.0521-BOD-08.A.1-Resolution-285-FY21-Budget-FY21-25-CIP
	_2020.0521-BOD-08.A.1-Attch-A-C-Operating-Budget
	_2020.0521-BOD-08.A.2-Attch-D-CIP-Table
	_2020.0521-BOD-08.A.4-TMWA-2021-25-CIP

	__2020.0521-BOD-09-SAC-2020-Membership.Report
	_2020.0521-BOD-09.1-SAC-Term-Limits

	__2020.0521-BOD-10-General-Manager-Report
	_2020.0521-BOD-10.1-GM-COVID-Update
	_2020.0521-BOD-10.A-GM-Operations.Report
	_2020.0521-BOD-10.B-GM-Water-Rights.Report
	_2020.0521-BOD-10.C-GM-Customer-Service.Report




